Gibson, Victoria

From: Comer, Patricia
‘ent: Tuesday, August 14, 2007 11:42 AM
o: Gibson, Victoria
Subject: FW: Gainesville Regional Utilities--Deerhaven
Vickie

| usually copy Trina so you know what's going on....but | forgot on this one. We're closing this file.
Pat '

And we have closed the Mosaic Green Bay file if you're keeping track of that.

From: Comer, Patricia

Sent: Tuesday, August 14, 2007 11:40 AM
To: Arif, Syed

Subject: Gainesville Regional Utilities--Deerhaven
Syed

OGC received a "Withdrawal of Request for Extension of Time" on case number OGC 07-1263... permit intent
0010006-005AC . The litigation file is being closed.
Pat



Gibson, Victoria

From: Crandall, Lea
‘ent: Tuesday, August 14, 2007 2:15 PM
o: _ Gibson, Victoria; Anf Syed
Subject: City of Gainesville - 0010006-005-AC - Wlthdrawal of Request for Extension of Time.
Attachments: : Di4700708141406.PDF

Di4700708141406.
PDF (3 MB)
FYI!

Thanks,
Lea

Lea Crandall

Agency Clerk

Department of Environmental Protectlon
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000

Phone: (850) 245-2212 SC: 205-2212
Fax: (850) 245-2303 :

————— Original Message-----

From: Knight, Barnard

ent: Tuesday, August 14, 2007 2:08 PM
‘o: Crandall, Lea

Subject: From KONICA MINOLTA Did70



GRU -- City of Gainesville - Deerhaven Generating Station
0010006-005-AC (Syed)

2007
12-Jul OGC received in the 1st request for extension of time through 8/27
book, list and notes
16-Jul note to Jeff and Syed to see if request will be granted; yes they will grant
forwarded Jeff's e-mail to Pat and Vai in OGC
27-Jul OGC issued the order to grant until 8/27
copies to Syed, Jeff and Patty
13-Aug Received a copy from the facility of their crder to withdraw this requesf]
signed and received in OGC on 8/10
copy was sent to Syed as well
LCT has not been updated yet by OGC
14-Aug ncte from Pat; case closed without final order

Case Closed in OGC

l

Expires on August 27th




RECE|vgp

THE STATE OF FLORIDA ‘
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUG 13 2007
BUREAL O
AR REGUL 4
[n the Matter of an X i TION
Application for Air Construction Permit by: 0GC No. € 1-jJ08
City of Gainesville Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS)
Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU) Facility ID No. 0010005
Post Office Box 147117 (A132) Draft Permit No. 00 10006-005-AC
Gainesville, FL 32614-7117 Alachua County
/

WITHDRAWAL OF REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TIME

By and through undersigned counsel, the City of Gainesville, Gainesville Regional Utilities
(GRU) hereby withdraws its Request for Extension of Time to file a Petition for Administrative
Proceedings in accordance with Florida Administrative Code Rule 62-110.106(4). GRU filed its
request for extension of time until August 27, 2007, in response to the "Intent to [ssue Air Permit”
(Permit No. 0010006-005-AC) for the Deerhaven Generating Station, located in Alachua County,
Florida. The Department of Environmental Prrotection (Department) granted that extension on July
27,2007.

This withdrawal is conditioned upon changes agreed to between the Department and GRU.
which are reflected in the document attached as Exhibit A, as well as an extension of the permits

expiration date to September 30, 2011.

Respectfully submitted this iQipday of August, 2007.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS, P.A.




Angela Morrison Uhland
Fla. Bar No. 0855766
123 South Calhoun Street
Post Office Box 6526
Tallahassee, FL 32314
(850) 222-7500

Attorney for CITY OF GAINESVILLE,
GAINESVILLE REGIONAL UTILITIES (GRU)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing has been furnished to the following by
! } .
U.S. Mail on this/Q_“’Jday of August, 2007:

Patricia Comer, Esquire

Office of General Counsel

Department of Environmental Protection
3900 Commonwealth Blvd.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-2600

Trina Vielhauer, Chief

Bureau of Air Regulation

Department of Environmental Protection
2600 Blair Stone Road

Tallahassee, FL. 32399-2400

Syed Arif

Bureau of Air Regulation

Department of Environmental Protection
2600 Blair Stone Road

Tallahassee, FL. 32399-2400

[l i

/ Atton*{ey ,

(s
%

[R]



PERMITTEE

City of Gainesville Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU) Facility ID No.: 0010006

Post Office Box 147117 (Ai132) Project: Installation of Air Quality
Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117 Control Systems
Authorized Representative: Expires: September 30, 2009

Ms. Karen Alford, Interim Assistant General Manager

Energy Supply

PROJECT AND LOCATION

This permit authorizes the installation of selective catalytic reduction (SCR), circulating dry scrubber (CDS) and baghouse
systems on existing Unit 2 at the Deerhaven Generating Station. The Deerhaven Generating Station is an existing electrical
generating plant (SIC No. 4911) located at 10001 NW 13" Street in Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida. The UTM
coordinates are: Zone |7; 365.7 km E; 3292.6 km N.

STATEMENT OF BASIS

The applicant elects to install the SCR, CDS and baghouse systems to provide full flexibility in implementing the federal
cap and trade program under the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). Because CAIR atfords a regulated facility the flexibility
to evaluate market conditions to determine whether it will install controls, operate existing controls, or purchase allowances
generated by other plants, the Department does not require the installation of this equipment nor its operation except as
needed to comply with the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) in Title 40, Part 60, Subpart D of the Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR). However, the addition of hydrated lime to the flue gas is required when burning compliance
coal (approximately up to 0.8 weight percent sulfur) and when the CDS is not fully operational to ensure there is no
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) significant emission increase of sulturic acid mist (SAM). This construction
permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-
212, 62-296. and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and Title 40, Part 60 of the CFR. The above named
permittee is authorized to modify the facility in accordance with the conditions of this permit and as described in the

application. approved drawings, plans, and other documents on file with the Department of Environmental Protection
(Department).

CONTENTS

Section |. General Information

Section 2. Administrative Requirements
Section 3. Emissions Unit Specific Conditions

Appendix GC.  Construction Permit General Conditions

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida

Joseph Kahn. Director (Date)
Division of Air Resource Management



SECTION 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

FACILITY DESCRIPTION

The City of Gainesville, GRU operates an existing electrical generating plant at the Deerhaven Generating
Station (DGS). This plant consists of two steam boilers (Unit Nos. 1 and 2) and associated steam turbines; a
simple cycle combustion turbine (CT No. 3); two unregulated simple cycle combustion turbines (CT Nos. | and
2); a recirculating cooling water system; storage and handling facilities for coal; brine salt; fly ash and bottom
ash; fuel oil storage tanks; water treatment facilities; a railcar maintenance facility and ancillary equipments.
Boiler No. 2 has a nominal nameplate rating of 251 megawatts (MW), electric. Emission control equipment

currently installed on Boiler No. 2 consists of a hot-side electrostatic precipitator for control of particulate
matter.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This permit authorizes the installation of Air Quality Control Systems (AQCS) on DGS Unit 2 which includes
the SCR, CDS and baghouse systems. The permittee elects to install these controls as part of its plan to comply
with the Clean Air Interstate Rule (Rule 62-296.470(CAIR), F.A.C.) and the Clean Air Mercury Rule (Rule 62-
296.480(CAMR), F.A.C.). Because CAIR affords a regulated facility the flexibility to evaluate market
conditions to determine whether it will install controls, operate existing controls, or purchase allowances
generated by other plants, the Department does not require the installation of this equipment nor its operation,
except as needed to comply with the NSPS in 40 CFR 60, Subpart D.

Installation of the SCR system will result in collateral generation of SAM as particulate matter (PM/PM,o).
There is a potential increase in emissions if the permittee elects not to fully operate the CDS (i.e., with water
injection and ash recirculation), a situation that is only likely to occur when burning low sulfur coal
(approximately up to 0.8 weight percent sulfur). The potential increase of SAM generation is a result of the
oxidation of sulfur dioxide (SO,) to sulfur trioxide (SO;) and the subsequent reaction of SO and water to form
SAM. In the absence of hydrated lime injection when burning low-sulfur coal, there is a potential for increased
emissions of SAM if the CDS and baghouse are not in operation. The permit requires the injection of hydrated
lime to the flue gas when burning low-sulfur coal and when the CDS is not fully operational to ensure there will
be no PSD-significant emissions increase of SAM due to installation of the SCR system on Unit 2. The
hydrated lime will react with SO; to form particulate calcium compounds, which will be collected in the
downstream fabric filter (FF). With the hydrated lime injection in the CDS, there will be no PSD-significant
emissions increases of SAM due to the installation of SCR systems on Unit 2.

The Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by replacing the high- and intermediate- pressure rotor along with
the associated stationary elements. Unit 2 is currently fired with low sulfur eastern bituminous coal. Following
installation and operation of the new controls, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a variety of eastern bituminous
coal blend, including medium sulfur coal (up to 2.5 weight percent sulfur), and still comply with the New
Source Performance Standards in 40 CFR 60, Subpart D. There will be no changes to the existing electrical

generator (i.e., no expansion in steam generating capability) and no increase in maximum heat input to the
boiler or steam flow capability of the turbine.

REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION

Title UI: The existing facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAPs).

Title IV: The existing facility operates units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

Title V: The existing facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.
PSD: The existing facility is a major stationary in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C.

NSPS: The existing facility operates units subject to the New Source Performance Standards of 40 CFR 60.

City of Gainesville. GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project - DGS Unit 2
Page 2 of 9



SECTION 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

. RELEVANT DOCUMENTS

The permit request and additional information received to make it complete are not a part of this permit;
however, the information is listed in the technical evaluation which is issued concurrently with this permit.

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project — DGS Unit 2
Page 3 of 9



SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

1. Permitting Authority: All documents related to applications for permits regarding construction and
. operation shall be submitted to the Bureau of Air Regulation of the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP) at 2600 Blair Stone Road (MS #5505), Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. Copies of all
such documents shall also be sent to the Department’s Northeast District Office.

2. Compliance Authority: All documents related to compliance activities such as reports, tests, and
notifications shall be submitted to Northeast District Office.

3. Applicable Regulations, Forms and Application Procedures: Unless otherwise indicated in this permit, the
construction and operation of the subject emissions unit shall be in accordance with the capacities and
specifications stated in the application. The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403,
F.S.; Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C.; and Title 40, Part 60 of
the CFR, adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The terms used in this permit have specific
meanings as defined in the applicable chapters of the F.A.C. The permittee shall use the applicable forms
listed in Rule 62-210.900. F.A.C. and follow the application procedures in Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. Issuance
of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local
permitting or regulations. [Rules 62-204.800, 62-210.300 and 62-210.900, F.A.C ]

{Note: The capacities and specifications stated in the application are based on preliminary design and the

final design could include minor changes from the capacities and specification listed in the original
application.}

4. New or Additional Conditions: For good cause shown and after notice and an administrative hearing, if
requested, the Department may require the permittee to conform to new or additional conditions. The
Department shall allow the permittee a reasonable time to conform to the new or additional conditions, and
on application of the permittee, the Department may grant additional time. [Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.]

' 5. Modifications: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority upon commencement of construction.
No emissions unit or facility subject to this permit shall be constructed or modified without obtaining an air
construction permit from the Department. Such permit shall be obtained prior to beginning construction or

~ modification, [Rules 62-210.300(1) and 62-212.300(1)(a), F.A.C.]

6. Title V Permit: This permit authorizes modification of the permitted emissions unit and initial operation to
determine compliance with Department rules. A Title V operation permit is required for regular operation
of the permitted emissions unit. The permittee shall apply for a Title V operation permit at least 90 days
prior to expiration of this permit, but no later than 180 days after commencing operation. To apply for a
Title V operation permit, the applicant shall submit the appropriate application form, compliance test
results, and such additional information as the Department may by law require. The application shall be
submitted to the appropriate Permitting Authority with copies to the Compliance Authority. [Rules 62-
4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220, and Chapter 62-213, F. A.C.]

7. Source Obligation: At such time that a particular source or modification becomes a major stationary source
or major modification (as these terms were defined at the time the source obtained the enforceable
limitation) solely by increasing its projected actual emissions, then the requirements of subsections 62-
212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., shall apply to the source or modification as though construction has not
yet commenced on the source or modification. [Rule 62-212.400(12)(c), F.A.C.]

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project — DGS Unit 2
Page 4 of 9



SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

The specific conditions listed in this section apply to the following emission unit:

EMISSION UNIT NO. EMISSION UNIT DESCRIPTION
005 Steam Boiler - Unit 2

Unit 2 is a fossil fuel-fired steam generator with a nominal nameplate rating of 251 MW. Authorized fuels
include pulverized coal, natural gas and/or distillate fuel oils (Nos. | or 2) with emissions exhausted through a
350 feet stack. The maximum heat input to Unit 2 is 2,428 MMBtu/hour. Unit 2 is a dry bottom, wall-fired
boiler with a hot-side electrostatic precipitator to control particulate matter. Unit 2 began commercial operation
in 1981. Opacity, nitrogen oxides (NOx) and SO, emissions are continuously monitored.

PREVIOUS APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

I. Permit Determination: This permit authorizes the installation of SCR, CDS and baghouse systems for Unit
2. Unless otherwise specified, these conditions are in addition to all existing applicable permit conditions

and regulatory requirements specified in the current Title V Operation Permit (No. 0010006-003-AV).
[Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

AUTHORIZED WORK

2. SCR System: The permittee is authorized to construct, tune, operate and maintain a new SCR system for
Unit 2 to reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) as described in the application. In general, the SCR
system will include the following equipment: urea to ammonia conversion system; ammonia flow control
unit; ammonia injection grid; two active layers of catalyst with space provided for a future layer; SCR
reactor chamber; and other ancillary equipment, including a system to add calcium to the fuel for catalyst
preservation. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

3. CDS System: The permittee is authorized to install a new CDS system for Unit 2 to reduce emissions of
SO; and SO;. The new system will be installed downstream of the existing Unit 2 induced draft fan. In
general, the system includes the CDS vessel, adsorbent preparation and injection, water injection; product
recycle injection and a flue gas recycle system. SO, will be measured at the inlet of the CDS reactor; outlet
SO, will be measured at the stack. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

4. Baghouse System: The permittee is authorized to install one pulse-jet baghouse containing ten
compartments. The baghouse will be installed between the outlet of the CDS and inlet of the booster fans.
The design outlet grain loading is 0.0 grains per dry standard cubic foot (gr/dscf) at 3% oxygen. The
design gas flow rate through the baghouse is 554,250 dscf/min. The design air-to-cloth ratio is 4:1. An

automatic cleaning system is utilized to dislodge the filter cake. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR)
and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

5. Circumvention: No person shall circumvent any air pollution control device, or allow the emission of air
pollutants without the applicable air pollution control device operating properly. Operation of the SCR and
CDS is not required by this permit. As necessary, the permittee shall operate the hydrated lime addition
system and baghouse for SAM emissions control to ensure the project does not result in a PSD-significant
emissions increase (7 tons/year) of sulfuric acid mist emissions above baseline actual emissions (49
tons/year). {Rules 62-210.650 and 62-212.400(12), F.A.C.]

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

6. Annual SAM Emissions Projections: The permittee projected that the increase in actual annual emissions
of SAM due to the project would not exceed the PSD significance level (i.e., 7 tons/year). The permittee

City of Gainesville. GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project — DGS Unit 2
Page 5 of 9



SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

shall demonstrate this by compiling and submitting the reports required by this permit. [Application; and
Rules 62-212.300 and 62-210.370, F.A.C.]

{Permitting Note: The baseline actual emission of SAM is 49 tons/year. }

Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: On an annual basis, the permittee must demonstrate
that SAM emissions as a result of this project do not exceed 7 tons per year above the baseline actual
emissions of 49 tons per year. The permittee shall add hydrated lime at a frequency and injection rate for
SAM control to satisfy this requirement. The permittee will adjust the hydrated lime flow rate for the given

set of operating conditions based on the most recent correlation curves in a performance test. [Rules 62-
4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

Ammonia Slip: Ammonia slip measured at the stack downstream of all emission control systems shall not

exceed 5 parts per million by volume (ppmv) as demonstrated by an annual test. [Design; and Rule 62-
4.070(3), F.A.C|

EMISSIONS PERFORMANCE TESTING

9.

Baseline Performance Test — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The permittee shall
conduct a baseline performance test at permitted capacity to evaluate SAM emissions. A baseline
performance test shall be conducted using current coal (0.8 weight percent sulfur). The baseline
performance test shall be conducted prior to the installation of the AQCS. The permittee shall submit a test
notification to the appropriate authorities at least 15 days prior to the test and shall submit a test report
summarizing the emission test and results within 45 days of the completion of the performance test.

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

. Post- AQCS Construction Performance Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The

permittee shall conduct post-AQCS performance tests to evaluate potential changes in SAM emissions and
demonstrate that there is no PSD-significant emissions increase of SAM as a result of the installation of the
AQCS. Post- AQCS construction tests shall evaluate both current (up to 0.8 weight percent) and higher
sulfur (up to 2.5 weight percent) coals.

a. No later than November 30, 2008, the permittee shall submit to the Department for review and approval
a SAM Evaluation and Testing Plan which shall include as a minimum the following:

¢ Evaluation of factors affecting SAM generation (e. g fuel type, emission control devices,
operating conditions, etc.)

e Determination of the SO to SO; conversion rates across the SCR.

e Evaluation of the hydrated lime injection rates required to mitigate SAM emissions.
o Testing protocol (e.g., methods, number of runs, operating scenarios, annual tests, etc.)
b. Testing shall be conducted no later than 180 days after the first flue gas flow through the entire AQCS.

c. At least 15 days prior to initiating the performance tests, the permiittee shall submit a test notification,
preliminary test schedule and test protocol to the Bureau of Air Regulation and the Compliance
Authority.

d. Within 45 days following the last test run conducted, the permittee shall provide a report summarizing
the emissions tests and results. All SAM emissions test data shall be provided with this report.

e. Within 45 days following the submittal of the emissions test report and no later than 90 days following
the last test run conducted, the permittee shall submit a project report summarizing operating conditions

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project - DGS Unit 2

Page 6 of 9



SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

and providing details for calculating and estimating the SAM emissions rate based on the level of lime
injection and operating conditions.

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.|

. Annual Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: During each federal fiscal year, the

permittee shall conduct performance tests to determine the SAM emission rates and adjust the lime
injection rates as necessary. The Department may re-evaluate this requirement based on the results of the

initial testing. The protocol for the performance tests shall be submitted to the Department no later than
November 30, 2008. |Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)e), F.A.C.)

. Test Notification: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority in writing at least |5 days prior to

any required tests. [Rule 62-297.310(7)a)9, F.A.C.|

. Test Methods: Required tests shall be performed in accordance with the following reference methods or

other Department approved methods upon request by permittee:

EPA Method | Description of Method and Comments

1-4 Traverse Points, Velocity and Flow Rate, Gas Analysis, and Moisture Content
8 Determination of Sulfuric Acid Mist Emissions
19 Determination of Sulfur Dioxide Removal Efficiency and Particulate Matter, Sulfur

Dioxide, and Nitrogen Oxides Emission Rates (Optional F-factor method may be used to
determine flow rate and gas analysis to calculate mass emissions in lieu of Methods 1-4.)

Compliance with the sulfuric acid mist emissions can also be determined with the National Council for Air
and Stream Improvement (NCASI) Method 8A. Compliance with the ammonia slip limit shall be
determined annually using EPA conditional test method (CTM-027), EPA method 320, or other methods
approved by the Department. |Rules 62-204.800 and 62-297.100, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60, Appendix A]

STARTUP, SHUTDOWN, AND MALFUNCTION EMISSIONS

14. Startup, Shutdown and Malfunction: Operations during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction shall
not constitute representative conditions for the purpose of a performance test nor shall emissions in excess
of the level of the applicable emission limit during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction be
considered a violation of the applicable emission limit unless otherwise specified in the applicable standard.
[Rule 40 CFR 60.8(c)]

{Permitting Note: Boiler startup or shutdown may exceed two hours due to operational constraints of the
control equipment, which include:
a. During boiler startup or shutdown, the SCR system is fully functional once the boiler flue gas
temperature at the SCR reactor inlet stabilizes to 613°F or greater.
b. During boiler startup and shutdown, the CDS system is fully functional once the following sequential
criteria are met:
o The flue gas flow rate at the outlet of the baghouse stabilizes at approximately 1.5 million pounds
per hour or greater for a minimum of 6 hours;
e The boiler flue gas temperature at the CDS inlet stabilizes at 230°F or greater; and
e  Water has been injected into the reactor for a minimum of 2 hours. }

15. Emissions: The permittee at all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction shall, to the
extent practicable, maintain and operate any affected facility including associated air pollution control

City ot Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC

Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project — DGS Unit 2
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SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

equipment in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practice for minimizing emissions.
Determination of whether acceptable operating and maintenance procedures are being used will be based on
information available to the Department which may include, but is not limited to, monitoring results,
opacity observations, review of operating and maintenance procedures, and inspection of the facility.

[Rule 40 CER 60.11(d)}

NOTIFICATIONS, RECORDS AND REPORTS

16. Test Reports: The permittee shall prepare and submit reports for all required tests in accordance with the
requirements specified in Rule 62-297.310, F.A.C. For each sulfuric acid mist test run, the report shall also
~indicate the lime injection rate for SAM emissions control, unit {oad, and unit heat input rate. |Rule 62-

297.310(8), F.A.C.]

I 7. Operational Data: The permittee shall monitor and record the hydrated lime consumption rate for SAM
emissions control when the unit is combusting compliance coal (approximately up to 0.8 weight percent
sulfur) and the CDS is not fully operational. [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

18. Annual SAM Emissions Reports: In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., the permittee shall
comply with the following monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions:

a. The permittee shall evaluate the SAM emissions using the most reliable information available. On a
calendar year basis, the permittee shall calculate and maintain a record of the annual emissions (tons
per year) for a period of 5 years following resumption of regular operations after completing
construction on the unit’s emission control system. Emissions shall be computed in accordance with
Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C.

b. Within 60 days after each calendar year following completion of construction, the permittee shall report
to the Compliance Authority the annual emissions for the unit for the preceding calendar year. The
report shall contain the following:

a. Name, address and telephone number of the owner or operator of the major stationary source;

b. Annual emissions as calculated pursuant to subparagraph 62-212.300(1)e)1., F.A.C;

c. If the emissions differ from the preconstruction projection, an explanation as to why there is a
difference; and

d. Any other information that the owner or operator wishes to include in the report.

c. The information required to be documented and maintained shall be submitted to the Compliance
Authority, where it will be available for review to the general public.

[Rule 62-212.300(1)e), F.A.C.]

9. SAM Emissions Computation and Reporting: The permittee shall compute SAM emissions in accordance
with the following requirements.

a. For each year of reporting required, emissions shall be computed based on the controlled and
uncontrolled emissions factors determined during the required annual emissions test. The owner or
operator shall not compute emissions by converting an emission factor to pounds per hour and then
multiplying by hours of operation, unless the owner or operator demonstrates that such computation is
the most accurate method available.

b. With appropriate supporting test data, multiple emission factors may be used as necessary to account
for variations in emission rate associated with variations in the emissions unit’s operating rate or
operating conditions during the period over which emissions are computed.

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC

Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project - DGS Unit 2
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SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

c. The permittee shall compute emissions by multiplying the appropriate controiled or uncontrolled
. emission factor by the annual heat input rate for the period over which the emissions are computed.
The uncontrolled-emissions factor shall be used if the minimum lime injection rate established for the

latest test is not met.

d. The permittee shall retain a copy of all records used to compute emissions pursuant to this rule for a
period of five years from the date on which such emissions information is submitted to the Department
or Compliance Authority for any regulatory purpose.

[Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C.|

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project - DGS Unit 2
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STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

CITY OF GAINESVILLE — GAINESVILLE
REGIONAL UTILITIES, DEERHAVEN

GENERATING STATION,
Petitioner,
OGC No. 07-1263
V. DEP Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION,
Respondent.

/

ORDER GRANTING REQUEST FOR
EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE PETITION FOR HEARING

This cause has come before the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP)
upon receipt of a request made by Petitioner, City of Gainesville — Gainesville Regional Utilities,
Deerhaven Generating Station, to grant an extension of time to file a petition for administrative
hearing to allow time to discuss with FDEP several specific permit conditions for its facility in
Alachua County, Florida. Because the request shows good cause for the extension of time,

'T IS ORDERED:

The request for an extension of time to file a petition for administrative proceeding is
granted. Petitioner shall have until August 27, 2007, to file a petition in this matter. Filing shall
be complete upon receipt by the Office of General Counsel, Department of Environmental
Protection, 3800 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.

DONE AND ORDERED on this may of July, 2007, in Tallahassee, Florida.

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Ope? (Wreak™

\';bK CHISOLM, Deputy General Counsel

00 Commonweaith Boulevard - MS 35
ilahassee, Fiorida 32399-3000
850/245-2242 facsimile 850/245-2302



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ‘

| HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and cprrect copy of the foregoing has been fumished via
vV u.s. Mail\__/ facsimile __ only, this ;;;Z ﬁ/'of July, 2007, to:

Angela Morrison Uhland Facsimile: 850/224-8551
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.

Post Office Box 6526

Tallahassee, FL 32314

~ STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
OF ENVAIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Patricia E. Comer, KsSistant General Cotinsel
FL Bar 0224146

3900 Commonwealth Boulevard - MS 35
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000
850/245-2288 facsimile 850/245-2302

with courtesy copies via electronic mail to:

Trina Vielhauer, Chief — FDEP, BAR
Syed Arif, Project Engineer — FDEP, BAR




Gibson, Victoria

From: Miskelley, Valerie
‘ent: Friday, July 27, 2007 1:13 PM
o: Gibson, Victoria; Arif, Syed
Subject: GRU Deerhaven 0010006-005-AC
Attachments: Ord Granting City of Gainesville - GRU 07-1263.pdf

Syed and Vickie,
Here is the order granting on OGC No. 07-1263 for your files. Let me know if you need anything else.

Ord Granting City of
Gainesvil...

Thanks,

Valerie L. Miskelley

Office of General Counsel

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
3900 Commonwealth Bivd. - MS 35

Talahassee, Florida 32399-3000

email: Valerie.Miskelley@dep.state.fl.us
850/245-2260 SC/205-2250

N (((C I (T S I e

Please Note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Electronic communications regarding state business are public records available to the public upon
quest. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.



Gibson, Victoria

From: Miskelley, Valerie
ent: Friday, July 27, 2007 10:50 AM
‘o: Gibson, Victoria
Subject: RE: GRU - Deerhaven 0010006-005-AC

this one and the order for smurfit 015-av are going out this morning...i will email it to ydu shortly!

From: Gibson, Victoria

Sent: Friday, July 27, 2007 10:37 AM

To: Miskelley, Valerie

Subject: GRU - Deerhaven 0010006-005-AC
Hi,

Please give me a status update on this order to grant.

Thanks.
Vickie

Victoria Gibson, Administrative Secretary for
Trina Vielhauer, Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation
Department of Air Resource Management
ictoria.gibson@dep.state.fl.us
50-921-9504 fax 850-921-9533



Message Page 1 of 2

Gibson, Victoria

From: Miskelley, Valerie

Sent: Friday, July 20, 2007 3:33 PM

To: Gibson, Victoria

Subject: RE: GRU - Deerhaven Generating Station - AC Permit NO. 0010006-005-AC

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Red

Vickie,
I was finally got this case. I have drafted the order granting and it is in Jack's box. I will email
it to you as soon as it is signed. »

Thanks,
Valerie

...and in case you hadn't heard...next Friday is my last day with the Department. I accepted a
position with the Fla Assoc of Counties. It has been great working with you!!!

From: Gibson, Victoria

‘Sent: Monday, July 16, 2007 1:53 PM

To: Koerner, Jeff

Cc: Comer, Patricia; Miskelley, Valerie

Subject: RE: GRU - Deerhaven Generating Station - AC Permit NO. 0010006-005-AC
Thank you. | will forward this on to Pat Comer and her assistant, Valerie Miskelley.

Vickie

From: Koerner, Jeff

Sent: Monday, July 16, 2007 1:47 PM

To: Gibson, Victoria

Cc: Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: GRU - Deerhaven Generating Station - AC Permit NO. 0010006-005-AC

FYI ...

Jeff

From: Arif, Syed

Sent: Wednesday, July 11, 2007 1:23 PM

To: Jonynas, Yolanta E

Cc: Koerner, Jeff

Subject: RE: GRU - Deerhaven Generating Station - AC Permit NO. 0010006-005-AC

7/24/2007



Message Page 2 of 2

Yolanta,

We don’t have any objections in your filing an extension of time. | thought you needed this permilt ASAP.
Normally the extension is for 30 days but if you need 45 days, | don't have a problem with it and neither
does Jeff.

Syed

From: Jonynas, Yolanta E [mailto:JONYNASYE@gru.com]

Sent: Wednesday, July 11, 2007 10:30 AM

To: Koerner, Jeff; Arif, Syed

Cc: Angela Morrison Uhland

Subject: GRU - Deerhaven Generating Station - AC Permit NO. 0010006-005-AC
Importance: High

Jeff and Syed, we are going to need to file for an extension of time (45 days) for filing for an administrative
hearing. Do you have any objection to this? Thanks.

7/24/2007



THE STATE OF FLORIDA i WL 12 100
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION| -

In the Matter of an

Application for Air Construction Permit by: OGC No.

City of Gainesville Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS)
Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU) Facility ID No. 0010005

Post Office Box 147117 (A132) Draft Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville, FL 32614-7117 Alachua County

REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF TIME

By and through undersigned counsel, the City of Gainesville, Gainesville Regional Utilities
(GRU) hereby requests, pursuant to Florida Administrative Code Rule 62-110.106(4), an extension
of time to and including August 27, 2007, in which to file a Petition for Administrative Proceedings
in the above-styled matter. As good cause for granting this request, GRU states the following:

1. On or about June 29, 2007, GRU received from the Department of Environmental
Protection (Department) a Technica: Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, a Proposed Draft
Permit, and a Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit (Permit No. 0010006-005-AC) for the
Deerhaven Generating Station located in Alachua County, Florida.

2. The draft permit contains several provisions that warrant clarification or correction.

3. Representatives of GRU will correspond with staff of the Deparunent's Bureau of
Air Regulation in an effort to resolve a:l 1ssues.

4. This request is filed simply as a protective measure to avoid waiver of GRU's right
to challenge certain conditions contained in the Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Grant of this
request will not prejudice either party, but will further their mutual interest and likely avoid the
need to file a petition and proceed to a formal administrative hearing.

5. Counsel for GRU has attempted without success to contact Patricia Comer with the

Department’s Office of General Counsel regarding this request.




6. GRU representatives have contacted Syed Arif with the Department’s Bureau of Air
Regulation, and he has no objection to the Request for Extension.

WHEREFORE, GRU respectfully requests that the time for filing a Petition for
Admin‘istrative Proceedings with regard to the above-referenced Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination, Proposed Draft Permit, and Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit
(Permit No. 0010006-005-AC) be formally extended to and including August 27, 2007. If the
Department dentes this request, GRU fequests the opponunity to file a Petition for Administrative
Proceedings within 10 days of such denial. .

Respectfully submitted this 12" day of July, 2007.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS, PA.

Angela M 1son Uhl
Fla. Bar No. 0855766
123 South Calhoun Stregt
Post Office Box 6526

Tallahassee, FLL 32314
(850) 222-7500

Attorney for CITY OF GAINESVILLE;
GAINESVILLE REGIONAL UTILITIES (GRU)




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

IHEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing has been furnished to the following by

U.S. Mail on this 12" day of July, 2007:

265101

Patricia Comer, Esquire
Office of General Counsel
Department of Environmental Protection

- 3900 Commonwealth Blvd.

Tallahassee, FL. 32399-2600

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

e T [

Attgrney



Gibson, Victoria

. From: Gibson, Victoria
‘ent: Thursday, July 12, 2007 3:55 PM
o: Koerner, Jeff
Subject: FW: Request for Extension of Time rec'd. - 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville (Gainesville

Regional Utilities)

Attachments: Di4700707121547A.PDF

Crandall, Lea

Thursday, July 12, 2007 3:51 PM

Gibson, Victoria; Arif, Syed

FW: Request for Extension of Time rec'd. - 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville (Gainesville Regional Utilities)

Di4700707121547A
.PDF (531 KB)

Lea Crandall
Agency Clerk
Department of Environmental Protection
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000

‘hone: (850) 245-2212 SC: 205-2212
Fax: (850) 245-2303

From: Crandall, Lea

Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2007 2:45 PM

To: Chisolm, Jack; Brown, Lisa L.; Gibson, Victoria; Arif, Syed .

Subject: Request for Extension of Time rec'd. - 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville (Gainesville Regional Utilities)

FYI, a Request for Extension of Time was rec'd. today re: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville (Gainesville Regional
Utilities).

Thanks,
Lea

- Lea Crandall
Agency Clerk
Department of Environmental Protection
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000
Phone: (850) 245-2212 SC: 205-2212
Fax: (850)245-2303
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STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE OF FINAL PERMIT
In the Matter of an
Application for Air Permit by:
Ms. Karen Alford Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville Regional Utilities ' Deerhaven Generating Station
Post Office Box 147117 (A132) _ Alachua County

Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117

Enclosed is the Final Permit which authorizes the installation of selective catalytic reduction, circulating dry scrubber
and baghouse systems. The proposed work will be conducted on the existing Unit 2 at the Deerhaven Generating
Station, which is located in Alachua County at 10001 NW 13" Street in Gainesville, Florida. As noted in the attached
Final Determination, changes and revisions were made to the draft permit. This permit is issued pursuant to Chapter
403, Florida Statutes.

Any party to this order (permit) has the right to seek judicial review of the permit pursuant to Section 120.68 of the
Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal pursuant to Rule 9.110, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the
Clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail Station #35, 3900
Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal
accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal. The notice must be filed
within 30 days after this order is filed with the Clerk of the Department.

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.
Trina L. Vielhauer, Chief

Bureau of Air Regulation

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Notice of Final Permit (including the
Final Permit and Final determinatign) and all copies were sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested
before the close of business on to the persons listed below:

Karen Alford, GRU (alfordkc@grulcom

Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU (jonynasye{@gru.com)

Jim Little, EPA (little.james@epa.gov)

Kathleen Forney, EPA (forney.kathleen{epa.gov)

D. Morse, NPS (dee_morse(@nps.gov)

Chris Kirts, DEP-NED (christopher.kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc. (tdavis(@ectinc.com)
Michael Halpin, OSC (michael. halpin@dep.state.fl.us)

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this
date, pursuant to §120.52, Florida Statutes, with the
designated Depaptgent Clerk, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged.
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PERMITTEE

City of Gainesville

Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU)
Post Office Box 147117 (A132)
Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117

Authorized Representative.

Ms. Karen Alford, Interim Assistant General Manager

Energy Supply

PROJECT AND LOCATION

Florida Department of
Environmental Protection

Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Charlie Crist

Governor

Jeff Kottkamp
Lt. Governor

Michael W. Sole

Secretary

Permit No.:
Facility ID No.:
Project:

Expires:

0010006-005-AC

0010006

Installation of Air Quality
Control Systems

September 30, 2011

This permit authorizes the installation of selective catalytic reduction (SCR), circulating dry scrubber (CDS) and baghouse

systems on existing Unit 2 at the Deerhaven Generating Station. The Deerhaven Generating Station is an existing electrical
generating plant (SIC No. 4911) located at 10001 NW 13™ Street in Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida. The UTM
coordinates are: Zone 17; 365.7 km E; 3292.6 km N.

STATEMENT OF BASIS

The applicant elects to install the SCR, CDS and baghouse systems to provide full flexibility in implementing the federal

cap and trade program under the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). Because CAIR affords a regulated facility the flexibility
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
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) significant emission increase of sulfuric acid mist (SAM). This construction
permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-
212, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and Title 40, Part 60 of the CFR. The above named
permittee is authorized to modify the facility in accordance with the conditions of this permit and as described in the
application, approved drawings, plans, and other documents on file with the Department of Environmental Protection

(Department).

CONTENTS

Section 1. General Information

Section 2. Administrative Requirements
Section 3. Emissions Unit Specific Conditions

Appendix GC.  Construction Permit General Conditions

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida

"ecen. I\ thasan o

Joseph Kahn, Director
Division of Air Resource Management

“More Protection, Less Process”
www. dep.state.fl.us

(Date)

‘6‘/ 13/ 0%



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
simple cycle combustion turbine (CT No. 3); two unregulated simple cycle combustion turbines (CT Nos. 1 and
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
matter. '

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

Installation of the SCR system will result in collateral generation of SAM as particulate matter (PM/PM,,).
There is a potential increase in emissions if the permittee elects not to fully operate the CDS (i.e., with water
injection and ash recirculation), a situation that is only likely to occur when burning low sulfur coal
(approximately up to 0.8 weight percent sulfur). The potential increase of SAM generation is a result of the
oxidation of sulfur dioxide (SO,) to sulfur trioxide (SO;) and the subsequent reaction of SO; and water to form
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
hydrated lime will react with SOj; to form particulate calcium compounds, which will be collected in the
downstream fabric filter (FF). With the hydrated lime injection in the CDS, there will be no PSD-significant
emissions increases of SAM due to the installation of SCR systems on Unit 2.

The Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by replacing the high- and intermediate- pressure rotor along with
the associated stationary elements. Unit 2 is currently fired with low sulfur eastern bituminous ¢oal. Following
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
boiler or steam flow capability of the turbine. :

REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION

Title IIT: The existing facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAPs).

Title IV: The existing facility operates units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

Title V: The existing facility is a Title V méjor source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.
PSD: The existing facility is a major stationary in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. |
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

RELEVANT DOCUMENTS

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
operation shall be submitted to the Bureau of Air Regulation of the Florida Department of Environmental
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
specifications stated in the application. The facility 1s subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403,
F.S.; Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C.; and Title 40, Part 60 of
the CFR, adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The terms used in this permit have specific
meanings as defined in the applicable chapters of the F.A.C. The permittee shall use the applicable forms
listed in Rule 62-210.900, F.A.C. and follow the application procedures in Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. Issuance
of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local
permitting or regulations. [Rules 62-204.800, 62-210.300 and 62-210.900, F.A.C.]

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

5. Modifications: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority upon commencement of construction.
No emissions unit or facility subject to this permit shall be constructed or modified without obtaining an air
construction permit from the Department. Such permit shall be obtained prior to beginning construction or
modification. [Rules 62-210.300(1) and 62-212.300(1)(a), F.A.C.]

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
4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220, and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.] '

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
Deerhaven Generating Station : CAIR/CAMR Project — DGS Unit 2
Page 4 of 9



SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS

The specific conditions listed in this section apply to the following emission unit:

EMISSION UNIT NO. EMISSION UNIT DESCRIPTION
005 _ ' Steam Boiler - Unit 2

Unit 2 is a fossil fuel-fired steam generator with a nominal nameplate rating of 251 MW. Authorized fuels
include pulverized coal, natural gas and/or distillate fuel oils (Nos. 1 or 2) with emissions exhausted through a
350 feet stack. The maximum heat input to Unit 2 is 2,428 MMBtuwhour. Unit 2 is a dry bottom, wall-fired
boiler with a hot-side electrostatic precipitator to control particulate matter. Unit 2 began commercial operation
in 1981. Opacity, nitrogen oxides (NOx) and SO, emissions are continuously monitored.

PREVIOUS APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

1. Permit Determination: This permit authorizes the installation of SCR, CDS and baghouse systems for Unit
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
SO, and SO;. The new system will be installed downstream of the existing Unit 2 induced draft fan. In
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
The design outlet grain loading is 0.01 grains per dry standard cubic foot (gr/dscf) at 3% oxygen. The
design gas flow rate through the baghouse is 554,250 dscf/min. The design air-to-cloth ratio is 4:1. An
automatic cleaning system is utilized to dislodge the filter cake. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR)
and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.] '

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
tons/year). [Rules 62-210.650 and 62-212.400(12), F.A.C.]

PERFORMAN CE REQUIREMENTS

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

{Permitting Note: The baseline actual emission of SAM is 49 tons/year.}

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
4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.] '

Ammonia Slip: Ammonia slip measured at the stack downstream of all emission control systems shall not
exceed 5 parts per million by volume (ppmv) as demonstrated by an annual test. [Design; and Rule 62-
4.070(3), F.A.C]

EMISSIONS PERFORMANCE TESTING

9.

10.

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

Post- AQCS Construction Performance Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The
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

e Evaluation of factors affecting SAM generation (e.g., fuel type, emission control devices,
operating conditions, etc.)

e Determination of the SO, to SO; conversion rates across the SCR.
e Evaluation of the hydrated lime injection rates required to mitigate SAM emissions.
e Testing protocol (e.g., methods, number of runs, operating scenarios, annual tests, etc.)
b. Testing shall be conducted no later than 180 days after the first flue gas flow through the entire AQCS.

c. Atleast 15 days prior to initiating the performance tests, the permittee shall submit a test notification,
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

11. Annual Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: During each federal fiscal year, the
permittee shall conduct performance tests to determine the SAM emission rates and adjust the lime
injection rates as necessary. The Department may re-evaluate this requirement based on the results of the
initial testing. The protocol for the performance tests shall be submitted to the Department no later than
November 30, 2008. [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

12. Test Notification: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority in writing at least 15 days prior to
any required tests. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)9, F.A.C.]

13. Test Methods: Required tests shall be performed in accordance with the following reference methods or
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
19 . | Determination of Sulfur Dioxide Removal Efficiency and Particulate Matter, Sulfur

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
approved by the Department. [Rules 62-204.800 and 62-297.100, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60, Appendix A]

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

¢ The flue gas flow rate at the outlet of the baghouse stabilizes at approximately 1.5 million pounds
per hour or greater for a minimum of 6 hours; :

e The boiler flue gas temperature at the CDS inlet stabilizes at 230°F or greater; and
e Water has been injected into the reactor for a minimum of 2 hours.}

15. Emissions: The permittee at all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction shall, to the |
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

[Rule 40 CFR 60.11(d)]
NOTIFICATIONS, RECORDS AND REPORTS

16. Test Reports: The permittee shall prepare and submit reports for all required tests in accordance with the
requirements specified in Rule 62-297.310, F.A.C. For each sulfuric acid mist test run, the report shall also
indicate the lime injection rate for SAM emissions control, unit load, and unit heat input rate. [Rule 62-
297.310(8), F.A.C.]

17. Operational Data: The permittee shall monitor and record the hydrated lime consumption rate for SAM
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
b. Annual emissions as calculated pursuant to subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1., F.A.C;

c. If the emissions differ from the preconstruction projection, an explanation as to why there is a
difference; and

d. Any other information that the owner or operator wishes to include in the report.

¢. The information required to be documented and maintained shall be submitted to the Compliance
Authority, where it will be available for review to the general public.

[Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C]

19. SAM Emissions Computation and Reporting: The permittee shall compute SAM emissions in accordance
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
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c. The permittee shall compute emissions by multiplying the appropriate controlled or uncontrolled
emission factor by the annual heat input rate for the period over which the emissions are computed.
The uncontrolled emissions factor shall be used if the minimum lime injection rate established for the
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

[Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C.]
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APPENDIX GC
GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS [F.A.C. 62-4.160]

The terms, conditions, requirements, limitations; and restrictions set forth in this permit

are "Permit Conditions" and are binding and enforceable pursuant to sections 403.161, 403.727, or
403.859 through 403.861, F.S. The permittee is placed on notice that the Department will review this
permit periodically and may initiate enforcement action for any violation of these conditions.

This permit is valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and

indicated in the approved drawings or exhibits. Any unauthorized deviation from the approved.
drawings, exhibits, specifications, or conditions of this permit may constitute grounds for revocation and
enforcement action by the Department.

As provided in Subsections 403.087(6) and 403.722(5), F.S. the issuance of this permit

does not convey any vested rights or any exclusive privileges. Neither does it authorize any injury to
public or private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of federal, state or
local laws or regulations. This permit is not a waiver of or approval of any other Department permit that
may be required for other aspects of the total project which are not addressed in the permit.

This permit conveys no title to land or water, does not constitute State recognition or acknowledgement
of title, and does not constitute authority for the use of submerged lands unless herein provided and the
necessary title or leasehold interests have been obtained from the State. Only the Trustees of the
Internal Improvement Trust Fund may express State opinion as to title.

This permit does not relieve the permittee from liability for harm or injury to human health or welfare,
animal, or plant life, or property caused by the construction or operation of this permitted source, or
from penalties therefore; nor does it allow the permittee to cause pollution in contravention of Florida
Statutes and Department rules, unless specifically authorized by an order from the Department.

The permittee shall properly operate and maintain the facility and systems of treatment and control (and
related appurtenances) that are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the
conditions of this permit, as required by Department rules. This provision includes the operation of
backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems when necessary to achieve compliance with the
conditions of the permit and when required by Department rules.

The permittee, by accepting this permit, specifically agrees to allow authorized Department personnel,
upon presentation of credentials or other documents as may be required by law and at a reasonable time,
access to the premises, where the permitted activity is located or conducted to:
a. Have access to and copy any records that must be kept under the conditions of the permit;
b. Inspect the facility, equipment, practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit;
and ‘
c. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location reasonably necessary to assure
compliance with this permit or Department rules.
Reasonable time may depend on the nature of the concern being investigated.

If, for any reason, the permittee does not comply with or will be unable to comply with any condition or
limitation specified in this permit, the permittee shall immediately provide the Department with the
following information:
a. adescription of and cause of non-compliance; and
b. the period of noncompliance, including dates and times; or, if not corrected, the anticipated time
the non-compliance is expected to continue, and steps being taken to reduce, eliminate, and
prevent recurrence of the non-compliance.
The permittee shall be responsible for any and all damages which may result and may be
subject to enforcement action by the Department for penalties or for revocation of this permit.
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GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS [F.A.C. 62-4.160]

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

In accepting this permit, the permittee understands and agrees that all records, notes, monitoring data
and other information relating to the construction or operation of this permitted source which are
submitted to the Department may be used by the Department as evidence in any enforcement case
involving the permitted source arising under the Florida Statutes or Department rules, except where
such use is prescribed by sections 403.73 and 403.111, F.S. Such evidence shall only be used to the
extent it is consistent with the Florida Rules of civil Procedure and appropriate evidentiary rules.

The permittee agrees to comply with changes in Department rules and F.S. after a reasonable time for
compliance, provided, however, the permittee does not waive any other rights granted by Florida
statutes or Department rules.

This permit is transferable only upon Department approval in accordance with Rules 62-4.120, as
applicable. The permittee shall be liable for any non-compliance of the permitted activity until the
transfer is approved by the Department.

This permit or a copy thereof shall be kept at the work site of the permitted activity.

This permit also constitutes:

() Determination of Best Available Control Technology (BACT)
() Determination of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)
() Compliance with New Source Performance Standards (NSPS)

The permittee shall comply with the following:

a. Upon request, the permittee shall furnish all records and plans required under Department rules.
During enforcement actions, the retention period for all records will be extended automatically
unless otherwise stipulated by the Department.

b. The permittee shall hold at the facility or other location designated by this permit records of all
monitoring information (including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip
chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation) required by the permit, copies of
all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the application for
this permit. These materials shall be retained at least three years from the date of the sample,
measurement, report, or application unless otherwise specified by Department rule.

c. Records of monitoring information shall include:

— the date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

— the person responsible for performing the sampling or measurements;
— the dates analyses were performed,

— the person responsible for performing the analyses;

— the analytical techniques or methods used; and

— the results of such analyses.

When requested by the Department, the permittee shall within a reasonable time furnish any information
required by law, which is needed to determine compliance with the permit. If the permittee becomes
aware that relevant facts were not submitted or were incorrect in the permit application or in any report
to the Department, such facts or information shall be corrected promptly. '
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

1. APPLICATION INFORMATION

APPLICANT

City of Gainesville

Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU)
P.O. Box 147117 (A132)
Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117

Authorized Representative: Ms. Karen Alford, Assistant General Manager — Energy Supply

FACILITY LOCATION

The applicant's facility, Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS) is located at 10001 NW 13th Street,
Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida. UTM coordinates of the site are: Zone 17, 367.70 km E and
3292.60 km N. This location is approximately 80 km from the nearest Class I area, the Okefenokee
Wilderness Area. _

The facility consists of two steam boilers (Units No. 1 and 2) and associated steam turbines, a simple
cycle combustion turbine (CT No. 3), two unregulated simple cycle combustion turbines (CT Nos. 1
and 2), a recirculating cooling water system, storage and handling facilities for coal, brine salt, fly ash
and bottom ash, fuel oil storage tanks, water treatment facilities, a railcar maintenance facility and
ancillary support equipment.

Emission control equipment presently installed on Unit 2 consists of a hot-side electrostatic
precipitator for control of particulate matter.

The standard industrial classification (SIC) code for the power plant 1s Major Group No. 49, Industry
Group No. 4911.

REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION

Because potential emissions of at least one regulated pollutant exceed 100 tons per year, the existing
facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 62-213, Florida
Administrative Code (F.A.C.). Regulated pollutants include pollutants such as carbon monoxide (CO),
nitrogen oxides (NOx), particulate matter (PM/PM,,), sulfur dioxide (SO;), and volatile organic
compounds (VOC). ‘

The existing facility is major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).
The facility operates emissions units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

The facility 1s considered a “fossil fuel fired steam electric plant of more than 250 million BTU per
hour of heat input”. This facility is one of the 28 source categories with the lower applicability
threshold of 100 tons per year with respect to the Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C. Potential emissions of at
least one regulated pollutant exceed 100 tons per year. Therefore, the facility is classified as a
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)-major source.

Unit 2 and CT No. 3 were certified pursuant to Electrical Power Plant Siting in accordance with
Chapter 62-17, F.A.C. and Chapter 403, Part I, Florida Statutes (F.S.).
MODIFICATION REQUEST

GRU submitted an application for a minor source air construction permit to retrofit DGS Unit 2 with
air quality control systems (AQCS) as one means of complying with the requirements of EPA’s Clean

GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) and the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) as implemented by the
Departmient in Rules 62-296.470 and 62-296.480, F.A.C., respectively. The AQCS planned for DGS
Unit 2 includes the following:

e Selective catalytic reduction (SCR) system to reduce NOx emissions.
e A circulating dry scrubber (CDS) to reduce SO, emissions.
¢ Baghouse (fabric filter) to reduce PM emissions. The baghouse is an integral part of the CDS.

¢ Ancillary support equipment including new material (urea, lime and CDS by-product)
handling and storage. ‘

These emission control systems will also have the co-benefit of controlling mercury (Hg), hydrogen
chloride (HCI), hydrogen fluoride (HF) and sulfuric acid mist (SAM) emissions. Provisions have béen
made in the design of the AQCS for activated carbon injection in the future if needed for additional Hg
control. The primary purpose of the project is to reduce emissions of SO,, NOx, particulate matter and
Hg (through co-benefits) to assist with CAIR and CAMR. While the addition of SCR and the CDS
will substantially decrease emissions of NOx and SO,, there is the potential for collateral increases in
the generation of particulate matter (PM) and SAM under certain operating conditions. The potential
increase of SAM emissions is a result of the oxidation of SO, to sulfur trioxide (SO;) that is emitted as
SAM when burning low-sulfur coal if the CDS system and baghouse are not in operation. SAM
generation will also increase as a result of the proposed higher sulfur coals. Potential increases in
SAM emissions will be minimized through the injection of alkaline reagent (lime) to react with SO,
prior to the baghouse. The reactants, primarily particulate calcium compounds, will be collected in the
fabric filter. The potential increase in PM from the reaction of lime and SO; will be collected in the
fabric filter. There will be no emissions increase over the PSD significant emission rates from the
installation of SCR and CDS.

Concurrent with the AQCS project, the Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by replacing the high-
and intermediate-pressure rotor along with the associated stationary elements. The steam turbine
refurbishment will increase the efficiency of the steam turbine in order to recover power lost due to the
parasitic load associated with the operation of the new AQCS. DGS Unit 2 is currently fired with low
sulfur eastern bituminous coal. There will be no changes to the existing electrical generator (i.e., no
expansion in steam generating capability) and no increase in maximum heat input to the boiler or
steam flow capability of the turbine. :

Following installation and operation of the AQCS, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a variety of eastern
- bituminous coal blend, including medium sulfur coal (up to 2.5 percent sulfur), and still comply with
the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) Subpart D of 40 CFR 60.

REVIEWING AND PROCESS SCHEDULE

02-23-2007: Date of Receipt of Application

03-12-2007:  Department of Environmental Protection’s (DEP’s) 1** Completeness Request
03-30-2007:  Applicant’s response to DEP’s 1¥ Completeness Request

04-23-2007: DEP’s 2™ Completeness Request

05-15-2007:  Applicant’s response to DEP’s 2™ Completeness Request

06-14-2007:  DEP’s 3™ Completeness Request

06-22-2007:  Applicant’s response to DEP’s 3™ Completeness Request Application complete

GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station . CAIR/CAMR Project — Boiler No. 2
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

AQCS DESCRIPTION
Selective Catalytic Reactor

SCR is a process that uses catalyst to promote the conversion of NOx to nitrogen and water in the flue
gas. The conversion occurs between the boiler economizer and the air heaters in a specially designed
ductwork section called the SCR Reactor, which contains the catalyst. Ammonia vapor is injected into
the flue gas upstream of the catalyst and is thoroughly mixed with the flue gas prior to the catalyst. As
the flue gas passes over the catalyst, the nitrogen monoxide and nitrogen dioxide combine with the
ammonia to form nitrogen and water.

Unit 2 will have two SCR reactors. The SCR system will tie into the ductwork at the outlet of the
existing hot-side electrostatic precipitator which is expected to remain in-service after installation of
the AQCS. Ammonia mixer plates and patented Delta Wing mixers will be located within the inlet
duct to the two SCR reactors. The SCR outlet duct will connect to the existing air heaters.

The SCR system is designed so that flue gas flows through it whenever the Unit 2 is operating i.e.,
there are no bypasses. The SCR system contains instrumentation to measure flue gas pressures,
temperatures and NOx concentrations at various locations in the ductwork and reactors. NOx control
is initiated when the temperature at the outlet of the reactor reaches the minimum short-term operating
temperature of 613°F and ammonia flow is started through the injection nozzles.

Unit 2 flue gas will flow through the two layers (space is provided for one future layer) of honeycomb
catalyst. This SCR design provides sufficient space with margin to accommodate plate or honeycomb
type catalyst and meet the performance requirements without using the spare catalyst level. The
catalyst handling system will consist of a catalyst-rotating device, catalyst module lift device (supplied
by the catalyst vendor), electric and manual hoists, and a catalyst cart and rail system. Provisions have
been made in the catalyst design for removable test samples of catalyst material that can be used to
monitor and predict catalyst activity during the catalyst life. The design life of the catalyst is 24,000
hours. '

Gaseous arsenic is one of the predominant catalyst-deactivation mechanisms in coal-fired SCR
applications. Introducing calcium oxide (CaO) to the fuel reduces the gaseous arsenic in the flue gas
and decreases its harmful effect on the catalyst. For the DGS Unit 2 SCR system, an addition rate of
up to 0.51 weight percent CaO per unit weight of coal is expected to reduce the concentration of
arsenic in the flue gas to within acceptable limits, subsequently ensuring the catalyst for a minimum
24,000 hours of operation. The CaO addition will be provided by introducing calcium to the coal
conveyor belt after the primary coal crusher. Currently, this is proposed to be accomplished by 1)
taking off a slipstream of pebble lime from the main pebble lime feed system between the pebble lime
silo and day bins, 2) routing it to a small day tank and 3) feeding it from the day tank onto the coal
conveyor belt.

A permanent sampling grid will be provided above and below the catalyst layers as well as between
layers. These grids will allow sampling of the gas stream from outside the SCR while the unit is
operating. A moveable NO, probe will be provided in each SCR reactor inlet and outlet. A
sampling/NO, analyzer system will be connected to each probe to measure the inlet and outlet NO,
and provide a process control signal for the ammonia injection system.

A urea-based ammonia system will be provided to supply ammonia for the SCR catalyst to remove

'NO,. The system is sized to produce ammonia for two SCR reactors at full boiler load. The urea to
ammonia system will use urea that is dissolved into water and the solution will be injected into heated
in-line hydrolysers (one operating and one spare) at a controlled rate and under conditions to provide,
on demand, the required amount of ammonia. The process will produce a gaseous mixture of
ammonia, carbon dioxide and water vapor, which will be mixed into the flue gas stream.

GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

The Unit 2 SCR control system is designed to achieve a target outlet NO, emission rate of 0.07 pounds
per million British thermal units (Ib/MMBtu) with an ammonia slip concentration of no more than 5.0
parts per million at 3% oxygen (O,). The target SCR controlled NO, emission is ten times lower than
the current NSPS Subpart D limit of 0.7 1b/MMBtu.

Circulating Dry SO, Scrubber

The CDS will be installed down stream of the existing Unit 2 induced draft (ID) fans. This dry flue
gas desulfurization (FGD) system will remove the acidic constituents of the flue gas, primarily SO,
and SO; and to a lesser extent HCI and HF, by reaction with hydrated lime. The system includes the
CDS vessel, hydrated lime preparation and injection, water injection, product recycle injection and a
flue gas recycle system. To assure a high level of SO, removal, a.portion of the solid products exiting
the CDS vessel (i.e., primarily reaction products such as calcium sulfite (CaSOs3), calcium sulfate
(CaS0,), calcium carbonate (CaCOs), calcium chloride (CaCl,), calcium fluoride (CaF,) and inerts)
will be separated from the flue gas in the baghouse and recycled back into the CDS to maintain the
fluidized bed, while the excess material will be pneumatically transported out of the system to a
storage silo. The amount of solids recycled is dependent upon the differential pressure within the CDS
and the volumetric flue gas flow rate.

In order to ensure that the CDS is constantly fluidized, a portion of the flue gas stream downstream of
the two booster fans will be recirculated to the inlet duct of the CDS during Unit 2 boiler operation at
reduced loads. The amount of flue gas recirculated is accomplished through the position of one
recirculation damper.

The CDS is designed so that flue gas flows through it whenever Unit 2 is operating (i.e., there are no
bypasses). It contains instrumentation to measure flue gas pressures, temperatures and SO,
concentrations at various locations in the ductwork.

Unit 2 flue gas will first pass through a group of venturi nozzles. The venturi nozzles serve to
accelerate the flue gas just prior to the injection of high-pressure water, recycled solids, and adsorbent
(i.e., hydrated lime). The reactor acts as a fluidized bed, assuring maximum contact between the
pollutants in the flue gas and the adsorbent solids. The reactor is characterized by high turbulences
and optimal chemical and physical heat and mass transfer rates. Water is added to bring the flue gas
closer to the saturation temperature where the SO, absorption is most effective. The high dust load
leaving the reactor is captured in the baghouse (fabric filter).

Inlet SO, will be measured at the Turbosorp inlet duct before the entrance of the recirculation air;
outlet SO, will be measured at the stack. These measurements will be used to vary the quantity of
fresh hydrated lime that is introduced into the reactor. The final residue of the CDS process is a
wetted product which may be landfilled or potentially re-utilized.

Hydrated lime, Ca(OH),, is the adsorbent used in the CDS process. Pebble lime will be delivered to
the DGS via truck or rail and subsequently hydrated to increase its reactivity before injection in the
CDS. Within the hydrator, the pebble lime is mixed with water and agitated until the hydration
reaction 1s complete. The quantity of fresh hydrated lime that is introduced into the CDS is controlled
by inlet and outlet SO, concentrations.

SAM generation can also be controlled by injecting hydrated lime into the CDS reactor without water
injection and with no ash recirculating provided the baghouse is in-service. The hydrated lime reacts
with SO, (and condensed H,SOy,) to form calcium sulfate salts in the CDS reactor. These will be
collected as particulate calcium compounds by the downstream fabric filter. To evaluate potential
changes in SAM emissions, GRU proposes to conduct both baseline (prior to installation of the
AQCS) and post-AQCS stack testing to demonstrate that there will be no PSD-significant increase in
SAM emissions. Prior to conducting the baseliné and post — AQCS testing GRU will submit for the
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Department’s review and approval a proposed SAM Evaluation and Testing Plan. Baseline stack
testing would be conducted using compliance coal while the post-AQCS testing will evaluate both
compliance and higher sulfur coals.

The DGS Unit 2 CDS control system is designed to achieve a target outlet SO, emission rate of 0.12
1b/MMBtu. The target CDS controlled SOz emission is ten times lower than the currerit NSPS Subpart
D limit of 1.2 Ib/MMBtu.

Baghouse

For particulate removal, one pulse-jet baghouse containing ten (10) compartments will be installed
between the outlet of the CDS and inlet of the booster fans at DGS Unit 2. The fabric filter is designed
so that flue gas flows through it whenever the DGS Unit 2 is operating (i.e., there are no bypasses).

Particulate contained in the raw flue gas as well as reaction products from the CDS are captured in the
pulsejet fabric filter. The pulsejet fabric filter is multi-compartmented, consisting of two parallel trains
with centrally located inlet and outlet plenums. Each parallel train of compartments is served by an air
slide utilizing heated air. The air slide conveys a significant portion of the collected particulate back to
the CDS to maintain a high solids environment and improve overall reagent utilization. The balance of
the collected particulate goes to surge bins (one per air slide) from which it is pneumatically conveyed
to a common CDS product silo equipped with redundant pug mills. The CDS product can then be
loaded into trucks.

Each compartment will generally contain one cylindrical bag bundle with 984 filter bags per bundle.
This equates to a total of approximately 9,840 bags installed; provisions have been made for startup
spares. The design outlet grain loading for the baghouse is 0.01 grains per dry standard cubic foot
(gr/dscf) at 3 percent oxygen. The design gas flow rate through the baghouse is 554,250 dscf/min.
The design air-to-cloth ratio is 4:1 or less with one compartment off-line for maintenance.

The pulsejet fabric filter utilizes bags fabricated from felted PPS fabric that is appropriate for this
application. During operation the incoming particulate laden flue gas passes from outside of each bag
creating a filter cake. With the passage of time, this cake thickens and tends to increase pressure drop.
An automatic cleaning system is utilized to dislodge this filter cake, thus maintaining the desired
overall pressure drop. The motive force for cleaning is pressurized air that is introduced at the top of
the bags, just above the tubesheet. This flow of pressurized air travels counter to the normal flow of
flue gas, thus dislodging the accumulated filter cake and assisting its downward drop into the
collecting hoppers below. Redundant low-pressure positive displacement blowers provide the
pressurized air.

Two 50 percent booster fans are provided for the DGS Unit 2 AQCS. The fans serve two functions.
They provide the additional motive force to overcome the additional pressure drop imposed on the
system by the addition of the SCRs, the CDS, and the baghouse. They also allow the CDS to operate
at reduced Unit 2 loads by recycling a portion of flue gas from the baghouse outlet to the CDS vessel
inlet, thereby keeping the solids bed in the vessel fluidized. The discharge of the booster fans ties into
the ductwork upstream of the stack.

The DGS Unit 2 fabric filter control system is designed to achieve a target outlet filterable PM
emission rate of 0.015 Ib/MMBtu. The target fabric filter controlled PM emission is 6.7 times lower
than the current NSPS Subpart D limit of 0.1 Ib/MMBtu.

Urea, Lime and CDS By-Product Handling and Storage

Reagents associated with the DGS Unit 2 AQCS include urea for the SCR NO, control system and
lime for the SO, CDS control system. Solid materials generated by the DGS Unit 2 AQCS consist of
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

the reaction products (primarily calcium sulfate, calcium sulfite, unreacted lime and inerts) from the
SO, CDS control system. A discussion of the handling and storage of the AQCS reagents and by-
product are provided in the following sections.

Urea

Granular or prilled urea will be delivered by truck and transferred pneumatically directly to the urea to
ammonia dissolver tank where the urea is dissolved in water and then transferred to a storage tank.
The urea/water solution will then be injected into a heated in-line reactor at controlled rates to produce
the appropriate amounts of gaseous ammonia and water vapor. The gaseous ammonia and water vapor
stream will then be injected into the SCR control system. Accordingly, there will be no emissions
associated with the unloading and processing of urea.

Lime

The pebble lime unloading and storage system includes equipment for the pneumatic unloading of
pebble lime from railcars or trucks, transport to a storage silo, and transport from the storage silo into
two pebble lime day bins.

Pebble lime will be received in 100 ton railcars that have bottom hopper outlets. Pebble lime may also
be received in 25 ton maximum capacity trucks that have self-unloading blower systems. A roofed
enclosure with partial walls parallel to the track for wmd and rain protection is provided to protect the
unloading operation from weather exposure. :

For railcar unloading, unloading pans are provided that are clamped to each of three hopper outlet
flanges, and a vacuum conveying system removes pebble lime from the railcar hopper, one hopper
section at a time, into a filter receiver. From the filter receiver, pebble lime is fed through an airlock,
into an airlock hopper, which discharges through another airlock into a positive pressure pneumatic -
conveyor. The vacuum and pressure conveying systems each have two blowers, one blower is spare.

The vacuum conveyor system is also designed to unload two positive pressure pneumatic trucks by
having the truck discharge line connect to the vacuum conveyor line. The unloading building also
provides for one or two self-unloading pressure differential trucks to unload. Two independent
conveying pipes and hoses are provided so both trucks can unload at the same time.

The positive pressure lime conveyor discharges into the pebble lime storage silo. The silo has a
vibrating bin outlet, to assure continuous flow from the silo and has a bin vent to exhaust filtered air
from the silo. From the vibrating bin discharger, pebble lime discharges through a diverter gate to
either of two airlock hoppers. Each hopper feeds an independent positive pressure conveyor that
transports pebble lime into either of two pebble lime day bins, selected by a diverter in the conveying
line. Three 50% blowers are provided.

Both day bins are provided with a bin vent filter. Two conveying pipes with hoses to connect to self-
unloading pressure differential trucks are also provided to use as emergency sources of pebble lime for
the day bins.

Pebble lime from the day bins is conveyed to hydrators that vent into the CDS. The hydrators convert
the pebble lime to hydrated lime with approximately 1 to 2 percent moisture. Hydrated lime is then
conveyed by a positive pressure pneumatic conveyor into the hydrated lime silo. A bin vent filter is
provided for the silo to vent filtered conveying air from the silo. Hydrated lime discharges from the
silo through an airlock, and then into a feeder hopper, which discharges through another airlock into
the conveying line. A positive pressure conveyor transports hydrated lime to the turbo reactor. The .
conveyor has two blowers with one acting as a spare.

PM emission sources associated with the lime handling and storage system consist of: (1) railcar
unloading filter receiver, (2) pebble lime storage silo, (3) two pebble lime day bin silos, and (4) a
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hydrated lime storage silo. The railcar unloading filter receiver and each of the storage silos will be
equipped with bin vent fabric filters designed to achieve.an outlet PM concentration of 0.01 gr/dscf.

CDS Byproduct

A portion of the CDS byproducts will be collected by the CDS fabric filter and pneumatically
transferred to a CDS byproduct storage silo which will be equipped with a bin vent fabric filter
designed to achieve an outlet PM concentration of 0.01 gr/dscf. '

CDS byproduct will then be transferred into two pin paddle mixers where it will be mixed with water
prior to being loaded into trucks. There are no significant PM emissions associated with the wet pin
mixer operation.

Calcium Oxide Addition System for Fuel Conditioning

Calcium oxide in the form of lime or limestone may be added to the coal conveying system, as needed,
to condition the fuel and enhance the life of the SCR catalyst.

2. PROJECT EMISSIONS

The existing DGS is located in an attainment area and is classified as a major facility. A modification
to an existing major facility located an attainment area which has a net emissions increase equal to or
exceeding the significant emission rates listed in Rule 62-210.200(277), F.A.C., will be subject to PSD
review.

For changes to existing emission units, such as the Unit 2 AQCS, the determination of a net emission
increase is based on a comparison of actual-to-projected actual emission rates. A significant emissions
increase of a PSD pollutant will occur if the difference between the baseline actual emissions and
projected actual emissions equals or exceeds the significant emissions rate for that pollutant. As
defined by Rule 62-210.200(36), F.A.C., baseline actual emissions for an existing electric utility steam
generating unit means the average rate, in tons per year, at which the unit actually emitted the pollutant
during any consecutive 24-month period selected by the owner or operator within the 5-year period
immediately preceding the date a complete permit application is received by the Department. Baseline
actual emissions include fugitive emissions, to the extent quantifiable, as well as emissions associated
with startups and shutdowns.

Projected actual emissions, as defined by Rule 62-210.200(248), F.A.C., means the maximum annual
rate, in tons per year, at which an existing emissions unit is projected to emit a PSD pollutant in any
one of the 5 years following the date the unit resumes regular operation after the project, or in any one
of the 10 years following that date, if the project involves increasing the emissions unit's design
capacity or its potential to emit that PSD pollutant and full utilization of the unit would result in a
significant emissions increase or a significant net emissions increase at the major stationary source.
Emissions that the unit could have accommodated during the 24-month baseline period and that are
unrelated to the modification are excluded. As noted previously, there will be no changes to the
existing Unit 2 electrical steam generator and no increase in maximum heat input to the boiler or steam
flow capability of the turbine. 'Since Unit 2 is a base load unit, there will also be no change in Unit 2
utilization (i.e., capacity factor) due to the AQCS project. Accordingly, the applicable period for
determining projected actual emissions for the Unit 2 AQCS project is the 5 years following
installation of the additional emission controls.

The Unit 2 AQCS project will result in substantial reductions in actual emissions of NOx, SO,
PM/PM,,, HF and SAM. The Department has reasonable assurance that PM/PM,, emissions will not
increase due to the existing electrostatic precipitator as well as additional particulate control with the
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baghouse system. No changes are planned to the Unit 2 combustion process. Accordingly, no change
.in actual emissions of combustion related pollutants (i.e., CO and VOC) will result due to the AQCS
project. Baseline actual emissions, projected actual emissions and net change in emissions are listed in
the following tables:

TABLE 1 - PAST ACTUAL EMISSIONS & 2-YEAR AVERAGES

Year SO, NOx PM PM,, H,SO, HF Hg
(tons/yr)  (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
2002 7,147.4 3,315.9 270.6 181.3 41.7 27.0 0.051
2003 7,678.8 3,666.3 308.3 206.5 41.5 29.0 0.044
2004 6,951.7 3,322.8 116.9 78.3 40.2 25.3 0.038
2005 8,042.9 3,932.5 96.9 64.9 51.6 33.0 0.025
2006 8,119.3 3691.9 151.0 101.2 46.7 299 0.045
02-03 N/A N/A 289.4 193.9 N/A N/A N/A
Average
05-06 8,081.1 3812.2 N/A | NA 49.2 314 0.035
Average

TABLE 2 - PROJECTED ACTUAL EMISSIONS

SO, NOx PM PM;o H,SO, HF Hg
(tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
Projected 942.6 549.9 117.8 108.4 15.4 3.1 0.0070
Emissions ' .
AQCS N/A N/A 6.0 6.0 N/A N/A N/A
Material
Handling
AQCS By- N/A N/A Neg. Neg. N/A N/A N/A
Product ‘
Truck Traffic
Totals 942.6 549.9 123.8 .114.4 15.4 3.1 0.0070

TABLE 3 — ESTIMATED NET CHANGE IN ACTUAL EMISSIONS

SO, NOx PM PM;, H,SO, HF Hg
(tons/yr)  (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
Net Change | -7,138.5 | 32623 | -1656 | -795 | -33.8 | -283 | -0.028

3. STARTUP, SHUTDOWN, AND MALFUNCTION EMISSIONS

Unit 2 is subject to the SO,, NOx and PM standards in 40 CFR 60, Subpart D. According to 40 CFR
60.8(c), operations during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction do not constitute
representative conditions for performance testing, and emissions in excess of an applicable standard
during such periods are not considered to be violations unless otherwise specified in the standard.
Since Subpart D does not contain language indicating that the emissions standards apply at all times,
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emissions in excess of the Subpart D emissions standards during startup, shutdown, and malfunction
periods are not considered violations pursuant to 40 CFR 60.8(c). Due to the operational constraints of
the proposed emission control equipment, startup and shutdown of the boiler could exceed two hours.

Since the facility is proposing to use higher sulfur coals, startup emissions will be higher compared to
startup emissions presently. The Department considered requiring the facility to use lower sulfur coal
for startup, but storage pile space constraints, segregation of different grades of coal, logistical
handling issues for multiple types of coal negated that approach.

Even though the emission limits in Subpart D does not apply during startup, shutdown, and
malfunction, the reporting provisions in 40 CFR 60.7(c) requires owners and operators to report
emissions in excess of the standards, including startup, shutdown and malfunction. In addition, 40
CFR 60.11(d) requires that owners and operators maintain and operate affected facilities in a manner
to minimize emissions at all times. Because of this requirement, excess emission reports are reviewed
in order to determine whether source owners and operators have taken adequate steps to minimize
emissions during startup, shutdown, and malfunction.

4. RULE APPLICABILITY
Prevention of Significant Deterioration

New Source Review under PSD regulations is not applicable to the proposed project as the net
increase in emissions due to this modification is less than the PSD significant emission rates listed in
Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C. The net increase in emissions is determined based on the difference between
the projected future actual emissions and the baseline actual emissions.

Federal and State Emission Standards

The proposed project is subject to the applicable provisions of Chapter 403, F.S., Chapters 62-4, 62-
210, 62-212 and 62-296, F.A.C. The facility is located in an area designated attainment or
maintenance for all criteria pollutants in accordance with F.A.C. Rule 62-204.340, F.A.C. The project
is subject to the monitoring, record keeping and reporting requirements of Rule 62-212.300(1)(e),
F.A.C. The draft permit authorizes the construction of the AQCS for Unit 2 and establishes specific
monitoring conditions to determine whether the project resulted in significant net emissions increases.

The emission units are regulated under Acid Rain, Phase II and Phase I; NSPS - 40 CFR 60 Subpart
D, Standards of Performance for Electric Utility Steam Generating Units for Which Construction is
Commenced After August 17, 1971, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62.204-800,
F.A.C.

5. AIR QUALITY ANALYSIS

According to the application and our review, the proposed project does not require an air quality
analysis because there will be no net significant emissions increases.

6. CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing technical evaluation of the application and information submitted by GRU, the
Department has made a preliminary determination that the proposed project will comply with all
applicable federal and state air pollution regulations.
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PERMITTEE

City of Gainesville

Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU)
Post Office Box 147117 (A132)
Gainesville, FL 32614-7117

PERMITTING AUTHORITY

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management

Bureau of Air Regulation, Air Permitting North Section
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

PROJECT

Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS)

GRU proposes to retrofit DGS Unit No. 2 with air quality control systems (AQCS) as one means of complying
with the requirements of EPA’s Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) and the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) as
implemented by the Department in Rules 62-296.470 and 62-296.480, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.),
respectively. The AQCS planned for DGS Unit 2 includes the following:

Selective catalytic reduction (SCR) system to reduce NOx emissions.

A circulating dry scrubber (CDS) to reduce SO, emissions.

Baghouse (fabric filter) to reduce PM emissions. The baghouse is an integral part of the CDS.
Ancillary support equipment including new material (urea, lime and CDS by-product) handling and
storage. »

NOTICE AND PUBLICATION

The Department distributed an Intent to Issue Air Permit package on June 29, 2007. The applicant published
the Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit in the Gainesville Sun on July 6, 2007. The permittee submitted
on July 12, 2007, a request for extension of time until August 27, 2007, to file a petition for an administrative
hearing. The Department granted an extension of time to file a petition for an administrative hearing on July
27,2007. The permittee withdrew this request on August 10, 2007. The Department received the proof of
publication on July 16, 2007. The proof of publication was resubmitted again on July 30, 2007, as there was a
discrepancy on dates on the original proof of publication.

COMMENTS

No comments on the Draft Permit were received from the public, the Department’s Northeast District, the EPA
Region 4 Office or the National Park Service.

Comments were submitted by the applicant on the Draft Permit as well as the Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination on July 20, 2007. The following summarizes their comments on the Draft Permit
and the Department’s response:

1. Change in Authorized Representative.

The Department required the applicant to submit a new responsible official form signed by the current
designated representative. The Department received the new form on July 20, 2007, and accordingly the
name of the primary authorized representative on the cover page of the permit will be changed to read:
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Authorized Representative:
Mr-George I-Alen Ms. Karen Alford, Interim Assistant General Manager

2. Clarification in the Statement of Basis.

The applicant wanted to make clear in the Statement of Basis that the addition of hydrated lime to the flue
gas will be required when burning compliance coal as the Circulating Dry Scrubber (CDS) will not be
operational since there will be no need to reduce SO, emissions. The CDS will be in full operation when
burning higher sulfur coals as the emission unit will need to comply with the New Source Performance
Standards in Title 40, Part 60, Subpart D of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). The Statement of
Basis will be changed to read as follows:

The applicant elects to install the SCR, CDS and baghouse systems to provide full flexibility in
implementing the federal cap and trade program under the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). Because
CAIR affords a regulated facility the flexibility to evaluate market conditions to determine whether it will
install controls, operate existing controls, or purchase allowances generated by other plants, the
Department does not require the installation of SCR this equipment nor its operation except as needed to
comply with the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) in Title 40, Part 60, Subpart D of the Code of

Federal Regulations (CFR). However, installation-and-operation-ofadditional the addition of hydrated
lime infection-system to the flue gas is required when burning compliance coal (approximately up to 0.8
weight percent sulfur) and when the CDS is not fully operational to reduee-ensure there is no Prevention of
Significant Deterioration (PSD) significant emission increase of sulfuric acid mist (SAM). This
construction permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and
Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.)
and Title 40, Part 60 of the CFR Ceode-of Federal Regulations{CER). The above named permittee is
authorized to modify the facility in accordance with the conditions of this permit and as described in the
application, approved drawings, plans, and other documents on file with the Department of Environmental
Protection (Department).

3. Clarification of Project Description in Section 1.

The applicant suggested revising the language in the Project Description section to make it clearer when
the CDS system will be operational and when the hydrated lime injection will be required in the flue gas.
The applicant also noted that empirical data indicates that a baghouse alone can provide up to 90 percent
control of SAM. The Department will make the necessary changes and the Project Description section
will be changed to read:

This permit authorizes the installation of Air Quality Control Systems (AQCS) on DGS Unit 2 which
includes the SCR, CDS and baghouse systems. The permittee elects to install these controls as part of its
plan to comply with the Clean Air Interstate Rule (Rule 62-296.470(CAIR), F.A.C.) and the Clean Air
Mercury Rule (Rule 62-296.480(CAMR), F.A.C.). Because CAIR affords a regulated facility the
flexibility to evaluate market conditions to determine whether it will install controls, operate existing
controls, or purchase allowances generated by other plants, the Department does not require the installation -
of this equipment nor its operation, except as needed to comply with the NSPS in 40 CFR 60, Subpart D.

Installation of the SCR system will result in collateral inereases-in-emissions generation of SAM and as
particulate matter (PM/PM,,). There is a potential increase in emissions if the permittee elects not to fully
operate the CDS (i.c., with water injection and ash recirculation), a situation that is only likely to occur
when burning low-sulfur coal (approximately up to 0.8 weight percent sulfur). The potential increase of
SAM emissions generation is a result of the oxidation of sulfur dioxide (SO,) to sulfur trioxide (SO;) that
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is-emitted-as-SAMafter the CDSsystem and the subsequent reaction of SO, and water to form SAM. In

the absence of hydrated lime injection when burning low-sulfur coal, there is a potential for increased
emissions of SAM if the CDS and baghouse are not in operation. The permit requires the injection of
hydrated lime to the flue gas inthe-CBS when buming low-sulfur coal and when the CDS is not fully
operational te-reduce-SAM-emissions to ensure there will be no PSD-significant emissions increase of
SAM due to installation of the SCR system on Unit 2. The hydrated lime will reacts with SO, to form
particulate calcium compounds, which will be collected in the downstream fabric filter (FF). With the
hydrated lime injection in the CDS, there will be no PSD-significant emissions increases of SAM due to
the installation of SCR systems on Unit 2.

The Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by replacing the high- and intermediate- pressure rotor along
with the associated stationary elements. Unit 2 is currently fired with low sulfur eastern bituminous coal.
Following installation and operation of the new controls, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a variety of
eastern bituminous coal blend, including medium sulfur coal (up to 2.5 weight percent sulfur), and still
comply with the New Source Performance Standards in 40 CFR 60, Subpart D. There will be no changes .
to the existing electrical generator (i.e., no expansion in steam generating capability) and no increase in
maximum heat input to the boiler or steam flow capability of the turbine.

4. Condition 3 of Section 2, Administrative Requirements needs clarification for preliminary
design.

The applicant wanted to have some language to account for minor changes that may be made in the final
design that differ from the capacities and specification stated in the original application which was based
on preliminary design. The Department will add a note at the end to indicate that the design is preliminary
and that the final design could differ in the capacities and specification listed in the original application.
The Department will also make some minor changes in the text for style purposes. Item 3 of Section 2 will
read as follows:

Applicable Regulations, Forms and Application Procedures: Unless otherwise indicated in this permit, the
construction and operation of the subject emissions unit shall be in accordance with the capacities and
specifications stated in the application. The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403,
E.S. efthe Florida-Statutes{I-S-); Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296, and 62-297,
F.A.C. ofthe Elorida-Administrative-Code--A-C); and Title 40, Part 60 of the CFR Code-of Federal
Regulations{CFR), adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The terms used in this permit have
specific meanings as defined in the applicable chapters of the F.A.C. Florida-Administrative-Code: The
permittee shall use the applicable forms listed in Rule 62-210.900, F.A.C. and follow the application
procedures in Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance
with any applicable federal, state, or local permitting or regulatlons [Rules 62-204.800, 62-210.300 and
62-210.900, F.A.C.]

{Note: The capacities and specifications stated in the application are based on preliminary design and the
final design could include minor changes from the capacities and specification listed in the original

application. }

S. Emission Unit description in Section 3.

The applicant wanted the pollutant SO, spelled out in the emission unit description. The Department has
already identified in the permit earlier that SO, implies sulfur dioxide and does not see the need to spell
out the pollutant again.
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6. Specific Condition 1 of Section 3.

The Department will rephrase the language used in the condition to make it clearer the intent of the
condition. The condition will now. read:

Permit Determination: This permit authorizes the installation of SCR, CDS and baghouse systems for Unit
2. Unless otherwise specified, these conditions are in addition to all existing applicable permit conditions

and regulatory requirements—The-fasility remains-subject-to-all-of the requirements specified in the current
Title V Operation Permit (No. 0010006-003-AV). [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

7. Specific Condition 2 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted to elaborate on the equipment classified for the SCR system. One of them will be
the urea to ammonia conversion system. They also noted that the SCR system will have two layers of
catalyst and a space for a future layer of catalyst will be provided. There will also be a system to add
calcium to the fuel to preserve the life of the SCR catalyst. The calcium will be added to the coal conveyor
belt after the primary coal crusher. The Department will make the necessary changes and the condition
will read:

SCR System: The permittee is authorized to construct, tune, operate and maintain a new SCR system for
Unit 2 to reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) as described in the application. In general, the SCR
system will include the following equipment: ammenia-storage urea to ammonia conversion system;
ammonia flow control unit; ammonia injection grid; three two active layers of catalyst with space provided
for a future layer {two-active-and-one-futurelayer;-efhoneycomb-eatalyst; an SCR reactor chamber; and
other ancillary equipment, including a system to add calcium to the fuel for catalyst preservatlon
[Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

8. Specific Condition 3 of Section 3.

The applicant commented on the level of detail included in the condition and indicated that the level of
detail may unnecessarily constrain minor design changes from the preliminary design given in the
application. The Department agrees with the applicant and will make the necessary changes to remove
that restriction. The condition will read:

CDS System: The permittee is authorized to install a new CDS system for Unit 2 to reduce emissions of
SO, and SO;. The new system will be installed downstream of the existing Unit 2 induced draft fan. In
general, tFhe system includes the CDS vessel, adsorbent preparation and injection, water injection; product
recycle injection and a flue gas recycle system. FThe-systenreontains-instrumentationto-measurefluegas
pressures;-temperatures-and-SO,-concentrations-at-variouslocations-in-the-duetwerk. SO, will be
measured at the inlet of the CDS reactor; and-outlet SO, will be measured of-the-CDS-reaeter at the stack.
[Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

9. Specific Condition 4 of Section 3.

The applicant commented on the level of detail included in the condition and indicated that the level of
detail may unnecessarily constrain minor design changes from the preliminary design given in the
application. The Department asked the applicant to provide information regarding the outlet grain loading
in grains per dry standard cubic feet as well as the design gas flow rate in dry standard cubic feet per
minute for the fabric filter. The Department will remove the detailed description of the baghouse and will
replace it with the other information requested from the applicant. The condition will read:
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Baghouse System: The permittee is authorized to install one pulse-jet baghouse containing ten
compartments The baghouse will be 1nsta11ed between the outlet of the CDS and 1n1et of the booster fans

design outlet grain loadlng 15 0. 01 grains per drv standard cublc f00t ( gr/dscﬂ at 3% oxygen. The desg

gas flow rate through the baghouse is 554,250 dscf/min. The design air-to-cloth ratio is 4:1. An automatic
cleaning system is utilized to dislodge the filter cake. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-
210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

10. Specific Condition 5 of Section 3

The applicant wanted to clarify the condition in terms of which control equipments are not required to
operate by the permit and which control equipments should operate for emissions control. The applicant
identified an error in the SAM baseline emissions. The reduction in emissions due to condensation across
the air pre-heater was not taken into account when developing the baseline emissions. The Department
concurs with the applicant and the condition will be changed to read:

Circumvention: No person shall circumvent any air pollution control device, or allow the emission of air
pollutants without the applicable air pollution control device operating properly. Operation of the SCR
and CDS is not required by this permit. As necessary, the permittee shall operate the hydrated lime
injeetion-addition system and baghouse for SAM emissions control to ensure the project does not result in
a PSD-significant emissions increase (7 tons/year) of sulfuric acid mist emissions above baseline actual
emissions (98 49 tons/year). [Rules 62-210.650 and 62-212.400(12), F.A.C.]

11. Specific Condition 6 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted to rephrase the condition in terms of PSD significances level for SAM emissions,
rather than in terms of baseline actual emissions of SAM. The Department will make the change and add a
permitting note to quantify the baseline actual emissions of SAM. The condition will read:

Annual SAM Emissions Projections: Eer-this-prejeet; Tthe permittee projected that the increase in actual
annual emissions of SAM due to the project would not exceed the baseline-actual-emissions-of-SAM PSD

significance level (i.e., 98 7 tons/year). The permittee shall demonstrate this by compiling and submitting
the reports required by this permit. [Application; and Rules 62-212.300 and 62-210.370, F.A.C.]

{Permitting Note: The baseline actual emission of SAM is 49 tons/vear.}

12. Specific Condition 7 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted to rephrase the condition to reflect hydrated lime is being added instead of lime and
wanted to remove the automatic control system for lime addition. The applicant commented that lime is
added to a tank where it is hydrated and then added to the flue gas for SAM control. The amount of
hydrated lime added is not measured but can be deduced from the amount of lime added to the tank. The
Department was interested in the adjustment of the flow rate for hydrated lime for a given set of operating
conditions. The condition will read:

Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: On an annual basis, the permittee must demonstrate
that SAM emissions as a result of this project do not exceed 98 7 tons per year above the baseline actual

emissions of 49 tons per year. The permittee shall install-and-operate-the add hydrated lime injection
system at a frequency and injection rate for SAM control to satisfy this requirement. The permittee will

Gainesville Regional Utilities - Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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FINAL DETERMINATION

An-automated-control-system-will- be-used-te adjust the hydrated lime flow rate for the given set of

operating conditions based on the most recent correlation curves in a based-en-performance testing. [Rules
62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.] :

13. Specific Condition 8 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted the condition to be consistent with prior Department requirements. The Department
will change the condition to reflect that, and the condition will read:

Ammonia Slip: Ammonia slip measured at the stack downstream of all emission control systems shall not
exceed 5 parts per rmlhon by volume (ppmv) as demonstrated by an aAnnual testing efanmmonia-shall be
3 3 : pprmrv. [Design; and Rule 62-

4, 070(3) FAC]

14. Specific Condition 9 of Section 3.

The applicant expressed concerns of conducting baseline emissions test while injecting lime directly into
the boiler due to its potential impact on the fly ash characteristics and Electro Static Precipitator (ESP).
The third baseline test will be included in the post construction testing. The Department concurs with the
applicant and the condition will read:

Baseline Performance Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The permittee shall
conduct a baseline performance tests at permitted capacity to evaluate petential-ehangesin SAM
emissions. A bBaseline performance tests shall be conducted using current coal (0.8 weight percent

sulfur). Three-baselineperformance-tests-shall-be-condueted. The firstbaseline performance test shall be
conducted prlor to the 1nstallat10n of the AQCS wrthﬂe—l-}me—mjeet}eﬂ illhe—seeeﬂd—baselme—per—femaﬂee

the—GDS—Feaetef The perrmttee shall subm1t a test notlﬁcatlon to the approprlate author1t1es at least 15
days prior to each the test and shall submit a test report summarizing the emission tests and results within
45 days of the completion of the eaeh performance test.

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

15. Specific Condition 10 of Section 3.

The applicant expressed concerns of having precise requirements of conducting post Air Quality Control
Systems (AQCS) performance tests. Due to complexity of the system, the applicant believes it is more
appropriate to defer the details of the SAM -evaluation and testing protocols to a later date to allow
sufficient time to work with the technology provider to develop testing procedures and conditions as
appropriate for the project. The applicant has proposed to submit a testing protocol by November 30,
2008, which shall include testing for the process variables that the Department was interested in. The
applicant also proposed to change the requirement of conducting performance test to no later than 180 days
after the first flue gas flows through the entire AQCS, instead of within 120 days of completing
construction of Unit 2 AQCS. The Department concurs with the applicant and will also include language
to conduct the test required in Specific Condition 9, which the applicant wanted to defer to this condition.
The condition will read:

Post- AQCS Construction Performance Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The

permittee shall conduct post-AQCS performance tests to evaluate potential changes in SAM emissions and
demonstrate that there is no PSD-significant emissions increase of SAM as a result of the installation of

Gainesville Regional Utilities Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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FINAL DETERMINATION

the AQCS. Post- AQCS construction tests shall evaluate both current (up to 0.8 weight percent) and

hlgher sulfur (up to 2 5 werght percent) coals—aJtemate—hmemjeeHemoeanons—and—vaﬂous—boﬂeﬁ%Q@S

the—GDS— No later than November 30 2008 the perrnrttee shal] submlt to the Department for review
and approval a SAM Evaluation and Testing Plan which shall include as a minimum the following:

e Evaluation of factors affecting SAM generation (e.g., fuel type, emission control devices,
operating conditions, etc.).
Determination of the SO, to SO; conversion rates across the SCR.

¢ FEvaluation of the hydrated lime injection rates required to mitigate SAM emissions.

e Testing protocol (e.g., methods, number of runs, operating scenarios, annual tests, etc.).

b.  Testing shall be conducted no later than 180 days after the first flue gas flow through the entire
AQCS.

c. Atleast 15 days prior to initiating the performance tests, the permittee shall submit a test notification,
preliminary test schedule and test protocol to the Bureau of Air Regulation and the Compliance
Authority.

d.  Within 45 days following the last test run conducted, the permittee shall provide a report
summarizing the emissions tests and results. All SAM emissions test data shall be provided with this
report.

€. Within 45 days following the submittal of the emissions test report and no later than 90 days
fo]lowmg the ]ast test run conducted the permlttee shal] submlt a pr0]ect report summarlzlng

prov1de_g detalls for calculating and estlmatlng the SAM emissions rate based on the level of lime

injection and operating conditions. Fhe-testresultsshall-be-used-to-adjust-the hme-injection-system
and-estimate SAM-emissions:

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

16. Specific Condition 11 of Section 3.

Gainesville Regional Utilities Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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FINAL DETERMINATION

The applicant wanted to remove the details specified in the specific condition for conducting annual tests
for the same reasons as specified in Item 15 and have it included in the SAM Evaluation and Testing Plan
required by Specific Condition 10. The applicant commented that the Department can consider requiring
the annual test to be convertéd to a test every five years based on the results of the initial tests. The
Department concurs and the condition will read:

Annual Tests — Hydrated Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: During each federal fiscal year, the
permittee shall conduct performance tests to determine the SAM emission rates and adjust the lime
injection rates correlation-etrves as necessary. The Department may re-evaluate this requirement based on
the results of the initial testing. The protocol for the performance tests shall be submitted to the

Department no later than November 30, 2008. AtJeast—sixrepresentative—1-hour—test—+uns—shall-be
the-updated-series-of related-lime-injection-correlation-eurves. [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e),
F.AC] -

17. Specific Condition 13 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted to add a different method for measuring SAM. The proposed method is a National
Council for Air and Stream Improvement (NCASI) Method 8A. This method eliminates the potential for
interference from SO,. EPA approved the use of Method 8A in December 1996. The Department will add
the NCASI Method 8A as an alternate for measuring SAM emissions. The condition will read:

Test Methods: Required tests shall be performed in accordance with the following reference methods or
other Department approved methods upon request by permittee:

EPA Method Description of Method and Comments

1-4 Traverse Points, Velocity and Flow Rate, Gas Analysis, and Moisture Content
8 Determination of Sulfuric Acid Mist Emissions
19 Determination of Sulfur Dioxide Removal Efficiency and Particulate Matter, Sulfur

Dioxide, and Nitrogen Oxides Emission Rates (Optional F-factor method may be
used to determine flow rate and gas analysis to calculate mass emissions in lieu of
Methods 1-4.)

Compliance with the sulfuric acid mist emissions can also be determined with the National Council for Air
and Stream Improvement (NCAST) Method 8A. Compliance with the ammonia slip limit shall be
determined annually using EPA conditional test method (CTM-027), EPA method 320, or other methods
approved by the Department. [Rules 62-204.800 and 62-297.100, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60, Appendix A]

18. Specific Condition 14 of Section 3.

The Department will add a permitting note at the end of the condition to explain that the control equipment
will not be fully functional during startup and shutdown until certain operational constraints is met. Once
the control equipment is fully functional the boiler shall be able to comply with the emission limits. The
applicant agreed with the Department’s position that the State excess emissions rule (62-210.700, F.A.C.)
cannot be used to vary the requirements of the federal NSPS requirements of 40 CFR 60, Subpart D. The
condition will read:

Startup, Shutdown and Malfunction: Operations during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction
shall not constitute representative conditions for the purpose of a performance test nor shall emissions in

~ Gainesville Regional Utilities Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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FINAL DETERMINATION

excess of the level of the applicable emission limit during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction be
considered a violation of the applicable emission limit unless otherwise specified in the applicable
standard.

[Rule 40 CFR 60.8(c)]

{Permitting Note: Boiler startup or shutdown may exceed two hours due to operational constraints of the
control equipment, which include:

a. During boiler startup and shutdown. the SCR system is fully functional once the boiler flue gas
temperature at the SCR reactor inlet stabilizes to 613° F or greater.

b. During boiler startup and shutdown, the CDS system is fully functional once the following sequential
criteria are met:

The flue gas flow rate at the outlet of the baghouse stabilizes at approximately 1.5 million pounds

per hour or greater for a minimum of 6 hours;
The boiler flue gas temperature at the CDS inlet stabilizes at 230° F or greater; and

- Water has been injected into the reactor for a minimum of 2 hours.}

19. Specific Condition 17 of Section 3.

The applicant noted that the CDS system will be fully operational when higher sulfur coals are being
burned and the lime injection rates will be determined by the inlet and outlet SO, concentrations. The lime
injection rates for SAM control will be significantly lower than required for SO, control. Continuous lime
addition may not be required for SAM control because of the large amount of lime that will be in the
system at any given time. Therefore, lime consumption rather than continuous monitoring of the lime
injection rate may be more appropriate. The Department concurs with the applicant and the condition will
read: '

Operational Data: The permittee shall eentinueushy monitor and record the hydrated lime injestion
consumption rate for SAM emissions control when the unit is combusting compliance coal (approximately
up to 0.8 weight percent sulfur) and the CDS is not fully operational . [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

20. Specific Condition 18 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted to change the language to be consistent with the language used in previous
conditions and wanted to add a condition of retaining records for a period of 5 years. The Department will
not add the condition for retaining records for 5 years as it is already part of Specific Condition 19, but will
change the word monitor to evaluate for consistency. The Department will also add some language to be
consistent with the stated rule requirements. The condition will read:

Annual SAM Emissions Reports: In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., the permittee shall
comply with the following monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions:

a. The permittee shall meniter evaluate the SAM emissions using the most reliable information available.
On a calendar year basis, the permittee shall calculate and maintain a record of the annual emissions
(tons per year) for a period of 5 years following resumption of regular operations after completing
construction on the unit’s emission control system. Emissions shall be computed in accordance with
Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C.

b. Within 60 days after each calendar year following completion of construction, the permittee shall
report to the Compliance Authority the annual emissions for the unit for the preceding calendar year.
The report shall contain the following:

Gainesville Regional Utilities Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station : CAIR/CAMR Project — Unit 2

Page 9 of 10



FINAL DETERMINATION

Name, address and telephone number of the owner or operator of the major stationary source;
b.  Annual emissions as calculated pursuant to subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1.; F.A.C,;

c. If the emissions differ from the preconstruction projection, an explanation as to why there is a
difference; and

d.  Any other information that the owner or operator wishes to include in the report.

c. The information required to be documented and maintained shall be submitted to the Compliance
Authority, where it will be available for review to the general public.

[Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

21. Specific Condition 19 of Section 3.

The applicant wanted to delete the requirements for computing SAM emissions. The Department will
leave the condition as is as all the requirements listed in the condition are based on Rule 62-210.370,
FAC.

22. Extension of the Expiration Date.

The applicant requested to extend the expiration date of the construction permit to September 30, 2011
from September 30, 2009 per Rule 62-4.210(2) and (3), F.A.C. The Department will extend the date to
provide the necessary time for GRU to conduct the testing and finish the turbine efficiency improvement
project.

23. Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.

The applicant submitted changes to the technical evaluation and preliminary determination to comply with
the changes proposed in the permit. The Department will make those changes and issue a revised technical
evaluation and preliminary determination concurrently with the final permit.

CONCLUSION

The final action of the Department is to issue the Final Permit with the revisions, corrections, and
clarifications as described above.

Gainesville Regional Utilities Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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Florida Department of

Memorandum - Environmental Protection
TO: Joseph Kahn
THRU: Trina Vielhauer
Jeff Koerner
FROM:  Syed Arif SAof A:;'(”
DATE: August 13, 2007

" Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
SUBJECT: Gainesville Regional Utilities
Deerhaven Generating Station — Unit 2

Attached for your approval and signature is the Final Permit for Gainesville Regional Utilities,
Deerhaven Generating Station located in Gainesville, Alachua County.

The Final permit authorizes the installation of selective catalytic reduction (SCR), circulating dry
scrubber (CDS) and baghouse systems on existing Unit 2 at the Deerhaven Generating Station.
The permittee elects to install these controls as part of its plan to comply with the Clean Air
Interstate Rule (Rule 62-296.470(CAIR), F.A.C.) and the Clean Air Mercury Rule (Rule 62-
296.480(CAMR), F.A.C.). Installation of the SCR system will result in collateral generation of .
SAM as particulate matter. The potential increase of SAM generation is a result of the oxidation
of sulfur dioxide to sulfur trioxide (SO;) and the subsequent reaction of SO; and water to form
SAM. The permit requires the injection of hydrated lime in the CDS when burning low-sulfur
coal to reduce SAM emissions to ensure there will be no PSD-significant emissions increase of
SAM due to installation of the SCR system on Unit 2. The hydrated lime will react with SO; to
form particulate calcium compounds, which will be collected in the downstream fabric filter.
With the hydrated lime injection in the CDS, there will be no PSD-significant emissions
increases of SAM due to the installation of SCR systems on Unit 2.

The Public Notice was published on July 6, 2007 in the Gainesville Sun. No comments were
received from the public, EPA Region 4, or the National Park Service. Comments were
submitted by the applicant resulting in minor changes as described in the final determination.
The permittee submitted a request for extension of time until August 27, 2007, to file a petition
for an administrative hearing. The permittee withdrew this request on August 10, 2007.

We recommend your approval and signature.

JK/sa
Attachments



Page 1 of 1

Friday,.Barbara

From: Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov
Sent: Tuesday, August 14, 2007 10:19 AM
To: Friday, Barbara

Cc: Little.James@epamail.epa.gov; Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov

Subject: Re: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-
Deerhaven Generating Station

We Received this pemit.
Thanks

Katy R. Forney
Air Permits Section
EPA - Region 4
61 Forsyth St., SW
Atlanta, GA 30024

Phone: 404-562-9130
Fax: 404-562-9019

8/14/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: Dee_Morse@nps.gov

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 6:58 PM

To: : Friday, Barbara

Subject: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-

Deerhaven Generating Station

Return Receipt

Your FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville -

document: Gainesville Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station
was Dee Morse/DENVER/NPS

received

by:

at: 08/13/2007 04:58:26 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: Mailer-Daemon@ectinc.com

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:47 PM

To: Friday, Barbara

Subject: Confirm: "FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Galnesvnle Gainesville Regional

Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station' received

A message which requested delivery confirmation recently arrived at this server. This
server honors all delivery confirmation requests whether generated from local mail traffic
or from mail received via an outside source (such as SMTP/POP).

Message- ID <l9OOD374FE4CCB4AB8DEBO01320338BABA7EO4@tlhexsmb5 floridadep.net>
To : tdavis@ectinc.com

From : Barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us

Subject : FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville
Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Date : Mon, 13 Aug 2007 13:38:14 -0400

Receiving Domain: ectinc.com
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Friday, Barbara

From: Tom Davis [tdavis@ectinc.com]
Sent:  Monday, August 13, 2007 1:41 PM
To: Friday, Barbara

Subject: RE: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Galneswlle Regional Utilities-
Deerhaven Generating Station

From: Friday, Barbara [mailto:Barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:38 PM

To: alfordkc@gru.com; jonynasye@gru.com; little.james@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; .
dee_morse@nps.gov; Kirts, Christopher; tdavis@ectinc.com; Halpin, Mike

Cc: Arif, Syed

Subject: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006 005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-Deerhaven
Generating Station

Dear SirfMadam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done by selecting
"Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send". We must receive verification of
receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open and review the
document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be downloaded for free
at the following internet site: http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other correspondence in
lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to provide greater service to the applicant and the
engineering community. Please advise this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-
of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

8/14/2007
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Friday, Barbara

To: alfordkc@gru.com; jonynasye@gru.com; little.james@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov;
dee_morse@nps.gov; Kirts, Christopher; 'tdavis@ectinc.com'; Halpin, Mike

" Ce: " Arif, Syed

Subject: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-
Deerhaven Generating Station

Attachments: grutepd.pdf, grufd.pdf; grugc.pdf; grunoticeoffinalpermit.pdf; grupermit.pdf;
grupermitsignaturepage.pdf

Dear Sir/Madam:

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

8/13/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: System Administrator

To: Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:38 PM

Subject: Delivered:FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional

Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Your message

To: "alfordkc@gru.com’; ‘jonynasye@gru.com'; 'little.james@epa.gov'; 'forney.kathleen@epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Kirts,
Christopher; 'tdavis@ectinc.com'; Halpin, Mike

Cc: Arif, Syed

Subject: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Sent: 8/13/2007 1:38 PM '

was delivered to the following recipient(s):

Halpin, Mike on 8/13/2007 1:38 PM
Arif, Syed on 8/13/2007 1:38 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: System Administrator

To: Kirts, Christopher :

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:39 PM

Subject: Delivered:FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional

Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Your message

To: ‘alfordkc@gru.com’; ‘jonynasye@gru.com’; 'little.james@epa.gov'; 'forney.kathleen@epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov’; Kirts,
Christopher; 'tdavis@ectinc.com’; Halpin, Mike '

Cc: Arif, Syed

Subject: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Sent: 8/13/2007 1:38 PM

was delivered to the following recipient(s):

Kirts, Christopher on 8/13/2007 1:38 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: Exchange Administrator

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:39 PM

To: Friday, Barbara

Subject: Delivery Status Notification (Relay)

Attachments: ATT140921.txt; FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville

Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

ATT140921.txt  FINAL AC Permit

(284 B) No.: 0010006-0...
This is an automatically generated Delivery Status Notification.

Your message has been successfully relayed to the following recipients, but the requested
delivery status notifications may not be generated by the destination.

dee morse@nps.gov



Friday, Barbara

From: Exchange Administrator

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:39 PM

To: Friday, Barbara

Subject: Delivery Status Notification (Relay)

Attachments: ATT140924.txt; FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville

Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

ATT140924.txt  FINAL AC Permit

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

tdavis@ectinc.com



Fridéy, Barbara

From: Mail Delivery System [MAILER-DAEMON@mseive02.rtp.epa.gov]
Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:37 PM

To: Friday, Barbara '

Subject: Successful Mail Delivery Report

Attachments: Delivery report; Message Headers

Delivery report.txt Message
(690 B) Headers.txt (2 KB)
: This is the mail system at host mseive02.rtp.epa.gov.

Your message was successfully delivered to the destination(s) listed below. If the message
was delivered to mailbox you will receive no further notifications. Otherwise you may
still receive notifications of mail delivery errors from other systems.

The mail system

<forney.kathleen@epa.gov>: delivery via 127.0.0.1[127.0.0.1]:10025: 250 OK,
sent 46C096CF 13620 5123 1

<little.james@epa.gov>: delivery via 127.0.0.1[127.0.0.1]1:10025: 250 OK, sent
46C096CF 13620 5123 1



Friday, Barbara

From: Jonynas, Yolanta E [JONYNASYE@gru.com]

To: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:41 PM

Subject: Read: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional

Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Your message

To: JONYNASYE@gru.com
Subject:

was read on 8/13/2007 1:41 PM.



Friday, Barbara

From: Halpin, Mike

To: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:50 PM -

Subject: Read: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional

Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station

Your message

To: ‘alfordkc@gru.com'; ‘jonynasye@gru.com’; 'little.james@epa.gov'; 'forney.kathleen@epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Kirts,

Christopher; 'tdavis@ectinc.com'; Halpin, Mike :
Cc: Arif, Syed ‘
Subject: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-Deerhaven Generating Station
Sent: 8/13/2007 1:38 PM

was read on 8/13/2007 1:49 PM.
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Friday, Barbara

From: Alford, Karen C [ALFORDKC@gru.com]
Sent:  Monday, August 13, 2007 2:00 PM

To: Friday, Barbara

Cc: Jonynas, Yolanta E

Subject: RE: FINAL AC Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC - City of Gainesville - Gainesville Regional Utilities-
Deerhaven Generating Station

Received - Thank you.

Karen C. Alford
Administrative Director
Energy Supply

Gainesville Regional Utilities
P.O. Box 147117, Station A137
Gainesville, FL 32614-7117
352-393-1730
352-334-2786 fax

WWW,gru.com

From: Friday, Barbara [mailto:Barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 1:38 PM

To: Alford, Karen C; Jonynas, Yolanta E; little.james@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov;
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

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done by
selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send". We must receive
verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the
document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open and review
the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be downloaded
for free at the following internet site: http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other
correspondence in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to provide greater service
to the applicant and the engineering community. Please advise this office of any changes to your e-mail
address or that.of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

8/13/2007
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DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

8/13/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: Kirts, Christopher

To: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Monday, August 13, 2007 2:03 PM

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

was read on 8/13/2007 2:03 PM.



Florida Department of Charlie Crs
Environmental Protection eff Kottkamp
Lt. Governor

Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road Michael W. Sole
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Secretary

April 23, 2007

ELECTRONIC MAIL - RECEIVED RECEIPT REQUESTED
allengk@eru.com

Mr. George K. Allen,

Assistant General Manager — Energy Supply
City of Gainesville, GRU

P. O. Box 147117 (A132)

Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117

Re: DEP File No. 0010006-005-AC
Air Quality Control System Addition
Deerhaven Generating Station — Unit 2

Dear Mr. Allen;

The Department has received the additional information on March 30, 2007 in response to our
request for information letter dated March 12, 2007. Based on review of this information, we have
determined that additional information is needed in order to continue processing this application
package. Please submit the information requested below to the Department’s Bureau of Air
Regulation:

1. Based on the response to our previous query whether lime will be added at all times into the
Circulating Dry Scrubber (CDS) when Unit 2 is operating, please explain how sulfuric acid
mist and hydrogen fluoride emissions will be controlled from Unit 2 during the times when
lime is not added to the CDS. :

2. The application has requested higher sulfur coal (up to 2.5 percent) to be burned in Unit 2.
Please explain how excess emissions from start-up and shut-down procedures will be
controlled keeping in mind that the current allowable coal sulfur content is only 0.8 percent.

Rule 62-4.050(3), F.A.C. requires that all applications for a Department permit must be
certified by a professional engineer registered in the State of Florida. This requirement also applies
to responses to Department requests for additional information of an engineering nature. Permit
applicants are advised that Rule 62-4.055(1), F.A.C. requires applicants to respond to requests for
information within 90 days.

“More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep.state.fl.us



Mr. George K. Allen
April 23, 2007
Page 2 of 2

We will be happy to meet and discuss the details with you and your staff. I may be contacted at
850/921-9528.

Sincerely,

%:/Q" %/ﬁ
Syed Anf, P.E.
Bureau of Air regulation

/sa

cc: Jim Little, EPA (little.james@epa.gov)
D. Morse, NPS (dee morse@nps.gov)
Chris Kirts, DEP-NED (christopher.kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU (jonynase@gru.com)
Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc. (tdavis@ectinc.com)
Michael Halpin, OSC (michael.halpin@dep.siate.fl.us)
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Friday, Barbara

To: allengk@gru.com

Cc: ‘Little.James@epamail.epa.gov’; Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov; dee_morse@nps.gov;
Kirts, Christopher; jonynase@gru.com; 'tdavis@ectinc.com’; Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Attachments: 0010006-005-AC City of Gainesville, GRU RAl.pdf
Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be done by selecting
"Reply” on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send”. We must receive verification of
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

Thank yoﬁ,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

4/23/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: System Administrator

To: Kirts, Christopher
Sent: . Monday, Aprii 23, 2007 2:49 PM
Subject: Delivered:Delivery Status Notification (Success)

Your message

To: ~ 'allengk@gru.com’

Cc: 'Little.James@epamail.epa.gov'; 'Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Kirts, Christopher;
‘jonynase@gru.com'; ‘tdavis@ectinc.com’; Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Subject:

Sent: 4/23/2007 2:49 PM

was delivered to the following recipient(s):

Kirts, Christopher on 4/23/2007 2:49 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: System Administrator

To: Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 2:49 PM

Subject: Delivered:Delivery Status Notification (Success)

Your message

To: ‘allengk@gru.com'’

Cc: ‘Little.James@epamail.epa.gov'; 'Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Kirts, Christopher;
"jonynase@gru.com’; 'tdavis@ectinc.com'; Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Subject:

Sent: 4/23/2007 2:49 PM

was delivered to the following recipient(s):

Halpin, Mike on 4/23/2007 2:49 PM
Arif, Syed on 4/23/2007 2:49 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: Exchange Administrator

Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 2:49 PM
To: Friday, Barbara

Subject: Delivery Status Notification (Relay)
Attachments: ATT527955.txt; Untitled Attachment

ATT527955.txt  Untitled Attachment

(284 B)
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
Attachments: ATT527977 txt; Untitled Attachment

ATT527977.t<t  Untitled Attachment

(284 B) _
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
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 249 PM -

To: Friday, Barbara

Subject: . Successful Mail Delivery Report

Attachments: Delivery report, Message Headers

Delivery report.txt Message
(726 B) ~ Headers.txt (1 KB)
This is the mail system at host mseive02.rtp.epa.gov.

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

<Forney.Kathleenfepamail.epa.gov>: delivery via 127.0.0.1[127.0.0.11:10025: 250
OK, sent 462CFF8B_21889 150547 1

<Little.James@epamail.epa.gov>: delivery via 127.0.0.1[127.0.0.11:10025: 250
OK, sent 462CFF8B 21889 150547 1



Friday, Barbara

From: Dee_Morse@nps.gov
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 3:07 PM
To: Friday, Barbara

Return Receipt

Your
document :

was Dee Morse/DENVER/NPS
received ‘
by:

‘at: 04/23/2007 01:06:40 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: Kirts, Christopher

To: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 4:26 PM
Subject: Read:

Your message

To: "allengk@gru.com’

Cc: 'Little.James@epamail.epa.gov’; 'Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Kirts, Christopher;
'jonynase@gru.com’; 'tdavis@ectinc.com'; Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Subject: .

Sent: 4/23/2007 2:49 PM

was read on 4/23/2007 4:26 PM.



Friday, Barbara

From: Halpin, Mike

To: Friday, Barbara

Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 3.02 PM
Subject: Read:

Your message

To: ‘allengk@gru.com'’

Cc: 'Little.James@epamail.epa.gov'; 'Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Kirts, Christopher;
'jonynase@gru.com'; 'tdavis@ectinc.com'; Halpin, Mike; Arif, Syed

Subject:

Sent: 4/23/2007 2:49 PM

was read on 4/23/2007 3:02 PM.



Friday, Barbara

Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov

From:

Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 3:22 PM

To: Friday, Barbara

.Ce:’ Little.James@epamail.epa.gov

Subject: Re:

Attachments: 0010006-005-AC City of Gainesville, GRU RAI.pdf

0010006-005-AC
City of Gainesv...

We received this email.

Thanks,
katy

Katy R. Forney

Air Permits Section
EPA - Region 4

61 Forsyth St., SW
Atlanta, GA 30024

Phone: 404-562-9130
Fax: 404-562-9019

"Friday,
Barbara"
<Barbara.Friday@
dep.state.fl.us>

04/23/2007 02:48
PM

Dear Sir/Madam:

To
<allengklgru.com>
_ cc
James Little/R4/USEPA/USGEPA,
Kathleen Forney/R4/USEPA/USGEPA,
<dee morse@nps.gov>, "Kirts,
Christopher"
<Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.u
s>, <jonynase@gru.com>,
<tdavis@ectinc.com>, "Halpin,
Mike"
<Mike.Halpin@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Arif, Syed"
<Syed.Arif@dep.state.fl.us>
Subject

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be
done by selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting
"Send". We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent

1



“r

e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document (s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open
and review the document (s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be
- downloaded for free at the following internet site:
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and
other correspondence in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to
provide greater service to the applicant and the engineering community. Please advise
this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you, .
DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation
(See attached file: 0010006-005-AC City of Gainesville, GRU RAI.pdf)



Florida Department of
Memorandum Environmental Protection

TO: Trina Vielhauer, Bureau of Air Regulation

THROUGH: Jeff Koerner, Air Permitting North Sedfy

FROM: Syed Arif, Air Permitting North Section 5\-09— A“Ac, -
DATE: - June 26, 2007

SUBJECT:  Draft Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU), Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS)
Installation of Air Quality Control Systems (AQCS)

This project is subject to minor source preconstruction review. Attached for your review are the following
items:

e  Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit;

e Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit;

e Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination;

e Draft Permit; and

e P.E. Certification.

The Draft Permit authorizes GRU to retrofit DGS Unit No. 2 with AQCS in order to comply with the
requirements of EPA’s Clean Air Interstate Rule. The proposed work will be conducted at DGS Unit 2,
which is located in Alachua County, Florida. The Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination
provide a detailed description of the project and the rationale for issuance. The P.E. certification briefly
summarizes the proposed project. I recommend your approval of the attached Draft Permit.

Attachments



Florida Department of : Charlie Crist

Environmental Protection ‘ Governor
Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road Jeff Kottkamp
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Lt. Governor
Michael W. Sole
Secretary
P.E. Certification Statement
Permittee: DEP File No. 0010006-005-AC

Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU)
Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS)

Project type: The applicant, GRU, submitted an application to the Department for the installation of air
quality control systems (AQCS) on DGS Unit 2 in order to comply with the requirements of EPA’s Clean
Air Interstate Rule and the Clean Air Mercury Rule. The AQCS includes the following: selective
catalytic reduction (SCR) system to decrease nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions, circulating dry scrubber
(CDS) to reduce sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions and a baghouse system to reduce particulate matter (PM)
emissions.

While the addition of SCR will substantially decrease emissions of NOX, there is the potential for
collateral increases in emissions of sulfuric acid mist (SAM) and PM. The potential increase of SAM
emissions is a result of the oxidation of SO, to sulfur trioxide (SO3) that is emitted as SAM after the CDS
system. SAM emissions will also increase as a result of the proposed higher sulfur coals. Potential
increases in SAM emissions will be minimized through the injection of alkaline reagent (lime) to react
with SO; prior to the baghouse. The reactants, primarily particulate calcium compounds, will be collected
in the fabric filter. The potential increase in PM from the reaction of lime and SO; will be collected in the
CDS system and the fabric filter. There will be no emissions increase over the PSD significant emission
rates from the installation of SCR and CDS.

Concurrent with the AQCS project, the Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by replacing the high-
and intermediate-pressure rotor along with the associated stationary elements. The steam turbine
refurbishment will increase the efficiency of the steam turbine. There will be no changes to the existing
electrical generator (i.€., no expansion in steam generating capability) and no increase in maximum heat
input to the boiler or steam flow capability of the turbine.

Unit 2 is currently fired with low sulfur (0.8 weight percent sulfur) eastern bituminous coal. Following
installation and operation of the AQCS, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a variety of eastern bituminous
coal blend, including medium sulfur coal (up to 2.5 weight percent sulfur). Overall, the project will
decrease emissions due to the installation of AQCS systems, but the cold startup SO, emissions for Unit 2
will increase due to the firing of higher sulfur coal.

An air quality impact analysis was not required. No increase in ambient impacts due to the proposed
permit modification is expected. Emissions from the facility will not significantly contribute to or cause a
violation of any state or federal ambient air quality standards.

The applicant’s authorized representative and mailing address is: Mr. George K. Allen, Assistant General
Manager — Energy Supply, GRU, Post Office Box 147117 (A132), Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117.

“More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep.state. fl.us



BEST AVAILABLE COPY

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the engineering features described in the above referenced application and

sub]ect to the proposed permit conditions provide reasonable assurance of compliance with applicable -

provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes, and Florida Administrative Code Chapters 62-4 and 62-204
through 62-297. However, I have not evaluated and I do not certify aspects of the proposal outside of my
area of expertise (including but not limited to the electrical, mechamcal structural, hydrological,
meteorological and geological features).

Sy _-\‘ £y gl .°‘-Ja
T WIS AN AN
ARV I SL TR .
Syed Arif, P.E. Datey . {j,{' O

Registration Number: 51861

Department of Environmental Protectlon e b

Bureau of Air Regulation

111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite 4
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Phone (850) 488-0114

Fax (850) 922-6979



: ] Charlie Crist
Florida Department of e Crist
Environmental Protection Jff Kottkamp
Lt. Governor

Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road Michael W. Sole
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Secretary

June 28, 2007

ELECTRONIC MAIL — RECEIVED RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. George K. Allen, Assistant General Manager/Energy Supply
City of Gainesville, GRU

Post Office Box 147117 (A132)

Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117

Re: Air Construction Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville Regional Utilities, Deerhaven Generating Station (DGS)
Installation of Air Quality Control Systems

IDear Mr. Allen:

On February 23, 2007, you submitted an application requesting to retrofit DGS Unit No. 2 with air
quality control systems in order to comply with the requirements of EPA’s Clean Air Interstate Rule.
This facility is located in Alachua County at 10001 NW 13" Street, Gainesville, Florida. Enclosed are
the following documents:

e The Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination summarizes the Permitting Authority’s
technical review of the application and provides the rationale for making the preliminary
determination to issue a Draft Permit.

o The proposed Draft Permit includes the specific conditions that regulate the emissions units covered
by the proposed project.

o The Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit provides important information regarding: the
Permitting Authority’s intent to issue an air permit for the proposed project; the requirements for
publishing a Public Notice of the Permitting Authority’s intent to issue an air permit; the procedures
for submitting comments on the Draft Permit; the process for filing a petition for an administrative
hearing; and the availability of mediation.

o The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in
the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this
project.

If you have any questions, please contact the Project Engineer, Syed Arif, at 850-921-9528. -

Sincerely,

- . -
Trina Vielhauer, Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation

Enclosures

“More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep.state.fl.us



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

In the Matter of an .
Application for Air Permit by:

Gainesville Regional Utilities Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC

Post Office Box 147117 (A132) - Facility ID No..0010006
Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117 Deerhaven Generating Station

' Installation of Air Quality Control
Authorized Representative: . Systems
Mr. George K. Allen Alachua County, Florida

Facility Location: Gainesville Regional Utilities operates Deerhaven Generating Station, which is
located at 10001 NW 13" Street, Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida.

Project: The applicant proposes to retrofit Deerhaven Generating Station Unit 2 with air quality control
systems. Details of the project are provided in the application and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination. ‘

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the
Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting
requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Bureau of Air Regulation
is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project. The
Permitting Authority’s physical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4, Tallahassee, Florida.
The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/488-0114.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours
of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for
the Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation
and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, .
exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the
Permitting Authority’s project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number
listed above.

Notice of Intent to Issue Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air
permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance
that operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will
comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297,
F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the
proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections
120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a
different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Public Notice: Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you
(the applicant) are required to publish at your own-expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue
Air Permit (Public Notice). The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the
legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The
newspaper used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the
activity is to take place. If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact
the Permitting Authority at above address or phone number. Pursuant to. Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9),
F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address
within 7 days of publication. Failure to publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in

Gainesville Regional Utilities, DGS Draft Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC

Page 1 of 3



WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft
Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must
be postmarked by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this
14-day period. If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the
Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All
comments filed will be made available for public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may
petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition
must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s
Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900
Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by the
applicant or any of the parties listed below must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice
of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice
under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of publication of the attached Public Notice
or within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first.
Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of
agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of
publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above,
at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall
constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under
Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any
subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the
presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must
contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s
file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner;
the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the
address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the
petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (¢) A statement of when
and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all
disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so state; (¢) A concise statement of
the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or
modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the
petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an
explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the
relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with
respect to the agency’s proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which
the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall
contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a
petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it
in this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected
by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to
become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Gainesville Regional Utilities, DGS Draft Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.
Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

Trina Vielhauer, Chief
Bureau of Air Regulation

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Written Notice of Intent

to Issue Air Permit package (including the Public Notice- the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary
Determination, and the Draft Pe |t) was sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested before

the close of business on ﬂ? 0 7 to the persons listed below.

George K. Allen, GRU ( allengk@gru.com)

Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU (jonynasye@gru.com)

~Jim Little, EPA (little.james@epa.gov)

Kathleen Forney, EPA (forney.kathleen@epa.gov)

D. Morse, NPS (dee_morse@nps.gov)

Chris Kirts, DEP-NED (christopher.kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc. (tdavis@ectinc.com)
Michael Halpin, OSC (michael.halpin@dep.state.fl.us)

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on
this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida
Statutes with the designated agency clerk, recelpt of

777/%«4% Zgﬂwy é/a’i?/W |

(Clerk) 7 (Date)

Gainesville Regional Utilities, DGS ' Draft Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC -
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PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management, Bureau of Air Regulation
Draft Air Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville Regional Utilities, Deerhaven Generating Station
Alachua County, Florida

Applicant: The applicant for this project is Gainesville Regional Utilities. The applicant’s authorized
representative and mailing address is: Mr. George K. Allen, Assistant General Manager — Energy Supply,
Gainesville Regional Utilities, Post Office Box 147117 (A132), Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117.

Facility Location: Gainesville Regional Utilities, operates the existing Deerhaven Generatihg Station, which is
located in Alachua County at 1001 NW 13" Street in Gainesville, Florida.

Project: The applicant proposes to install air quality control systems (AQCS) on Unit 2 in order to comply with -
the requirements of EPA’s Clean Air Interstate Rule and Clean Air Mercury Rule. The AQCS includes the
following: selective catalytic reduction system to decrease nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions, circulating dry
scrubber to reduce sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions and a baghouse system to reduce particulate matter (PM)
emissions.

While the addition of selective catalytic reduction system will substantially decrease emissions of NOx, there is
the potential for collateral increases in emissions of sulfuric acid mist (SAM) and PM. The potential increase
of SAM emissions is a result of the oxidation of SO, to sulfur trioxide (SOs) that is emitted as SAM after the
circulating dry scrubber system. SAM emissions will also increase as a result of the proposed higher sulfur
coals. Potential increases in SAM emissions will be minimized through the injection of alkaline reagent (lime)
to react with SO, prior to the baghouse. The reactants, primarily particulate calcium compounds, will be
collected in the fabric filter. The potential increase in PM from the reaction of lime and SO; will be collected
in the circulating dry scrubber system and the fabric filter. There will be no emissions increase over the PSD
significant emission rates from the installation of the AQCS.

Concurrent with the AQCS project, the Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by replacing the high and
intermediate pressure rotor along with the associated stationary elements. The steam turbine refurbishment.will
increase the efficiency of the steam turbine. There will be no changes to the existing electrical generator (i.e.,
no expansion in steam generating capability) and no increase in maximum heat input to the boiler or steam flow
capability of the turbine. '

Unit 2 is currently fired with low sulfur (0.8 weight percent sulfur) eastern bituminous coal. Following
installation and operation of the AQCS, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a variety of eastern bituminous coal
blend, including medium sulfur coal (up to 2.5 weight percent sulfur). SO, emissions due to cold and warm
startup will increase under worst-case condition by 25 tons per event due to non-availability of AQCS initially
when firing higher sulfur coal. On an annual basis, SO, emissions will decrease by 7,139 tons per year.

The project is expected to reduce emissions of SO,, NOx, PM and SAM as well as hydrogen fluoride and
mercury. The estimated reduction for NOx is 3,262 tons per year. Because the project will not result in a
significant increase in emissions, an air quality impact analysis was not required.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the Florida
Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air
permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Bureau of Air Regulation is the Permitting Authority
responsible for making a permit determination for this project. The Permitting Authority’s physical address is:
111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4, Tallahassee, Florida. The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s telephone
number is 850/488-0114.

(Publié Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)
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Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the
Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of
confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s
project review engineer for additional information at the address and phone number listed above. In addition,
electronic copies of these documents are available on the following web site:
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/eproducts/apds/default.asp.

Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit
to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that
operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all
appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting
Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a
timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public
comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of term:
or conditions. '

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for
a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must be postmarked
by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 14-day period. If
written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall
revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All comments filed will be made
available for public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition
for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain
the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the
Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard,
Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to
written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S. must be filed within 14 days of publication of this Public Notice or
receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who
asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that
notice, regardless of the date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the
address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate
time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing)
under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any
subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding
officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the
following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or
identification number, if known; (b) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner; the name
address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service
purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial rights will
be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the
agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the
petition must so state; (€) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the
petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the
specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed
action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A
statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to
take with respect to the agency’s proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon
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which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall
contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition
means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public
Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final
decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the
proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available for this proceeding.

(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)
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

Authorized Representative: Mr. George K. Allen, Assistant General Manager — Energy Supply

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
Wilderness Area.

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
ancillary support equipment. '

Emission control equipment presently installed on Unit 2 consists of a hot-side electrostatic
precipitator for control of particulate matter.

The standard industrial classification (SIC) code for the power plant is Major Group No. 49, Industry
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
nitrogen oxides (NOx), particulate matter (PM/PM,o), sulfur dioxide (SO,), and volatile organic
compounds (VOC).

The existing facility is major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).
The facility operates emissions units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

The facility is considered a “fossil fuel fired steam electric plant of more than 250 million BTU per
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
Chapter 62-17, F.A.C. and Chapter 403, Part II, Florida Statutes (F.S.).
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
Department in Rules 62-296.470 and 62-296.480, F.A.C., respectively. The AQCS planned for DGS
Unit 2 includes the following:

e Selective catalytic reduction (SCR) system to reduce NOx emissions.
e A circulating dry scrubber (CDS) to reduce SO, emissions.
e Baghouse (fabric filter) to reduce PM emissions. The baghouse is an integral part of the CDS.

e Ancillary support equipment including new material (urea, lime and CDS by-product)
handling and storage.

These emission control systems will also have the co-benefit of controlling mercury (Hg), hydrogen
chloride (HCI), hydrogen fluoride (HF) and sulfuric acid mist (SAM) emissions. Provisions have been
made in the design of the AQCS for activated carbon injection in the future if needed for additional Hg
control. The primary purpose of the project is to limit emissions of SO,, NOx and Hg to assist with
CAIR and CAMR. While the addition of SCR will substantially decrease emissions of NOX, there is
the potential for collateral increases in emissions of SAM and particulate matter (PM). The potential
increase of SAM emissions is a result of the oxidation of SO, to sulfur trioxide (SOs) that is emitted as
SAM after the CDS system. SAM emissions will also increase as a result of the proposed higher
sulfur coals. Potential increases in SAM emissions will be minimized through the injection of alkaline
reagent (lime) to react with SOs prior to the baghouse. The reactants, primarily particulate calcium
compounds, will be collected in the fabric filter. The potential increase in PM from the reaction of
lime and SO; will be collected in the CDS system and the fabric filter. There will be no emissions
increase over the PSD significant emission rates from the installation of SCR and CDS.

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
steam flow capability of the turbine. ' ‘

Following installation and operation of the AQCS, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a variety of eastern
bituminous coal blend, including medium sulfur coal (up to 2.5 percent sulfur), and still comply with
the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) Subpart D of 40 CFR 60.

REVIEWING AND PROCESS SCHEDULE

02-23-2007: Date of Receipt of Application

03-12-2007:  Department of Environmental Protection’s (DEP’s) 1¥ Completeness Request
03-30-2007:  Applicant’s response to DEP’s 1% Completeness Request

04-23-2007: DEP’s 2™ Completeness Request

05-15-2007:  Applicant’s response to DEP’s 2" Completeness Request

06-14-2007:  DEP’s 3™ Completeness Request

06-22-2007:  Applicant’s response to DEP’s 3" Completeness Request. Application complete

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
ductwork section called the SCR Reactor, which contains the catalyst. Ammonia vapor mixed with
dilution air is injected into the flue gas upstream of the catalyst and is thoroughly mixed with the flue
gas prior to the catalyst. As the flue gas passes over the catalyst, the nitrogen monoxide and nitrogen
dioxide combine with the ammonia to form nitrogen and water.

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

Unit 2 flue gas will flow through the three layers (two active and one future layer) of honeycomb
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
hours.

Gaseous arsenic is one of the predominant catalyst deactivation mechanisms in coal-fired SCR
applications. Introducing calcium oxide (CaO) to the fuel reduces the gaseous arsenic in the flue gas
and decreases its harmful effect on the catalyst. For the DGS Unit 2 SCR system, an addition rate of
0.51 weight percent CaO is expected to reduce the concentration of arsenic in the flue gas to within
acceptable limits, subsequently ensuring the catalyst for a minimum 24,000 hours of operation. This
optional CaO addition may be provided from lime or limestone.

A permanent sampling grid will be provided above and below the catalyst layers as well as between
layers. These grids will allow sampling of the gas stream from outside the SCR while the unit is
operating. A moveable NO, probe will be provided in each SCR reactor inlet and outlet. A
sampling/NOy analyzer system will be connected to each probe to measure the inlet and outlet NOy
and provide a process control signal for the ammonia injection system.

A urea-based ammonia system will be provided to supply ammonia for the SCR catalyst to remove
NO,. The system is sized to produce ammonia for two SCRs at full load. The urea to ammonia
system will use urea that is dissolved into water and the solution will be injected into heated in-line
hydrolysers at a controlled rate and under conditions to provide the required amount of ammonia. The
process will produce a gaseous mixture of ammonia, carbon dioxide and water vapor, which will be
mixed into the flue gas stream.

The Unit 2 SCR control systém is designed to achieve a target outlet NO, emission rate of 0.07 pounds
per million British thermal units (Ib/MMBtu) with an ammonia slip concentration of no more than 5.0
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parts per million at 3% oxygen (0;). The target SCR controlled NO, emission is ten times lower than
the current NSPS Subpart D limit of 0.7 lb/MMBtu.

Circulating Dry SO, Scrubber

CDS will be installed down stream of the existing Unit 2 induced draft (ID) fans. This flue gas
desulfurization (FGD) system will remove the acidic constituents of the flue gas, primarily SO, and
SO; and to a lesser extent carbon dioxide (CO,), HCI and HF, by reaction with hydrated lime. The
system includes the CDS vessel, adsorbent preparation and injection, water injection, product recycle
injection and a flue gas recycle system. To assure a high level of SO, removal, a portion of the solid
products exiting the CDS vessel (i.e., primarily reaction products such as calcium sulfite (CaSO;),
calcium sulfate (CaSQ,), calcium carbonate (CaCQ;), calcium chloride (CaCl,), calcium fluoride
(CaF;) and inerts) will be separated from the flue gas in the baghouse and recycled back into the CDS
to maintain the fluidized bed, while the excess material will be pneumatically transported out of the
system to a storage silo. The amount of solids recycled is dependent upon the differential pressure
within the CDS and the volumetric flue gas flow rate.

In order to ensure that the CDS is constantly fluidized, a portion of the flue gas stream downstream of
the two booster fans will be recirculated to the inlet duct of the CDS during boiler operation at reduced
loads. The amount of flue gas recirculated is accomplished through the positions of the two
recirculation dampers.

The CDS is designed so that flue gas flows through it whenever Unit 2 is operating (i.c., there are no
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
(i.e., lime). The reactor acts as a fluidized bed, assuring maximum contact between the pollutants in
the flue gas and the adsorbent solids. The reactor is characterized by high turbulences and optimal
chemical and physical heat and mass transfer rates. Water is added to bring the flue gas closer to the
saturation temperature where the SO, absorption is most effective. The high dust load leaving the
reactor is captured in the baghouse (fabric filter).

SO, will be measured at the inlet and outlet.of the CDS reactor. These measurements will be used to
vary the quantity of fresh lime that is introduced into the reactor. The final residue of the CDS process
is a moist product which may be landfilled or potentially re-utilized.

Hydrated lime, Ca(OH),, is the adsorbent used in the CDS process. Lime will be delivered to the DGS
via truck or rail and subsequently hydrated to increase its reactivity before injection in the CDS.
Within the hydrator, the lime is mixed with water and agitated until the hydration reaction is complete.
The quantity of fresh lime that is introduced into the CDS is controlled by inlet and outlet SO,
concentrations.

SAM emissions can also be controlled by injecting lime into the CDS reactor without water injection
and with no ash recirculating provided the baghouse is in-service. SAM emissions will be neutralized
by lime in the CDS reactor and will be collected as particulate calcium compounds by the downstream
fabric filter. To evaluate potential changes in SAM emissions, GRU proposes to conduct both baseline
(prior to installation of the AQCS) and post-AQCS stack testing. Baseline stack testing would be
conducted using compliance coal while the post-AQCS testing will evaluate both compliance and
higher sulfur coals, alternate lime injection locations, and various boiler/AQCS operating
configurations. The tests will serve to document the impact of lime injection on reducing SAM
emissions, and to develop correlations between lime injection rates and SAM emission rates.

GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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The DGS Unit 2 CDS control system is designed to achieve a target outlet SO, emission rate of 0.12
Ib/MMBtu. The target CDS controlled SO, emission is ten times lower than the current NSPS Subpart
D limit of 1.2 1b/MMBtu.

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
to a common ash silo equipped with redundant pug mills. The ash can then be loaded into trucks.

Each compartment will contain one cylindrical bag bundle with 984 filter bags per bundle. This
equates to a total of 9,840 bags installed, with an additional 2 percent included as startup spares. The
filter bags for this project will be fabricated from heavy weight 18 0z/yd nominal weight polyphenyl
sulfide (PPS), self supported with fused seam. The design air-to-cloth ratio is 4:1 or less with one
compartment off-line for maintenance.

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

The DGS Unit 2 fabnic filter control system is designed to achieve a target outlet filterable PM
emission rate of 0.015 1b/MMBtu. The target fabric filter controlled PM emission is 6.7 times lower
than the current NSPS Subpart D limit of 0.1 1b/MMBtu. '

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
ammonia dissolver tank where the urea is dissolved in water. The urea/water solution will then be
injected into a heated in-line reactor at controlled rates to produce the appropriate amounts of gaseous -
ammonia and water vapor. The gaseous ammonia and water vapor stream will then be injected into
the SCR control system. Accordingly, there will be no emissions associated with the unloading and
processing of urea.

Lime

The lime unloading and storage system includes equipment for the pneumatic unloading of pebble
lime from railcars or trucks, transport to a storage silo, and transport from the storage silo into two
lime day bins.

Lime will be received in 100 ton railcars that have bottom hopper outlets. Lime may also be received
in 25 ton maximum capacity trucks that have self-unloading blower systems. A roofed enclosure with
partial walls parallel to the track for wind and rain protection is provided to protect the unloading
operation from weather exposure. '

For railcar unloading, unloading pans are provided that are clamped to each of three hopper outlet
flanges, and a vacuum conveying system removes lime from the railcar hopper, one hopper section at a
time, into a filter receiver. From the filter receiver, lime is fed through an airlock, into an airlock
hopper, which discharges through another airlock into a positive pressure pneumatic conveyor. The
vacuum and pressure conveying systems each have two blowers, one blower is spare.

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

The positive pressure lime conveyor discharges into the lime storage silo. The silo has a vibrating bin
outlet, to assure continuous flow from the silo and has a bin vent to exhaust filtered air from the silo.
From the vibrating bin discharger, lime discharges through a diverter gate to either of two airlock
hoppers. Each hopper feeds an independent positive pressure conveyor that transports lime into either
of two-lime day bins. Two blowers are provided; one acts as a spare.

The positive pressure conveyor discharges lime into either of two day bins, selected by a diverter in
the convey line. Both day bins are provided with a bin vent filter. Two conveying pipes with hoses to
connect to self-unloading pressure differential trucks are also provided to use as emergency sources of
lime for the day bins.

Pebble lime from the day bins is conveyed to hydrators equipped with scrubbers where it is wetted to
approximately 1 to 2 percent moisture. Hydrated lime is then conveyed by a positive pressure
pneumatic conveyor into the hydrated lime silo. A bin vent filter is provided for the silo to vent
filtered conveying air from the silo. Hydrated lime discharges from the silo through an airlock, and
then into a feeder hopper, which discharges through another airlock into the conveying line. A
positive pressure conveyor transports hydrated lime to the turbo reactor. The conveyor has two
blowers with one acting as a spare. :

PM emission sources associated with the lime handling and storage system consist of: (1) railcar
unloading filter receiver, (2) lime storage silo, (3) two lime day bin silos, (4) two lime hydrator
scrubbers, and (5) hydrated lime storage silo. The railcar unloading filter receiver and each of the
storage silos will be equipped with bin vent fabric filters designed to achieve an outlet PM
concentration of 0.01 grains per dry standard cubic foot (gr/dscf).
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CDS Byproduct

A portion of the CDS byproducts will be collected by the CDS fabric filter and pneumatically
transferred to a CDS byproduct storage silo which will be equipped with a bin vent fabric filter
designed to achieve an outlet PM concentration of 0.01 gr/dscf.

CDS byproduct will then be transferred into two pin mixers where it will be mixed with water prior to
being loaded into trucks. There are no significant PM emissions associated with the wet pin mixer
operation.

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
one of the § years following the date the unit resumes regular operation after the project, or in any one
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
flow capability of the turbine. Since Unit 2 is a base load unit, there will also be no change in Unit 2
utilization (i.e., capacity factor) due to the AQCS project. Accordingly, the applicable period for
determining projected actual emissions for the Unit 2 AQCS project is the 5 years following
installation of the additional emission controls.

The Unit 2 AQCS project will result in substantial reductions in actual emissions of NOx, SO,,
PM/PM,o, HF and SAM. The Department has reasonable assurance that PM/PM,, emissions will not
increase due to the existing electrostatic precipitator as well as additional particulate control with the
baghouse system. No changes are planned to the Unit 2 combustion process. Accordingly, no change
in actual emissions of combustion related pollutants (i.e., CO and VOC) will result due to the AQCS

GRU . Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
Deerhaven Generating Station CAIR/CAMR Project — Boiler No. 2
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

project. Baseline actual emissions, projected actual emissions and net change in emissions are listed in
the following tables:

TABLE 1 — PAST ACTUAL EMISSIONS & 2-YEAR AVERAGES

Year SO, NOx PM PM;, H,;SO, HF Hg
(tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
2002 7,147.4 | 3,315.9 270.6 181.3 83.3 27.0 0.051
2003 7,678.8 3,666.3 308.3 206.5 83.0 29.0 0.044
2004 6,951.7 | 3,322.8 116.9 78.3 80.3 253 0.038
2005 8,042.9 | 3,932.5 96.9 64.9 103.3 33.0 0.025
2006 8,119.3 3691.9 151.0 101.2 93.5 29.9 0.045
02-03 N/A N/A 2894 193.9 N/A - N/A N/A
Average .
05-06 8,081.1 3812.2 N/A N/A 98.4 314 0.035
Average

TABLE 2 — PROJECTED ACTUAL EMISSIONS

SO, NOX PM PMy,  H,SOs HF Hg

(tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)  (tons/yr)

Projected 942.6 549.9 117.8 . 108.4 30.7 3.1 -0.0070
Emissions

AQCS - N/A N/A 6.0 6.0 N/A N/A N/A
Material

Handling - :

AQCS By- N/A N/A Neg. Neg. N/A N/A N/A
Product '
Truck Traffic

Totals 942.6 549.9 123.8 114.4 30.7 3.1 0.0070

TABLE 3 — ESTIMATED NET CHANGE IN ACTUAL EMISSIONS

SOQ NOx PM PM]O HQSO4 HF Hg
(tons/yr)  (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
Net Change | -7,138.5 | -3,2623 | -1656 | -795 | -67.7 | -283 | -0.028

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
periods are not considered violations pursuant to 40 CFR 60.8(c).

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

The emission units are regulated under Acid Rain, Phase II and Phase I; NSPS — 40 CFR 60 Subpart
D, Standards of Performance for Electric Utility Steam Generating Units for Which Construction is
Commenced After August 17, 1971, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62.204-800,
F.A.C.

5. 'AIR QUALITY ANALYSIS

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

GRU , Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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DRAFT PERMIT

PERMITTEE

City of Gainesville Permit No.: 0010006-005-AC
Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU) _ Facility ID No.: 0010006

Post Office Box 147117 (A132) Project: Installation of Air Quality
Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117 Control Systems
Authorized Representative: Expires: September 30, 2009

Mr. George K. Allen, Assistant General Manager
Energy Supply

PROJECT AND LOCATION.

This permit authorizes the installation of selective catalytic reduction (SCR), circulating dry scrubber (CDS)
and baghouse systems on existing Unit 2 at the Deerhaven Generating Station. The Deerhaven Generating
Station is an existing electrical generating plant (S1C No. 4911) located at 10001 NW 13™ Street in Gainesville,
Alachua County, Florida. The UTM coordinates are: Zone 17;365.7 km E; 3292.6 km N.

STATEMENT OF BASIS

The applicant elects to install the SCR, CDS and baghouse systems to provide full flexibility in implementing
the federal cap and trade program under the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). Because CAIR affords a
regulated facility the flexibility to evaluate market conditions to determine whether it will install controls,
operate existing controls, or purchase allowances generated by other plants, the Department does not require the
installation of SCR nor its operation. However, installation and operation of additional lime injection system is
required to reduce sulfuric acid mist (SAM). This construction permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter
403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida
Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and Title 40, Part 60 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). The above
named permittee is authorized to modify the facility in accordance with the conditions of this permit and as
described in the application, approved drawings, plans, and other documents on file with the Department of
Environmental Protection (Department).

CONTENTS

Section 1. General Information

Section 2. Administrative Requirements
Section 3. Emissions Unit Specific Conditions

Appendix GC. Construction Permit General Conditions

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida

(DRAFT)

Joseph Kahn, Director : (Date)
Division of Air Resource Management



SECTION 1. GENERAL INFORMATION (DRAFT)

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
generated by other plants, the Department does not require the installation of this equipment nor its operation.

Installation of the SCR system will result in collateral increases in emissions of SAM and particulate matter
(PM/PM,). The potential increase of SAM emissions is a result of the oxidation of sulfur dioxide (SO,) to
sulfur trioxide (SO;) that is emitted as SAM after the CDS system. The permit requires the injection of lime in
the CDS to reduce SAM emissions. The lime reacts with SO; to form particulate calcium compounds, which
will be collected in the downstream fabric filter (FF). With the lime injection in the CDS, there will be no
PSD-significant emissions increases of SAM due to the installation of SCR systems on Unit 2.

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

Title IlI: The existing facility is a major source of hazardous air poliutants (HAPs).

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

The permit request and additional information received.to make it complete are not a part of this permit;
however, the information is listed in the technical evaluation which is issued concurrently with this permit.

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS (DRAFT)

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
specifications stated in the application. The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403
of the Florida Statutes (F.S.); Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296, and 62-297 of the
Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.); and Title 40, Part 60 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)
adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The terms used in this permit have specific meanings as
defined in the applicable chapters of the Florida Administrative Code. The permittee shall use the
applicable forms listed in Rule 62-210.900, F.A.C. and follow the application procedures in Chapter 62-4,
F.A.C. Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal,
state, or local permitting or regulations. [Rules 62-204.800, 62-210.300 and 62-210.900, F.A.C.]

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

6. Title V Permit: This permit authorizes modification of the permitted emissions units and initial operation
to determine compliance with Department rules. A Title V operation permit is required for regular
operation of the permitted emissions unit. The permittee shall apply for a Title V operation permit at least
90 days prior to expiration of this permit, but no later than 180 days after commencing operation. To apply
for a Title V operation permit, the applicant shall submit the appropriate application form, compliance test
results, and such additional information as the Department may by law require. The application shall be
submitted to the appropriate Permitting Authority with copies to the Compliance Authority. [Rules 62-
4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220, and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.]

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
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SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS (DRAFT)

The specific conditions listed in this section apply to the following emission units:

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
and regulatory requirements. The facility remains subject to all of the requirements specified in the current
Title V Operation Permit (No. 0010006-003-AV). [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

AUTHORIZED WORK

2. SCR System: The permittee is authorized to construct, tune, operate and maintain a new SCR system for
Unit 2 to reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOy) as described in the application. In general, the SCR
system will include the following equipment: ammonia storage; ammonia flow control unit; ammonia
injection grid; three layers (two active and one future layer) of honeycomb catalyst; an SCR reactor
chamber; and other ancillary equipment. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE),
F.A.C.]

3. CDS System: The permittee is authorized to install a new CDS system for Unit 2 to reduce emissions of
SO, and SO;. The new system will be installed downstream of the existing Unit 2 induced draft fan. The
system includes the CDS vessel, adsorbent preparation and injection, water injection; product recycle
injection and a flue gas recycle system. The system contains instrumentation to measure flue gas pressures,
temperatures and SO, concentrations at various locations in the ductwork. SO, will be measured at the inlet
and outlet of the CDS reactor. [Application; Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

4. Baghouse System: The permittee is authorized to install one pulse-jet baghouse containing ten
compartments. The baghouse will be installed between the outlet of the CDS and inlet of the booster fans.
Design Information: Each compartment will contain one cylindrical bag bundle with 984 filter bags per
bundle. A total of 9,840 bags will be installed, with an additional 2 percent inciuded as startup spares. The
filter bags are fabricated from heavy weight 18 0z/yd nominal weight polyphenyl sulfide fabric. The design
air-to-cloth ratio is 4:1. An automatic cleaning system is utilized to dislodge the filter cake. [Application;
Rules 62-296.470(CAIR) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

5. Circumvention: No person shall circumvent any air pollution control device, or allow the emission of air
pollutants without the applicable air pollution control device operating properly. Operation of the SCR is
not required by this permit. As necessary, the permittee shall operate the lime injection system for SAM

“emissions control to ensure the project does not result in a PSD-significant emissions increase (7 tons/year)
of sulfuric acid mist emissions above baseline actual emissions (98 tons/year). [Rules 62-210.650 and 62-
212.400(12), F.A.C]

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

6. Annual SAM Emissions Projections: For this prbject, the permittee projected that actual annual emissions
due to the project would not exceed the baseline actual emissions of SAM (98 tons/year). The permittee

City of Gainesville, GRU Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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SECTION 3. EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS (DRAFT)

shali demonstrate this by compiling and submitting the reports required by this permit. [Application; and
Rules 62-212.300 and 62-210.370, F.A.C.]

Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: On an annual basis, the permittee must demonstrate that SAM
emissions as a result of this project do not exceed 98 tons per year. The permittee shall install and operate
the lime injection system at a frequency and injection rate for SAM control to satisfy this requirement. An
automated control system will be used to adjust the lime flow rate for the given set of operating conditions
based on the most recent correlation curves based on performance testing. [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-
212.300(1)e), F.A.C.]

Ammonia Slip: Ammonia slip' measured at the stack downstream of all emission control systems shall not
exceed 5 parts per million by volume (ppmv). Annual testing of ammonia shall be conducted and
corrective measures taken if measured values exceed 2 ppmv. [Design; and Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

EMISSIONS PERFORMANCE TESTINC

9.

Baseline Performance Tests — Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The permittee shall conduct
baseline performance tests at permitted capacity to evaluate potential changes in SAM emissions. Baseline
performance tests shall be conducted using current coal (0.8 weight percent sulfur). Three baseline
performance tests shall be conducted. The first baseline performance test shall be conducted prior to
installation of AQCS with no lime injection. The second baseline performance test shall be conducted prior
to installation of AQCS with lime injection into the boiler. The third baseline performance test shall be
done within 45 days of completing AQCS construction with lime injection into the CDS reactor. The
permittee shall submit a test notification to the appropriate authorities at least 15 days prior to each test and
shall submit a test report summarizing the emission tests and results within 45 days of the completion of the
each performance test. '

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

. Post- AQCS Construction Performance Tests — Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: The permittee

shall conduct post-AQCS performance tests to evaluate potential changes in SAM emissions. Post- AQCS
construction tests shall evaluate both current and higher sulfur (up to 2.5 weight percent) coals, alternate
lime injection locations, and various boiler/AQCS operating configurations. Within 120 days of

" completing construction of Unit 2 AQCS systems, the permittee shall conduct a series of performance tests

on Unit 2 to determine the SAM emissions rate under a variety of operating scenarios that documents the
impact of lime injection on reducing SAM emissions and results in the development of correlation curves
based on injection rates, operating conditions and emissions.

a. For each set of operating conditions being evaluated, the permittee shall conduct at least a 1-hour test
run to determine SAM emissions. At least nine such test runs shall be conducted to evaluate the effect
of SAM emissions on such parameters as the SO, emission rate prior to the SCR catalyst (and CDS
system), the unit load, the flue gas flow rate, the ammonia injection rate and the current catalyst
oxidation rate. :

b. Tests shall be conducted under a variety of fuel blends and load rates that are representative of the
actual operating conditions intended for Uit 2. Sufficient tests shall be conducted to establish the
SAM emissions rates for the following scenarios: SCR reactor in service without lime injection in the
CDS, and SCR reactor in service under varying operating conditions and levels of lime injection in the
CDS.

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
the last test run conducted, the permittee shall submit a project report summarizing the following:
identify each set of operating conditions evaluated, identify each operating parameter evaluated,

- identify the relative influence of each operating parameter, describe how the adjustment to the lime
injection rate be made based on the selected parameters, and provide details for calculating and
estimating the SAM emissions rate based on the level of lime injection and operating conditions. The
test results shall be used to adjust the lime injection system and estimate SAM emissions.

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

Annual Tests — Lime Injection for SAM Emissions Control: During each federal fiscal year, the permittee
shall conduct performance tests to determine the SAM emission rates and adjust the lime injection
correlation curves as necessary. At least six representative 1-hour test runs shall be conducted on Unit 2.
Within 45 days following the last test run conducted, the permittee shall provide a report summarizing the
emissions tests conducted, the results of the tests, the catalyst oxidation rate, and the updated series of
related lime injection correlation curves. [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]

Test Notification: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority in writing at least 15 days prior to
any required tests. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)9, F.A.C.]

Test Methods: Required tests shall be performed in accordance with the following reference methods:

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
determine flow rate and. gas analysis to calculate mass emissions in lieu of Methods 1-4.)

Compliance with the ammonia slip limit shall be determined annually using EPA conditional test method
(CTM-027), EPA method 320, or other methods approved by the Department [Rules 62-204.800 and 62-
297.100, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60, Appendix A]

STARTUP, SHUTDOWN, AND MALFUNCTION EMISSIONS

14.

15.

Startup, Shutdown and Malfunction: Operations during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction shall
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

Emissions: The permittee at all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction shall, to the
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

City of Gainesville, GRU ' Permit No. 0010006-005-AC
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
297.310(8), F.A.C.] :

17. Operational Data: The permittee shall continuously monitor and record the lime injection rate for SAM
emissions control. [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

18. Annual SAM Emissions Reports: In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., the permittee shall
comply with the following monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions:

a. The permittee shall monitor the SAM emissions using the most reliable information available. On a
calendar year basis, the permittee shall calculate and maintain a record of the annual emissions (tons
per year) for a period of 5 years after completing construction on unit’s control system. Emissions shall
be computed in accordance with Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C.

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
Annual emissions as calculated pursuant to subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1., F.A.C,;

c. If the emissions differ from the preconstruction projection, an explanation as to why there is a
difference; and '

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
or Compliance Authority for any regulatory purpose.:

[Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C.]
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APPENDIX GC
GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS [F.A.C. 62-4.160]

The terms, conditions, requirements, limitations, and restrictions set forth in this permit

are "Permit Conditions” and are binding and enforceable pursuant to sections 403.161, 403.727, or
403.859 through 403.861, F.S. The permittee is placed on notice that the Department will review this
permit periodically and may initiate enforcement action for any violation of these conditions.

This permit is valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and

indicated in the approved drawings or exhibits. Any unauthorized deviation from the approved
drawings, exhibits, specifications, or conditions of this permit may constitute grounds for revocation and
enforcement action by the Department

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
access to the premises, where the permitted activity is located or conducted to: ’ :
a. Have access to and copy any records that must be kept under the conditions of the permit;
b. Inspect the facility, equipment, practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit;
and
c. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location reasonably necessary to assure
compliance with this permit or Department rules.
Reasonable time may depend on the nature of the concern being investigated.

If, for any reason, the permittee does not comply with or will be unable to comply with any condition or |
limitation specified in this permit, the permlttee shall immediately provide the Department with the
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

Page 1



APPENDIX GC

10.

1L

12.

13.

14.

15.

GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS [F.A.C. 62-4.160]

In accepting this permit, the permittee understands and agrees that all records, notes, monitoring data
and other information relating to the construction or operation of this permitted source which are .
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
( )  Compliance with New Source Performance Standards (NSPS)

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

¢. Records of monitoring information shall include:

— the date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

— the person responsible for performing the sampling or measurements;
— the dates analyses were performed;

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
to the Department, such facts or information shall be corrected promptly.

Page 2



Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary .

Sent: Tuesday, July 10, 2007 8:51 AM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

————— Original Message-----

From: Dee Morse@nps.gov [mailto:Dee Morse@nps.gov]

Sent: Monday, July 09, 2007 6:11 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Return Receipt

Your City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT
~document:

was Dee Morse/DENVER/NPS

received :

by:

at: 07/09/2007 04:11:17 PM



Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, July 09, 2007 10:19 AM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: . FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

From: Jonynas, Yolanta E [mailto:JONYNASYE@gru.com]

Sent: Monday, July 09, 2007 8:16 AM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Read: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: JONYNASYE@gru.com
Subject:

" was read on 7/9/2007 8:16 AM.



~ Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary
"Sent: Thursday, July 05, 2007 9:38 AM
To: Adams, Patty
Subject: _ FW: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

From: Allen, George K (Chip) [mailto:ALLENGK@gru.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 03, 2007 4:28 PM

To: Harvey, Mary _
Subject: Read: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: ALLENGK@gru.com
Subject:

was read on 7/3/2007 4:28 PM.



Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary -

Sent: Monday, July 02, 2007 3:40 PM

To: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

From: Allen, George K (Chip) [mailto: ALLENGK@gru.com]
Sent: Monday, July 02, 2007 3:05 PM

To: Harvey, Mary
Subject: Read: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: ALLENGK@gru.com
Subject:

was read on 7/2/2007 3:05 PM.



Friday, Barbara

From: ' Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, July 02, 2007 9:23 AM

To: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed .

Subject: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

From: Halpin, Mike

Sent: Friday, June 29, 2007 4:43 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Read: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Your message

To: Halpin, Mike

Cc: Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT
Sent: 6/29/2007 4:13 PM

was read on 6/29/2007 4:43 PM.
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

From: Tom Davis [mailto:tdavis@ectinc.com]

Sent: Friday, June 29, 2007 7:25 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: RE: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

From: Harvey, Mary [mailto:Mary.Harvey@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Friday, June 29, 2007 4:09 PM

To: George K. Allen, GRU; Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU; Jim Little, EPA; Kathleen Forney, EPA; D. Morse, NPS; Kirts,
Christopher; Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.; Michael Halpin, OSC

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be
done by selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send".
We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail
transmissions to verify.receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please open
and review the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can be
downloaded for free at the following internet site:
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html. -

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and other
correspondence in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to provide
greater service to the applicant and the engineering community. Please advise this office of
any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

7/25/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Monday, July 02, 2007 9:21 AM

To: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

————— Original Message-----

From: Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov [mailto:Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov]
Sent: Monday, July 02, 2007 8:07 AM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Re: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

We got this... Thanks
Katy R. Forney

Air Permits Section
EPA - Region 4

61 Forsyth St., SW
Atlanta, GA 30024

Phone: 404-562-9130
Fax: 404-562-9019

"Harvey, Mary"
<Mary.Harvey@dep
.state.fl.us> - To
"George K. Allen, GRO"
06/29/2007 04:08 <allengk@gru.com>, "Yolanta E.
PM Jonynas, GRU"
<jonynasyefgru.com>, James
Little/R4/USEPA/USEEPA, Kathleen
Forney/R4/USEPA/US@EPA, "D.
Morse, NPS" <dee morse@nps.gov>,
"Kirts, Christopher”
<Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.u
s>, "Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT,
Inc." <tdavis@ectinc.com>,
"Michael Halpin, OSC"
<michael.halpin@dep.state.fl.us>
: cc
"Arif, Syed"”
<Syed.Arif@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Adams, Patty"
<Patty.Adams@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Gibson, Victoria"
<Victoria.Gibson@dep.state.fl.us>
Subject
City of Gainesville. GRU -
Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT



Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document (s}; this may be
done by selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting
"Send". We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent

e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document (s).

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

v

Thank you,
DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

dok ok ok ok kkh ok ok ok ok ok ok okok ok ohok ok ok kK ATTACHMENT NOT DELIVERED *ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok

This Email message contained an attachment named

0010006.005.AC.D pdf.zip
which may be a computer program. This attached computer program could contain a computer
virus which could cause harm to EPA's computers, network, and data. The attachment has
been deleted. o

This was done to limit the distribution of computer viruses introduced into the EPA
network. EPA is deleting all computer program attachments sent from the Internet into the
agency via Email.

If the message sender is known and the attachment was legitimate, you should contact the
sender and request that they rename the file name extension and resend the Email with the
renamed attachment. After receiving the revised Email, containing the renamed attachment,
you can rename the file extension to its correct name.

For further information, please contact the EPA Call Center at
(866) 411-4EPA (4372). The TDD number is (866) 489-4900.

Khok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ko ok ke ok ok ke ok ok k ke k ATTACHMENT NOT DELIVERED

Kok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok k ok ok ok ok ok ke ok ok k ke k
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Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Friday, June 29, 2007 4:09 PM

To: '‘George K. Allen, GRU'; 'Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU"; 'Jim Little, EPA'"; 'Kathleen Forney, EPA';
'D. Morse, NPS'; Kirts, Christopher;, "Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.’, 'Michael Halpin, OSC'

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Attachments: 0010006.005.AC.D_pdf.zip
Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be
done by selecting "Reply” on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting "Send".
We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail
transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

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

Sent: Friday, June 29, 2007 4:11 PM

To: 'Kathleen Forney, EPA'; 'Jim Little, EPA'

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: City of Gainesville. GRU - Facility #0010006-005-AC-DRAFT

Attachments: grugc - Facility #0010006-005-AC-Draft.PDF; gruint - Facility #0010006-005-AC-Draft.PDF;
grupermit - Facility #0010006-005-AC-Draft.PDF; grupn - Facility #0010006-005-AC-
Draft.PDF; grutepd - Facility #0010006-005-AC-Draft. PDF; Signed Documents - GRU - Facility
#0010006-005-AC-DRAFT pdf

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Friday, June 29, 2007 4:09 PM

To: 'George K. Alleri, GRU'; 'Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU'; 'Jim Little, EPA"; 'Kathleen Forney, EPA'; 'D. Morse, NPS';
Kirts, Christopher; Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.’; 'Michael Halpin, OSC’

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

From: _ Harvey, Mary

Sent: Thursday, June 21, 2007 4:.11 PM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: FW: Lir.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

From: Bates, Timothy C [mailto:BatesTC@qgru. com]

Sent: Thursday, June 21, 2007 2:11 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Read: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Your message

To: BatesTC@gru.com
Subject:

was read on 6/21/2007 2:11 PM.
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Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary
Sent: Wednesday, June 20, 2007 9:44 AM

To:
' Subject: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU -~ Mr. George Allen

Adams, Patty

From: Taylor, P. Joan [mailto:TAYLORPJ@gru.com] On Behalf Of Allen, George K (Chip)
Sent: Wednesday, June 20, 2007 9:08 AM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: RE: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

per your request, here is our "reply" verifying receipt.

®. Joan Taylor, Executive Assistant Sr.
Gainesville Regional Utilities

Energy Supply

®.0. Box 147117 4132

gainewi[[é, Fl 32614-7117
352-393-1710

“Go Florida Gators”

From: Harvey, Mary [mailto:Mary.Harvey@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 1:58 PM '

To: Allen, George K (Chip); Jim Little, EPA; D. Morse, NPS; Kirts, Christopher; Yolanta E. Jonynas GRU;
Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.; Michael Halpin, OSC

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty; Glbson Victoria

Subject: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr, George Allen

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply” message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may
be done by selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software and then selecting
"Send". We must receive verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent
e-mail transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document(s) may require immediate action within a specified time frame. Please
open and review the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat Reader can
be downloaded for free at the following internet site:

6/25/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2007 12:42 PM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

————— Original Message-----

From: Dee Morse@nps.gov [mailto:Dee Morse@nps.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2007 12:26 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Return Receipt

Your Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen
document :

was Dee Morse/DENVER/NPS

received

by:

at: 06/19/2007 10:26:20 AM
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http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.htmi.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices and
other correspondence in lieu of hard copies through the United States Postal System, to
“provide greater service to the applicant and the engineering community. Please advise
this office of any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

6/25/2007



Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Friday, June 15, 2007 9:33 AM

To: Adams, Patty

Subject: : RE: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Patty read this message before I email Kathleen at EPA. Do you think this is to stiff.

Mary

Kathy - I will forward your emails to the permitting engineers and they can make that
decision. :

Thanks,
Mary

————— Original Message-----

From: Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov [mailto:Forney.Kathleen@epamail.epa.gov]
Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 4:10 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Cc: Little.James@epamail.epa.gov; Adams, Patty

Subject: Fw: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Hey Mary,

We received this message. I know you send all the permits to me now,
but can you also add me to any emails that have any kind of permitting
- coorespondance (especially the one that you would like a reply notice
back on).

Thanks

Katy

Katy R. Forney

Air Permits Section
EPA - Region 4

61 Forsyth St., SwW
Atlanta, GA 30024

Phone: 404-562-9130
Fax: 404-562-9019
————— Forwarded by Kathleen Forney/R4/USEPA/US on 06/14/2007 04:06 PM

————— Forwarded by James Little/R4/USEPA/US on 06/14/2007 04:06 PM -----

"Harvey, Mary"
<Mary.Harvey@dep

.state.fl.us> To
<allengk@gru.com>, James

06/14/2007 01:58 . Little/R4/USEPA/USREPA, "D.

PM : Morse, NPS" <dee morse@nps.gov>,

"Kirts, Christopﬁer"
<Christopher.Kirts@dep.state.fl.u
s>, "Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU"
<jonynase@gru.com>, "Tom W.

1



Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc."
<tdavis@ectinc.com>, "Michael
Halpin, OSC"
<michael.halpin@dep.state.fl.us>
cc
"Arif, Syed"
<Syed.Arif@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Adams, Patty"
<Patty.Adams@dep.state.fl.us>,
"Gibson, Victoria"
<Victoria.Gibson@dep.state.fl.us>
Subject
Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU -

Mr. George Allen
N

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply" message verifying receipt of the attached
document (s); this may be done by selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of
your e-mail software and then selecting "Sehd"”. We must receive
verification of receipt and your reply will preclude subsequent e-mail
transmissions to verify receipt of the document(s).

The document (s) may require immediate action within a specified time
frame. Please open and review the document(s) as soon as possible.

The document is in Adobe Portable Document Format (pdf). Adobe Acrobat
Reader can be downloaded for free at the following internet site:
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for
permits, notices and other correspondence in lieu of hard copies through
the United States Postal System, to provide greater service to the
applicant and the engineering community. Please advise this office of
any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,
DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

(See attached file: Letter-George K. Allen - DEP #0010006-005-AC.pdf)
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Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 1:58 PM

To: ‘allengk@gru.com’; 'Jim Little, EPA'; 'D. Morse, NPS'; Kirts, Christopher; '"Yolanta E. Jonynas,
GRU'; 'Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.", 'Michael Halpin, OSC'

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria -

Subject: Ltr.- City of Gainesvillé, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Attachments: Letter-George K. Allen - DEP #0010006-005-AC.pdf
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
- any changes to your e-mail address or that of the Engineer-of-Record.

Thank you,

DEP, Bureau of Air Regulation

6/25/2007
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Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:00 PM

To: Halpin, Mike

Cc: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Attachments: Letter-George K. Allen - DEP #0010006-005-AC. pdf

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 1:58 PM '

To: ‘allengk@gru.com'; 'Jim Little, EPA'; 'D. Morse, NPS'; Kirts, Christopher; 'Yolanta E. Jonynas GRU'; "Tom W.
Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc."; 'Michael Halpin, OSC'

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
http://mvww.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.htmi.

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

From: . Harvey, Mary

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:13 PM

To: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

From: Halpin, Mike

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:12 PM

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
Sent: . 6/14/2007 2:00 PM

was read on 6/14/2007 2:12 PM.
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Friday, Barbara

From: Harvey, Mary

Sent:  Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:14 PM

To: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed

Subject: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

From: Tom Davis [mailto:tdavis@ectinc.com]

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:08 PM

To: Harvey, Mary

Subject: RE: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

From: Harvey, Mary [mailto:Mary.Harvey@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 1:58 PM

To: allengk@gru.com; Jim Little, EPA; D. Morse, NPS; Kirts, Christopher; Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU; Tom W.
Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.; Michael Halpin, OSC

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Dear Sir/Madam:

Please send a "reply” message verifying receipt of the attached document(s); this may be
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
downloaded for free at the following internet site: :
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep.html.

The Bureau of Air Regulation is issuing electronic documents for permits, notices énd other
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

Sent: .Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:14 PM

To: Adams, Patty; Arif, Syed .

Subject: FW: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

From: Kirts, Christopher

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:13 PM

To: Harvey, Mary _

Subject: Read: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Your message

-

To: ‘allengk@gru.com'’; 'Jim Little, EPA'; 'D. Morse, NPS'; Kirts, Christopher; 'Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU'; Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc.’;
‘Michael Halpin, OSC' '

Cc: Arif, Syed; Adams, Patty; Gibson, Victoria

Subject: Ltr.- City of Gainesville, GRU - Mr. George Allen

Sent: 6/14/2007 1:58 PM

was read on 6/14/2007 2:13 PM.



Florida Department of e
Environmental Protection Jeff Kottkamp
Lt. Governor

Bob Martinez Center
2600 Blair Stone Road Michael W. Sole
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 Secretary

June 14, 2007

ELECTRONIC MAIL - RECEIVED RECEIPT REQUESTED
allengk(@eru.com

Mr. George K. Allen,

Assistant General Manager — Energy Supply
City of Gainesville, GRU

P. O. Box 147117 (A132)

Gainesville, Flonda 32614-7117

Re: DEP File No. 0010006-005-AC
Air Quality Control System Addition
Deerhaven Generating Station — Unit 2

Dear Mr. Allen:

The Department has received the additional information on May 15, 2007 in response to our
request for information letter dated April 23, 2007. Based on review of this information, we have
determined that additional information is needed in order to continue processing this application
package. Please submit the information requested below to the Department’s Bureau of Air
Regulation: ‘

1. Please provide cold start-up procedures for Unit 2. In providing this information indicate the
fuel used in different stages of start-up procedure. Indicate the time consumed for each phase
of fuel change during the start-up. Also, provide historical start-up data for Unit 2 for the last
three years (2003-2006) in terms of how many cold and warm start-ups were conducted.
Provide the time it took for the unit to bring on-line for each of those start-ups.

2. Provide information on operational difficulties in starting up with compliance (0.8 weight
percent sulfur) coal. What difficulties can be expected if two different grades of coal are
required to be on site?

3. Please provide emissions analyses for SO, during start-up for compliance coal as well as high
sulfur (2.5 weight percent) coal.

4. Provide information on critical parameters for the AQCS equipments for start-up requirements.
The critical parameters should include temperature, pressure, gas flow rates and time, etc.

"More Protection, Less Process”
www.dep.state.fl.us



Mr. George K. Allen
June 14, 2007
Page 2 of 2

Rule 62-4.050(3), F.A.C. requires that all applications for a Department permit must be certified
by a professional engineer registered in the State of Florida. This requirement also applies to
responses to Department requests for additional information of an engineering nature. Permit
applicants are advised that Rule 62-4.055(1), F.A.C. requires applicants to respond to requests for
information within 90 days.

We will be happy to meet and discuss the details with you and your staff. I may be contacted at
850/921-9528. :

Sincerely,

Syt %
Syed Arif, P.E.
Bureau of Air regulation

/sa

cc: Jim Little, EPA (little.james(@epa.gov)
D. Morse, NPS (dee_morse@nps.gov)
Chris Kirts, DEP-NED (christopher kirts@dep.state.fl.us)
Yolanta E. Jonynas, GRU (jonynase@gru.com)
Tom W. Davis, P.E., ECT, Inc. (tdavis@ectinc.com)
Michael Halpin, OSC (michael.halpin@dep.state.fl.us)




" ..Environmental

3701 Northwest

98th Street |

Gainesville, FL
32606

" (352)
3320444

*FAX(352) -
3326722

scr

Consult]ng,& -Technolog)', lnc o o RECEQ?VED

"v\‘MrSyedAanE L

‘March 29, 2007 .

*Florida Department of Env1ronmental Protect1on
- Division of Air Resource Management -
111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite 23"
Tallahassee,‘Florida 32301

Re: . Gamesvrlle Reglonal Utllltles
' Deerhaven Generating Statlon Unit 2
Air Quality Control System Addition - ‘ S
- DEP File No. 010006-005-AC - | ‘ ,
- Responses to Request for Addltronal lnformatlon '

Dear Mr. Ar1f

. Gainesville Reglonal Ut1l1t1es (GRU) rece1ved your letter dated March 12,2007 requestmg additional
information with regard to the addition of emission control equipment to Deerhaven Generatmg
Station (DGS) Unit 2. On behalf of GRU, this correspondence provides a response to each specific ‘
issue rajsed by the Department of Environmental Protection (Department). For your convenierce, the
Department s comments and our responses are prov1ded below :

Department Comment No 1-

Please provide a flow dragram of Unit 2 mcludmg any control equrpment as 1t ‘exists now. Also
provide a flow diagram showing all the changes taking place due to the proposed prOJect Include in.’
the flow dlagram material balance flow rates for all the cr1ter1a pollutants ;

‘ GRU Response .

Emissiori control equrpment ‘presently installed ‘on Umt 2 cons1sts of a hot side’ electrostatrc
* precipitator (ESP) for control of particulate matter (PM) As described in the air construction permit
application submitted to the Department, additional emission control equlpment proposed for Unit2
- includes Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) to control NO, émissions, a circulating dry scrubber )
(CDS) to reduce SO, emissions, and a fabric filter (FF) to control-emissions of PM. The existing hot-
~ side ESP will remain in service. A flow diagram showing the current and proposed Unit 2 emission
control equipment is attached (Attachment 1). The flow diagram also provrdes estimates of critéria -
pollutant emission rates as the boiler exhaust stream passes through the emission control equipment.

_Department Comment No 2

Please provide the capacrty factors for Umt 2. based on heat input for the per10d 2002 2006 Explam -
thie reasons for a less than 80 percent capacity factor for-any year. Add1t1ona11y, provide the maximum

| hourly heat input rate for Unit 2 during the same. period. Provide the heat input rate to Unit 2 during
~annual comphance test for particulate matter (PM) during the same period of 2002-2006. Show the

"calculatlons in arrrvmg at the heat 1nput numbers for the perlod 2002 2006 as llsted Table 6-1 of the, ‘
appllcat1on o . .

v
.

An Equal Opportunity/ Affirmative Action Ernpleyer i
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- March 29,2007 ST e R

.GRU Response ‘

Ny ,Un1t 2hasa net generat1on capability of approx1mately 228 megawatts (MW) result1ng in a max1mum

-~ annual net generat1on capacity of 1,997,280 MW based on continuous operation (i.e., 8760. hours/yr)

~ . Unit 2 capac1ty factors for the 2002 through 2006 penod are prov1ded in the followmg table

a TR . Net Generat1on IR f Capac1ty Factor ‘
. Year ol '(MWh/yr). s (%)
[ R '.1,265;583 o . '63’
.~ 2003 1 - 1350868 . . | . - 68
2004 - |- - 1,180414- . .| .- .- 597
T.2005 . 1,546,277 o T
-,2006, Lo .,_1381787 89,

: .The capac1ty factors reﬂect the general demand for electr1c1ty, planned and unplanned un1t outages
- unit load l1m1tat1ons and purchases of electr1c1ty from other ut1l1t1es dur1ng the part1cular year

Unit 2 heat 1nput data (based on fuel consumpt1on and heat content) dunng the annual PM compl1ance L
- tests 1s prov1ded in the follow1ng table : - :

Date of ', D Average Heat Input

Compliance Test .~ | = (106 Btu/hr)
061802 .7 | 2219
. .06/23/03 0 . . | 2376 -
~.06/08/04 2390
08/15/05 . - | - 2393
07/20/06 . - . |. ; *.'2209,,

~The basel1ne annual heat 1nput data shown in Table 6-1- of the subm1tted air construct1on perm1t o

h application was obtained from the EPA Clean Air Markets Division. (CAMD) website and reflects .

GRU hourly CEMs data reported to EPA pursuant to the Acid Rain Program The EPA.CAMD - ° .
webs1te can‘be accessed at. http //cfpub epa gov/gdm/mdex cfm‘7fuseact1on'"em1ss1ons wizard:

- _»'DepartmentCommentNo 3 B .>_'

- . . The appl1cat1on states that the select1ve catalyt1c reduct1on (SCR) system w1ll be des1gned SO that flue .
gas flows. through it whenever Unit 2 is operat1ng, i.e., there are’no bypasses. Does th1s 1mply that o
ammonia 1n]ect1on to the SCR will always be on whenever Unit 2 is operat1ng‘7 R :

‘ GRU Response

. In air constructlon perm1ts for s1m1lar prOJects (e. g Progress EnergyFlonda Crystal R1verUn1ts4and' o
© 5), the Department states that “Because CAIR and CAMR afford-the ﬂex1b1l1ty to evaluate market o
- conditions to determine whether it will install controls, operate ex1st1ng controls, or purchase
. allowances _generated by other plants the ‘Department does not require. the 1nstallat1on of th1s v
equipment nor its operat1on (1 €., 1n]ect1on of reagents such as ammoma or llme)

Enwlonmental Consumng & Technology inc. . -



. Mr, Syed Arif, P.E. -
- March 29,2007
Page -3-

© L

N~ Per our telephone conversat1on CAIR affords a regulated facility the ﬂex1b1l1ty to evaluate market

‘conditions_ to. determ1ne whether it ‘will install .controls, operate . existing controls, or purchase i

- allowances ‘genlerated by -other plants;- Therefore, GRU is not required by regulatlon to 1nstall nor I
: operate the proposed air qual1ty control system (AQCS) to meet CAIR requ1rements ' el

Department Comment No. 4

The appl1cat1on states that the. C1rculat1ng Dry Scrubber (CDS) system to control S02 and SO3

emissions will be designed so that flue gas flows through it whenever Unit 2 is operat1ng, i.e., there -

are no bypasses Does this imply that hydrated lime w1ll be introduced into' the scrubber at all times .
' when Un1t 2.is operat1ng'7 : : o o

"GRU Response

) ’Please see response to Department Comment No 3 above '

S

0!

C Department Comment No.5

. Please explam where hydrogen fluoride (HF) and sulfuric ac1d mist (SAM) emlss1ons are. bemg
formed and what steps are being taken to mitigate them.

a ~GRUResponse L T §

Coal combusted in Unit 2 conta1ns trace amounts of fluoride compounds Dunng the combust1on _
process, hydrogen ﬂuonde (HF) aerosols are formed a port1on of wh1ch thay be adsorbed on ﬂy ash or . :
bottom ash : .

EPA (reference Sect1on 1.1 of AP-42) estlmates that approx1mately 0.7 percent of the sulfur contarned :

in coal combusted in pulverized coal- fired boilers will be oxidized to SO; during the combustlon

process. The SCR-NO control system planned for Unit 2 will also catalytlcally oxidize a small portion -

* of the exhaust stream SO; to S0;. SO; readily reacts with. water to form sulfuric acid mist (SAM)-
aerosols. Accordingly, any SO, formed during the combust1on of coal in Unit 2 or by the SCR control

f-system w111 be converted to SAM : :

“ Both HF and SAM are ac1d gas aerosols that can be neutrallzed by react1on wuh an alkahne reagent
_ Alkaline sorbent injection is an established control technology for reducmg emissions of acid’ gases

“"suchas HF and SAM. As stated in the Unit 2 AQCS air construction permit appl1cat1on on Page 6-3,.

- the CDS proposed for Unit 2 will employ an-alkaline reagent (i.e., lime) that is projected to reduce HF ..

- and SAM emissions by over 90 percent. HF and SAM that are neutralized by lime in the CDS willbe
~ collected as particulate calcium compounds by the downstream fabnc filtér. Reductions in actual

Unit 2 HF and SAM emissions are estlmated to be approx1mately 28 and 67 .tons per year
‘respect1vely : . , - .

v 'Department Comment No. 6

E_Please provide the calculat1ons in amvmg at the actual HF and SAM emissions ‘for the period
' 2002-2006. How. does it compare with the emissions number obtained by do1ng mater1al balance
calculat1ons" Please prov1de those calculat1ons as well. -

Sl

e . " . Environmenta! Consulling & Technology, Inc.



~ Mr. Syed Arif, P.E.
- ‘March 29, 2007
- Page 4- -

GRU Response

~ As stated. in the Unit 2 AQCS air construct1on perm1t appl1cat10n on Page 6-2, baselme (2002 2006)..' o
"HF and SAM emissions were estimated usirig regulatory and 1ndustry gu1dance developed for to the '
' T0x1c Release Inventory (TRI) regulatory program : - =

g HF is calculated by usmg the concentrat1on of ﬂuonne in the coal based upon analys1s results and the
quantity of coal combusted. It is assumed-that all of the HF created by combust10n is released from -
- the stack Details of the calculatron are shown below ‘ : . B
' tonsofcoal x -zooo bs. x. _ibsof F  x _MWoIHF = Ibs.of HE -
cyF.o o lten 10°1bs; of coal: - MWof F- yr .-

. HZSO4 (aerosol) is calculated by: using the concentrat1on of sulfur in the- coal based upon analys1s .
results and the quantity of coal combusted as provided in Estimating Total Sulfuric Ac1d Emissions
* from Coal-Fired Power Plants (Southern Company Services, Inc.) included herein'as Attachment 2.
. These est1mat1ng procedures were developed spec1ﬁcally for tangent1ally-ﬁred and dry-bottom wall- .
. fired b01lers such as’ Un1t 2. : - -

. vAdd1t1ona1 assumpt10ns about the type of part1culate control dev1ce at the plant (ie. hot side ESP and .
~-air heater) are used to estimate the amount H,SO, (aerosol) reléased. For purposes of the TRI reports .
the followmg equatlon is used for the release est1mate for sulfunc ac1d mlst

E (K)(Fl)(FZ)(EZ) o Lo ', See pg 6 and Example 3 onpg 16 ‘
-~ Where: : - : o o
- K= molecular we1ght and uniits conversion. constant 3,06_3‘ I See pg..5
" F1 = Fuel 1mpact factor for eastern bituminous coal =0.008 - - See Table 3, pg. 9
F2 = Technology impact factor for-control devices = (1%0.50)=0.5 - See Table 4,pg.10 .
‘,E2 802 em1ss10ns calculated from. coal bumed 1n tons/year SR See pE. 5 and6 -

' i As noted above in the response to FDEP Comment No. 5, the CDS proposed for Un1t 2 will employ an "
.. alkaline reagent that is projected to reduce HF and SAMe emissions by over 90 percent. Reductlons in

actual Unit 2 HF and SAM emissions are estimated to be approximately 28 and 68 tons: per year,

* . respectively. Accordmgly, the use of a CDS achlevmg 90 percent removal of HF and SAM provides

_ reasonable assurance that emission mcreases of these two pollutants w1ll not occur. due to 1nstallat1on ’ -
- of the Unit 2 AQCS ' : : . -

"Department Comment No.7 -

A iPlease expla1n why the h1ghest heat 1nput for the year 2006 was used in determmlng the prOJected
- actual em1ss1ons instead of usmg the annual average for the per10d 2005 2006

. GRU Response

To conservatlvely est1mate future pI‘O_] ected actual emrssmns the hi ghest annual heat 1nput over the

’ 2002 2006 five year penod was used consistent with. the Rule 62-210. 200(247) F.A.C. deﬁn1t1on of

/ proyected actual emissions. Use of the average heat input for the 2002-2006 penod would result i ina o

sl1ght1y lower est1mate of future prOJected actual emlss10ns : : '
‘:C 7

Enwlonmenlal Consulting & Technology Inc



T 'Department Comment No

Mr. Syed Arif, P.E. -
March 29, 2007
Page -5-

Please prov1de emissions data for CO. How. will the change affect CO em1ss10ns‘7 How is the baseliné
' actual CO emissions determmed and how w1ll the pro_]ected actual CO emlssmns be mon1tored‘7

- GRU Response

'_ Umt 2 CO-emissions, based on Annual Operatmg Report (AOR) data for the 2002 2006 penod are
' prov1ded in the followmg table. . .

e | Unit2CO Emissions
“Year . .. . . - . (ton/year) -
2002 - L S 151 '
2003 1163
2004 ‘ T 141
2005 oo 192 , .
2006 o Sl 173 o _.,' ,

- As noted on Page 6- 2 of the air constructron permit appllcat1on no changes are planned to the DGS L
Unit 2 combustion process. Accordingly, no change -in actual emissions of combust1on related .

o pollutants such as CO will result due to the AQCS project. There are no requirements to monitor coO

emissions from Unit 2..GRUwill continue to provide Unit 2 actual annual CcO emissions in the AORs

. submitted to the Department in March of each year based on, fuel usage ‘and fuel spec1f1c AP-42 L
. emission factors = : . :
' As requested a profess1onal engineer cert1ﬁcat1on is attached (Attachment 3) ‘GRU understands that -
with the submrss1on of this additional 1nformat1on the Department will continue processmg the air -
construction pérmit application for the DGS Umt 2 AQCS project. The AQCS planned for DGS Unit -

i - 2 will achieve target NQO,, SO,, and PM emission rates that are approx1mately ten times lower than

current Unit 21 emission limits. Accordingly, the Depattment’s continued exped1t1ous processmg ofthe .
- Unit 2 AQCS air construct1on permlt appl1cat1on will be apprec1ated - S e

l If you have any further quest1ons regardmg th1s matter, please contact me at (352) 332 0444 Ext 351
'Smcerely, |

' ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING & TECHNOLOGY, INC.- .~ ° -

Thomas W. Davis, P:E.
,Principal Engineer

Attachments

cc: . A_Chr1s Knts FDEP Northeast District
: " Yolanta Jonynas GRU :

Doug Beck, GRU 4 ' : S c
- Angela Momson Uhland, Hoppmg Green & Sams P A L ' : l

Envlronmen!al Consulnng & Technology inc.



ATTACHMENT 1

DGS UNIT 2 AQCS FLOW DIAGRAM
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NOTES:

1. NO CHANGE IN CO OR VOC EMISSIONS WILL
RESULT DUE TO THE AQCS PROJECT.

2. EMISSION RATES BASED ON UNIT 2 HEAT INPUT
OF 2,428 MMBTU/HR, COAL HEAT CONTENT OF
12,531 BTU/LB, AND COAL COMBUSTION RATE OF
96.9 TONS/HR.

3. BOILER OUTLET PM EMISSIONS BASED ON A COAL
ASH CONTENT OF 12% AND AP-42 FACTOR (LB
PM/TON COAL) OF 10 X % ASH.

4. BOILER OUTLET SOz EMISSIONS BASED ON A COAL
SULFUR CONTENT OF 2.5% AND ASSUMED COMPLETE
OXIDATION OF FUEL SULFUR TO SOa

5. BOILER OUTLET NOx EMISSIONS BASED ON 0.7
LB/MMBTU.

6. STACK PM, NOx AND SOz EMISSIONS RATE BASED
ON CONTROLLED RATES OF 0.015, 0.07, AND 0.12
LB/MMBTU RESPECTIVELY

BYPRODUCT
(DUMPSTER)

AR SLIDE(S)

BYPRODUCT

DH2 PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM
WITH AIR QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEM

STRATEGIC PLANNING DEPARTMENT
GAINESVILLE REGIONAL UTILITIES
PO BOX 147117
GAINESVILLE, FL 32614-7117
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DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITIES

THIS PAPER WAS PREPARED BY SOUTHERN COMPANY SERVICES, INC. NEITHER SOUTHERN
COMPANY SERVICES NOR ANY PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF SOUTHERN COMPANY SERVICES:

(A) MAKES ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, (I) WITH RESPECT TO THE USE OF ANY INFORMATION, APPARATUS,
METHOD, PROCESS, OR SIMILAR ITEM DISCLOSED IN THIS PAPER, INCLUDING
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR (II) THAT
SUCH USE DOES NOT INFRINGE ON OR INTERFERE WITH PRIVATELY OWNED
RIGHTS, INCLUDING ANY PARTY'S INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, OR (II) THAT THIS
PAPER IS SUITABLE TO ANY PARTICULAR USER'S CIRCUMSTANCE; OR

(B) ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY
WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING ANY CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF SOUTHERN
COMPANY SERVICES OR ANY REPRESENTATIVE HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES) RESULTING FROM YOUR SELECTION OR USE OF
THIS PAPER OR ANY INFORMATION, APPARATUS, METHOD, PROCESS, OR SIMILAR
ITEM DISCLOSED IN THIS PAPER.



"ABSTRACT

This paper presents a method for estimating both the manufacturing threshold value and release
of sulfunc acid (H,SO.) from coal-fired boilers. The U. S. Environmental Protection Agency’s
Toxic Release Inventory (TRI) reporting system requires that, beginning in 1998, electric utilities
estimate their emissions of over 600 chemical compounds. “Sulfuric acid aerosol®*" is one of the
‘compounds included in the TRI. EPA defines sulfuric acid aerosols as “includ[ing] mists, vapors,
gas, fog, and other airborme forms of any particle size.” Since this definition is technically
inaccurate but necessary to follow EPA requirements, these forms of sulfuric acid will be
identified as aerosol™™ to avoid confusion. In coal-fired plants, the chemical H,SO, is created in
the ductwork downstream of the boiler by the combination of water vapor and sulfur trioxide
(80:3), both of which are manufactured during the coal combustion process. The TRI reporting
rules do not require the collection of any new data. The estimation method presented herein uses
data and information already available at most coal-fired plants. These factors include the SO,
emissions level from either continuous emissions monitors (CEMs) or fuel data, the type of fuel
being burned, and the particulate control device(s) used to control dust emissions. Although this
method could be applied to many types of coal-fired boilers, the estimates contained herein were
developed specifically for dry-bottom, wall-fired and tangentially fired boilers.



Introduction ‘

Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), also
known as the Toxic Release Inventory (TRI), requires facilities that “manufacture,” “process” or
“otherwise use” a listed chemical above certain threshold amounts to report their annual releases
- of the chemical to EPA and state agenc1es The TRI reporting requirements are triggered if a

facility “manufactures” or ’processes” more than 25,000 pounds of a listed chemical or
“otherwise uses” more than 10,000 pounds of a listed chemical in a given calendar year. TRI
releases are reported on a report called the “Form R.”

Sulfuric acid is a listed TRI chemical. In June 1995, the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) modified the list of chemicals subject to the EPCRA § 313 reporting requirements so that
only aerosol forms of sulfuric acid would be subject to the TRI reporting requirements[2]. EPA
defines sulfuric acid aerosols as “includ[ing] mists, vapors, gas, fog, and other airborne forms of
any particle size.” Since this definition is technically inaccurate but necessary to follow EPA
requirements, these forms of sulfuric acid will be identified as aerosol™™ to avoid confusion.

Beginning on July 1, 1999, certain coal- and oil-fired electric power plants will be required to
report annual releases of TRI chemicals that they manufacture, process or otherwise use above
threshold amounts. Under EPA’s EPCRA § 313 regulations, coal- and oil-fired electric utilities
are deemed to “manufacture” sulfuric acid aerosol®*. Thus, electric utilities will have to submit
TRI reports on sulfuric acid aerosol™*  releases if they “manufacture” more than 25,000 pounds
of the chemical in a given reporting year{3].

In coal-fired power plants, sulfuric acid (H,SO,) is created in the ductwork downstream of the
boiler by the combination of water vapor and sulfur trioxide (SOs), both of which are
manufactured during the coal combustion process. This paper presents a method for estimating
the total aerosol*** amount of H,SO. manufactured in coal-fired utility boilers. Also, this paper
provides a method of estimating the amount of sulfuric acid aerosol** released if the unit’s
production of H,SO. aerosol®"* exceeds the threshold, making this amount the reportable
quantity.

Following the presentation of the proposed prediction method, supporting information regarding
the impact of fuel grade on the formation of SOs, the conversion of SO;to H,SO,, and the effect
of particulate control equipment on H,SOs collection are presented. Then, trends are presented
which provide insight on the volume of H,S0, aerosol™™ emitted by power plants of varying
sizes, efficiencies, and configurations. The effect of coal sulfur content is also shown. Finally,
sample calculations are provided. Although this method could be applied to many types of coal-
fired boilers, the estimates contained herein were developed specifically for dry-bottom wall-fired
and tangentially-fired boilers. Cyclone fired boilers may be added in a future version of this paper.

THRESHOLD DETERMINATION AND RELEASE PREDICTION METHOD

TRI reporting is required for sulfuric acid aerosol® only if any of the three activity thresholds
(manufacture, process or otherwise use) is exceeded in a given calendar year. The quantity of
sulfuric acid aerosol®* which is released to the environment does not determine whether a
reportmg requirement has been triggered. If an activity threshold is not exceeded, no Form R
report is required, regardless of the amount of sulfuric acid aerosol®™ released. All sulfuric acid

aerosolE"* manufactured, processed or otherwise used is to be counted toward threshold
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determinations. However, electric utilities are likely to be concemed only with the “manufacture
of sulfuric acid aerosol®. This includes any amount of sulfuric acid aerosol*™ that may be
generated in closed systems or that is generated in stacks prior to or after being treated by
scrubbers [3].

IEPA

The fol]owmg relationship is proposed to estimate the total HZSO4 aerosol™ "~ manufactured in a

coal-fired utility boiler:
El1=K eFl e E2

where, E1= total H,SO, aerosol®* manufactured lbs/yr
K = Molecular weight and units conversion constant = 98.07 /. 64 04 e 2000 =3 063

: 98.07 = Molecular weight of H,SO4; 64.04 = Molecular weight of SO, -
Conversion from tons per year to pounds per year — multiply by 2000.

F1= Fuel Impact Factor

E2= Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions either: (1) recorded by a continuous emissions
monitor and corrected for positive flow bias and bias due to wall effects, tons/yr
or (2) calculated from coal burn data, tons/yr.

In the derivation of this relationship, the following assumptions are made:

SO; concentrations are proportional to SO, concentrations.

The grade of coal being burned impacts the rate of conversion from SO, to SO;.
All SO; that forms is converted to H,SO; aerosol=*.

The boiler is wall-fired or tangentially-fired.

The rate of SO; formation is independent of the boiler firing rate (unit load).

The rate of SO, emissions as derived from continuous emissions monitor (CEM) data follows. If
‘any flue gas desulfurization (FGD) equipment is used, however, then the calculation of SO, mass
rate from coal burm mass rate must be used. A correction method accounting for flow bias and
wall effects on SO, emissions reported by a CEM has been proposed, as well [4]. The followmg
relationship is used to correct SO, mass rate from the CEM:

(C R2+C2R+C3)
100

E2=E3|1-

where, E2 = Corrected SO, mass rate, tons/yr
E3 = CEM-derived SO, mass rate, tons/yr
C:; = 0.0264 (non-axial flow bias factor)
C, = 0.183 (non-axial flow bias factor)
Cs = 1.5 (wall effects bias factor) :
- R = Stack/duct average resultant angle (or swirl angle) from site verification tests,
degrees.



The relationship is derived from knowledge of (1) an inherent bias resulting from CEM
installations in non-axial flow situations, and (2) bias introduced from poor velocity sampling at

- the stack/duct wall. Both of the errors can be attributed to the required use of EPA Methods 1

and 2 for CEM flow monitor setup and validation under the guidelines described in 40 CFR Part
60, Appendix A. Supporting information for and derivation of the correction factors are
presented in the previously mentioned reference [4].

The mass rate of SO, produced by combustion can also be calculated from the coal burn data [5].
The following relationship is used to estimate the rate of SO, emissions:

E2=Kl1eK2e(CleS]

where, E2 = SO, mass rate, tons/yr
C1 = Coal bum, tons/yr
S1 = Coal sulfur weighted average, %
K1 = Molecular weight and units conversion constant = (64.04)/(100 e 32.06) = 0.02
64.04 = molecular weight of SO»; 32.06 = molecular weight of S;
100 = conversion of % S to fraction
K2 = Sulfur conversion to SO,, implicit from EPA AP-42 [5]
= 0.95 for bituminous coals
= 0.875 for subbituminous coals
= 0.55 to 0.85 for lignite, based on the Na content
When the estimate of total H,SO, aerosol™ " manufactured by a facility exceeds 25,000 pounds
per year, the facility is required to estimate how much of this H,SO, aerosol*™ is released in
airborne form to the atmosphere. This amount, then, is the reportable quantity.

EPA

The following relationship is proposed to predict the quantity of H,SO, aerosol®™ released:
El’=KeFleF2eE2

where, E1’= total H,SO, aerosol*™ released, 1bs/yr
F2 = Technology Impact Factor.

In the derivation of this relationship, the additional assumption made is that the type of particulate
control device at the plant impacts the airborne emissions of H;SO, aerosol®™.

Supporting information and specific values for the Fuel Impact Factor (F1) and the Technology
Impact Factor (F2) are provided in the section below. Following this, applications of this
relationship to various plant configurations and sample calculations are provided.



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Fuel Impact Factor (F1)

In coal-fired electric utility boilers, gaseous sulfur-bearmg compounds are generated during the
combustion process. The majority of the sulfur in the coal combines with oxygen-to form SO,.
However, a small minority of the sulfur is further oxidized to form SO;. The formation of SO; is
a complex process that is not thoroughly understood even after many years of investigation [6, 7].
The rate of formation is dependant upon a number of factors such as the sulfur content of the fuel,
firing method, amount of excess air, and the presence of some form of catalyst

Three mechanisms have been proposed to explam the oxidation of SO, to SO; [8, 9.

1. Oxidation of SO; in the flame by atomic oxygen
SO, + O < SO;
2. Oxidation of SO, by molecular oxygen

SOz + 1/202 > SOs
3. Catalytjc'oxidation via molecular oxygen.'

This last mechanism is a result of catalytic oxidation of SO, to SO; by both ash particles and metal
heat transfer surfaces. This oxidation occurs at the temperature found in the convective section of
ut]hty boilers. :

In the liferature, varying and sometimes conflicting estimates exist regarding the conversion of
SO to SO;. For example, in one publication the conversion rate is estimated to vary from 3 to

5 percent, from 1.25 to 5 percent, and from 1 to 4 percent, depending on the section of the book
being read [10]. In other reports, which focused on the performance of cold-side electrostatic
precipitators, the ratio of SO to SO; at the air heater outlet is presented. These ratios are lower
since a portion of the SO; generated during the coal combustion process condenses onto the cold
sections of the air heater baskets as the flue gas temperature drops. For example, in one
evaluation average flue gas SO; concentrations dropped from 25 ppm to 11 ppm (56 percent)
across a hot-side electrostatic precipitator and an air heater [11]. Other reports, such as an EPA
documented ratio of 0.4 percent [12], confirm these results. The same EPA study reports that the
SO: levels from six different power stations varied from undetectable levels to 0.67 percent of the
SO- concentration (Table 1). Other full-scale experimental results based on measurements during
16 field tests showed concentrations ranging from 0.1 to 0.41 percent of the SO, levels

(Table 2) [13]. In both of these examples, the SO; concentrations with western coals were lower
than the SO; concentrations when burmning eastern coals. Laboratory analyses have confirmed the
directly proportional relationship between the SO, to SO; conversion rate and the sulfur content
of the fuel [14]. '

-



Table 1. SO, and SO; Measurements from 6 Different Power Plants
At the Air Heater Outlet/ESP Inlet

Station Number SO., ppm SOs, ppm SO; / SO; ratio
1 (western coal) . 262 <1 <0.0038
5 (western coal) 480 <1 - <0.0021
13 (western coal) . 430 <1 <0.0023
3 (eastern coal) 2440 6-9 0.0025 - 0.0037
4 (eastern coal) ' 755 2-3 0.0026 — 0.0040

7 (eastern coal) 600 . 13-4 - 0.0050-0.0067

“Table 2. Ratio of SO3/SO; Based on In Situ Measurements for 16 Field Tests
At the Air Heater Outlet/ESP Inlet '

SO; / SO; ratio _
Coals Burned . ‘average Standard deviation
9 eastern bituminous coals 0.0041 0.0027
7 western subbituminous and lignite coals - 0.0011 = . 0.0005

The threshold determination requires that the total amount of H,SO0, aerosol=F* manufactured
during the combustion process be estimated. Since the air heater removes around 50% of the
sulfuric acid formed, the threshold calculation should be made on the amount of SO; and H,SO;
entering the air heater. There is very limited data on the actual amount of SO; and H,SO,
entering the air heater, however. For the purposes of this estimation procedure, the 56 percent
capture in an air heater [10] mentioned earlier and engineering judgement is combined to assume a
generic 50% capture of H,SO;4 in an air heater for bituminous coals. However, the Western
bituminous coals and the subbituminous coals produce fly ash that reacts with the SO; and which
accounts for the lower conversion rates seen in Tables 1 and 2. The low amount of H,SQ, in the
air heater from these coals’ flue gas will substantially increase the sulfuric acid dewpoint. Thus
the air heater capture for these fuels is judged to be 10%. More data is being sought to
collaborate these air heater capture levels.

Based on the data provided in Tables 1 and 2 along with the air heater capture efficiencies stated
above, proposed values for the Fuel Impact Factor (F1) are provided in Table 3. In proposing
these factors, corroborating and/or conflicting information regarding the Fuel Impact Factor for
these and other fuels is sought. These values should only apply to dry bottom wall-fired and
tangentially fired boilers. Cyclone boilers are known to produce higher levels of H,SO,, probably
because of higher temperatures and more fine fly ash to catalyze the reaction. Thus, cyclones
would have higher Fuel Impact Factors.



Table 3. Fuel Impact Factors for Various Coals

Coal F1
Eastern bituminous 0.008
Western bituminous - 0.00111

Powder River Basin - 0.000556

Formation of Sulfuric Acid (H,SO,)

Sulfur trioxide is a hygroscopic material and will absorb moisture at temperatures well above the -
its clewpoint, resulting in the formation of a sulfuric acid mist (H,SOs) [15, 16, 17]. By definition,
a hygroscopic material has solvent properties; and its moisture content will approach equilibrium
with the moisture content of the surrounding air. The temperature slightly affects the degree of
absorption, but the relative humidity of the surrounding air is the principal property that influences
the moisture content of a hygroscopic material. In the flue gas, SOs exists as a dry vapor at
temperatures above 600°F [18]. At temperatures approximately 400°F, SOz and water combine
to form sulfuric acid:

SO; + H;O < H,S0,

The kinetics of the reaction is fast, ensuring that in the flue gas below 400°F, all of the SO; 15
present as H,SO4. Although varying degrees of association occur from 400°F to 600°F the
- equilibrium shifts away from the H,SO, as the temperature increases.

Technology Impact Factor (F2)

As mentioned above, the air heaters downstream of a coal-fired b011er will remove some portion
of the total H,SO, produced in that plant; the amount removed, however, depends on the coal
type being fired. While electrostatic precipitators (ESPs) and baghouses function primarily to

. remove particulates from the flue gas stream, in the process, they also remove acid gases that
have condensed onto the particulate matter. Since hot-side ESPs function at temperatures where
S0O; exists as a dry vapor, no SO; condenses in these devices. However, in cold-side ESPs and
baghouses, SO; condensation occurs. As the flue gas temperature is reduced, SO; adsorbs on the
fly ash to form an acid layer on the surface of the ash particles that allows electrical currents to
flow more easily, thereby lowering the ash resistivity. The amount of SO; interacting with the fly
ash increases as the temperature falls [19].

Little definitive data are available describing the SO3/H,SOj4 collection rate in cold-side particulate
" collection equipment. However, anecdotal evidence suggests that SO; condensation and acid mist
collection do occur. For example, influe gas from the combustion of low-sulfur coal (low native
SOs concentrations), SOs injection systems are used for flue gas treatment to improve particulate
collection efficiency. The SOs injection rate is controlled to provide optimal performance with
minimal SO; utilization. In doing this, SO; injection is increased to the point where no
appreciable increases in ESP performance occur (i.e., no additional H,SO; is being adsorbed by
the ash). With respect to baghouses, the dust cake on the bags acts as a barrier filter through
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which all HSO, must pass. It is assumed that a majority of the H,SO0, is adsorbed by the ﬂy ash
as it passes through the dust cake.

Wet scrubbers tend to remove only a portion of the H,SO, that enters due to the condensation of
H,S0;, into an acid mist during the quenching of the flue gas. A portion of the nucleated sulfuric
acid droplets escapes capture by the alkaline chemicals in the scrubber. A value of 50% capture
of sulfuric acid in a wet scrubbing system is suggested for this estimation procedure. However,
more data on the range of this value is sought. Conversely, dry scrubbing systems with a
baghouse installed tend to remove virtually all of the sulfuric acid from the flue gas. A 1% escape
of sulfuric acid is assumed for making this estimate. Agam more data is sought to collaborate
this value.

Tech_nolOgy Impact Factors (F2) for ESPs, air heaters, baghouses, and FGD systems are proposed
in Table 4. In sites where multiple devices are installed, the individual factors should be =~
multiplied together to account for the total reduction in H,SO,. This resultant should then be
used as the F2 Factor. These factors are engineering estimates based on available data and
operational experience. In proposing these factors, corroborating and/or conflicting information
is sought.

" Table 4. Technology Impact Factors for Control Devices

Particulate Control Device F2
Air Heater — bituminous coal 0.50
Air Heater — Western bituminous and 0.90
subbituminous coals _ '
Hot-side electrostatic precipitator _ 1.00
Cold-side electrostatic precipitator 0.75
Baghouse ' 0.10
~ Wet Scrubber _ : 0.50
Spray Dryer-Baghouse . 0.01

The fate of H,SO4 collected by these devices depends on whether the device is an air heater, a
particulate control device, or an SO, scrubbing system. In an air heater, the acid normally
condenses on the metal surfaces of the air heater where it can react with the metal to form salts or
capture fly ash from the flue gas forming a deposit. Some portion of the H,SQ; captured reacts
with the fly ash collected to form salts (thus destroying the acid), and the unreacted remainder of
the sulfuric acid is present as a liquid mixed with the ash. Similarly, the sulfuric acid collected
along with the ash in a cold-side ESP or a baghouse will partially react with the ash to form salts
and the unreacted remainder will be a liquid which forms a physical mixture with the fly ash.
However, a scrubbing system wﬂ] typically neutralize all of the H.SO4 captured, and the captured
acid is destroyed.

-10-



Other Impacts

In addition to the factors considered above, the following site-specific charactensncs may impact

H,S80, emissions rates. These factors are not considered in this proposed method.

1. NOx reduction catalysts. Typically, catalysts used to reduce NOx emissions increase flue gas
SO; concentrations. Results from a U.S. Department of Energy-sponsored evaluation of
several different catalysts treating flue gas from the combustion of high-sulfur U.S. coals
reported average SO; oxidation levels of 0.31 percent [20].

2. Ammonia injection systems. Ammonia injection systems are used to improve the performance
of cold-side electrostatic precipitators and in NOx controls technologies (selective catalytic
reduction and selective non-catalytic reduction.) At temperatures below approximately 500°
F, ammonia preferentially reacts with SO3 to form ammonium sulfate and ammonium
bisulfate. These reactions can act to reduce the presence of SO; (and subsequently H,SO,) in
the flue gas stream.

3. SO;injection systems. SO; injection systems (sometlmes called sulfur bumers) are used to
improve the particulate collection capabilities of cold-side electrostatic precipitators. The SO;
is injected into the flue gas upstream of the ESP. The SO; reacts with moisture in the flue gas
to create H,SO,, which improves the resistivity of the fly ash making it easier to collect.

Some of the H,SO, (~1 ppm) generated by the sulfur bumers may slip through the ESP
resulting in higher plant H,SO, emissions levels.

4. Natural gas co-firing. Since natural gas does not contain sulfur, co-ﬁnng or reburmng natural
gas in a boiler will reduce the amount of SO; produced.

280, EMISSIONS PROJECTIONS.
Based on the relationship proposed above, trends can be developed which demonstrate the
variation in H,SO, aerosol® EPA emissions levels that occur in coal-fired plants with varying
characteristics (Table 5). Unit size and coal-sulfur content will obviously impact the total H,SO,
aerosol®™ emissions (Figure 1). In both of these cases, the increase (or decrease) in H,SO,
aerosol®™™* is proportional to the cha.nge in unit capacity or coal-sulfur content. The type of fuel
bummed also impacts H,SO, aerosol™ emissions (Figure 2). However, the relationship is not
directly proportional to the coal-sulfur content. The heating value of PRB coal is lower that the
heating value of most Eastern bituminous coals. As a result, a greater amount of PRB fuel is
required to provide a heat input comparable to an Eastern bituminous coal.

Although not shown graphically, a decrease in unit heat rate, an increase in the fuel heat content, .
and/or a decrease in the capacity factor will decrease aerosolE emissions of H,SO,. The
conversion from a hot-side ESP to a cold-side ESP or baghouse also will decrease H,SO,
aerosol™™* emissions. In the same manner, the conversion from a cold-side ESP to a baghouse
will decrease H,SO, aerosol®™ emissions.
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Table 5. Coal-fired plant characteristics that impact H,SO, aerosol™ " emissions
Unit size 100 to 500 MW
Coal sulfur content, % 05-3.0
Boiler type " Tangentially fired or wall-fired, (dry bottom)
NOx controls No post-combustion controls
Flue gas treatment - None (no NHj3 injection or sulfur bumers)
" Heat rate © 9,500 Btu/kW-hr
Capacity factor 65 percent
Particulate control Hot-side ESP, cold-side ESP, or baghouse
Coal Ranks Eastern Western Powder River
Bituminous Bituminous Basin
" Sulfur content, % 0.5-3.0 : 0.7 0.3
Heating value, Btu/lb 12,000 . 12,000 8,000
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Example Calculations

| Example 1.

Solution 1.

Example 2.

Solution 2.

. This section presents a series of sample calculations based on the assumptions provided above.

A 700-MW coal-fired boiler equipped with a baghouse and a cold-side electrostatic
precipitator burns an Eastern bituminous coal. SO, emissions are 37,000 tons per
year. Flue gas flow reference method site verification testing indicates an average
flow resultant angle of 9.2°.

First, calculate the corrected SO, emissions rate. Then, determine if the unit meets
the threshold requirement for reporting.

(c R2+C2R+C3)

E2=E3[1- 100

((0_0264)(9.2° ¥ +(0183)(92°) +1 .5)

E2 =37,000/1-
’ 100

E2 = 34,995 tons SO-/yr

El=KeFl e E2 _

E1 =3063 ¢ 0.008 ¢ 34,995 = 857,517 1bs H,SO4/yr
The amount of H,SO; aerosol™™ manufactured by the unit is well over the threshold,
therefore, the amount released should be estimated and reported. Incorporate the
combined technology factors for the air heater, baghouse, and cold-side ESP into the
equation to account for the reductions through these devices. The result is the
amount of H,SO, aerosolf™ that should be reported on Form R.

El’=KeFleF2eE2
E1’ = 3063 ¢ 0.008 o (05 ©e(0.75¢0.1)e 34995 32,157 lbs/yr

Where F2 = Air Heater o Cold-Side ESP e Baghouse
F2=(05¢0.750.1)=0.0375
A 600-MW coal-fired boiler equipped with a baghouse burns a PRB coal. SO,

emissions are 14,000 tons per year. The average flow resultant angle is 8.4°,

Calculate the corrected SO, emissions rate. Then determine if the unit meets the
threshold requirement for reporting, -
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(C R?*+C R+C )
1 2 3
100

E2=E3[1-

((0.0264)(8_4°)2 +(0183)(84°)+1.5

22 =14,000] 1- .
E ’ 100

E2 = 13,314 tons SO,/yr

El=K ¢ FleE2
E1 = 3063 » 0.000556 » 13,314 = 22,674 Ibs H,SO4/yr

The amount of H,SO, aerosol*™ produced does not exceed the threshold
requirement for reporting. Therefore, the utility is not required to estimate the
amount released and does not have to report the emissions from this site on Form R.

Example 3. (SO; tonnage rates are unavailable). A 250-MW coal-fired boiler equipped with a
hot-side electrostatic precipitator bums an Eastern bituminous coal. The flue gas
SO, concentration is 770 ppm corrected to 3% O,. The heat input for the unit is
18,993,100 MBtu/year. The average resultant angle is 9.1°.

Solution 3. First, convert SO, concentration to an emissions rate [21] and correct for CEM bias.
' Then, determine if the threshold for H,SO, aerosol™* has been exceeded. -

Ib :
SO, [m) = Conversion Factor e Fuel Factor e SO, Concentratione O, Correction
1b Ib scf 209
SO,| == |=1660x10""| ——— 2978 770
2(MBtu) [scf-ppmj. _ O[MBtu). PP 09— 3)

SO, =146 1b/MBtu

soz[“’—“i]= soz_[ o
yT | MBtu

s0 tons 146[ “1bs ). 18.993.100 MBtu 1 ton)
_— = °
oyr "\ MBmu AR Y 2000\ lbs

SO, =13,800 tons/yr

J- Heat input

[c RZ+C R+C )
1 2 3

=E3|1-
E2=E 100
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(0.0264)(9.1°)* +(0.183)(9.1°) +1.5
100 '

E2=13,8001-

E2 = 13,060 tons SO./yr

El=KeFleE2
E1 =3063 « 0.008 ¢ 13,060 = 320,022 lbs H,SOu/yr

The 25,000 lbs/yr threshold has.been exceeded, therefore a release estimate must be
- made and the result reported on Form R.

El’=KeFleF2eE2
E1’ =3063 ¢ 0.008 ¢ (1.0 @ 0.5) e 13,060 = 160,011 lbs H,SO4/yr

Whe_re F2 = Hot-Side ESP ¢ Air Heater
F2=(1.000.5)=05

Example 4. A 500-MW coal-fired boiler equipped with a cold-side electrostatic precipitator and
a wet scrubber burns an Eastern bituminous coal. The coal used in the reporting
year is 1,126,938 tons with a weighted average sulfur concentration of 2.0%.

Solution 4. First, find SO, production rate. Then estimate H,SO, aerosol*** threshold

requirement for reporting and calculate emissions if over the threshold limit.

E2=Kl1eK2e(Cl ¢S]
E2=0.02¢095%1,126,938 ¢ 2.0 = 42,824 tons SO,/yr’

Ei=KeFleE2 '
El =3063 ¢ 0.008 » 42,824 = 1,049,351 lbs H>SOu/yr

The 25,000 lbs/yr aerosol = threshold has been exceeded, therefore a release
estimate must be made and the result reported on Form R.

El’=K eFl e F2 0 E2
E1’ = 3063 ¢ 0.008 ® (0.5 # 0.75 ¢ 0.5) ® 42,824 = 196,755 lbs H,SOu/yr

Where F2 = Air Heater o Cold-Side ESP ¢ Wet Scrubber
F2=0500.75¢0.5=0.1875
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Conclusions _
This paper presents a method for predicting both the sulfuric acid aerosol** manufacturing
threshold value and the release of sulfuric acid aerosol™™ from coal-fired power plants. The

calculation, limited at present to dry-bottom wall-fired or tangentially-fired boilers, is based on the

unit’s SO, emission rate as recorded by either (1) a continuous emissions monitor and corrected
for positive flow bias and for bias due to wall effects or (2) the total coal tonnage burned and the
average sulfur content. The method estimates the total amount of sulfuric aerosol*"* -
manufactured by using a fixed conversion of SO, to SO3, based on the rank of the coal being
bumed. The method also predicts the release of sulfuric acid aerosol®™ by accounting for the
amount of H,SO, captured by the air heater, particulate control device(s), and any flue gas
desulfurization equipment installed at the facility. While the process presented herein could have
application to any type of coal-fired boiler, the SOs conversion rates presented are specific to dry
bottom, wall-fired and tangentially-fired boilers. Due to their different combustion characteristics,
the H,SO, aerosol® emissions characteristics of other boiler types may be higher or lower.
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ATTACHMENT 3
GAINESVILLE REGIONAL UTILITIES
DEERHAVEN GENERATING STATION
UNIT 2 AIR QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEM PROJECT

Professional Engineer Certification

c:\?{;

Professional Engineer Statement:
I, the undersigned, hereby certify, except as particularly noted herein, that:

(1) To the best of my knowledge, the information provided in response to the Department’s
Request for Additional Information dated March 12, 2007 regarding the Gainesville
Regional Utilities (GRU) air construction permit application for the installation of
emission control equipment on Deerhaven Generating Station Unit 2 is true,
accurate, and complete based on my review of material provided by GRU engineering

and environmental staff; and

(2) To the best of my knowledge, any emission estimates reported or relied on in this
submittal are true, accurate, and complete and are either based upon reasonable
‘".tec'hﬁ‘t’e] N available for calculating emissions or, for emission estimates of air

\ ‘@&,e polJy(ants‘iagt regulated for an emissions unit, based solely upon the materials,

znfor a&;on pnd calculations provided with this certification.
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February 22, 2007 - '

© Mr. Jeff Koerner :
Florida Dept. of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Air Regulation A
Air Permitting North
111 So. Magnolia Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32301

Re:  Gainesville Regional Utilities
Deerhaven Generating Station — Unit 2
Air Construction Permit Application - Air Quality Control System Addition

Dear Mr. Koerner:

Enclosed are four (4) copies of the air construction permit application for the above-
referenced project.

~ If you have any questions pertaining to this application or the project please contact me at
jonynasye@gru.com or 352-393-1284. If I am not available please contact Mr. Tom
Davis (ECT) at Tdavis@ectinc.com or 352-332-0444 or Mr. Tim Bates at

Batestc@gru.com or 352-393-1751.

Sincerely,

W&W

Yolanta E. Jonynas
Licensing Manager

XC: C. Allen, GRU
T. Bates, GRU
D. Beck, GRU
R. Embry, GRU, wo. enc.
C. Kirts, FDEP — NE District
R. Klemans, GRU, wo. enc.
D. Mallery, GRU, wo. enc.
D. Moffet, GRU
R. Nance, GRU, wo. enc.
-E. Walters, GRU, wo. enc.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

The City of Gainesville, Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU) operates a nominal
251 megawatt (MW) coal-fired steam electrical generating unit '(EGU) at its D_eerhaven
.Genera.ting Station (DGS) located in Gainesville, Alachua County, Florida. Operation of
DGS Unit 2 is currently authorized by Florida Depar“tment of Environmental Protection
(FDEP) Title V Final Permit No. 00100064003-'AV. Final Permit No. 0010006-003-AV
was issued with an effective date of J anuary 1, 20_05, and an expiration date of Decenr-
" ber 31, 2009. R

In March 2005 the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) promulgated the Clean -
Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) and the Clean Air Mercury erle (CAMR) .to limit emissions
of sulfur dioxide (SO3), nitrogen oxides (NO,), and mercury (Hg) from electric generat-
ing units by means of a two_-phase'cap and trade system. Qn June 29, 2006, the Florida
Environmental Regulatory Commission (ERC) adopted modified versions of these EPA
rules. Specifically, Florida opted into EPA’s cap and trade model rule but made modifica-
tions to the methodology for allocating NO, and mercury allowances to individual units
_ to address Florida-specific issues. On January 5, 2006, GRU received approval from the -
Gainesville City Commission to retrofit DGS Unit 2 with air quality contrel systems
(AQCS) as one means of complying with the new regulations by the required deadlihee
recognizing that the purchase of emission credits (allowances) is also a viable option for
complying with the requirements. CAIR affords a regulated facility _the flexibility to
evaluate market conditions to determine whether it will instali controls, operate existing
controls, or purchase allowances generated by other plants. Therefore, GRU is not re- .
quired by regulation to install nor operate the proposed AQCS to meet CAIR require-

ments.

. The emission control equipment planned for DGS Unit 2 includes the following air qual- |
ity control systems: '
° Selective catalytic reduction (SCR) system to reduce NOyx emissions.

) A circulating dry scrubber (CDS) to reduce (SO;) emissions.
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o Baghouse (fabric filter) to reduce particulate matter (PM) emissions. The
baghouse is an integral part of the CDS.
o Ancillary support equipment including new material (urea, lime, and CDS

by-product) handling and storage.

These emission control systems will also have the co-benefit of controlling Hg, hydrogen
chloride (HCI), hydrogen fluoride (HF), and sulfuric acid mist (H,SO4 mist) emissions.
The emission control systems planned for DGS Unit 2 will result in a significant reduc-
tion in actual emission rates. Following installation and operation of the DGS Unit 2
AQCS, controlled emission rates will be well below the current FDEP and EPA allow-
able rates. Provisions have been made in the design of the AQCS for activated carbon

injection in the future if needed for additional mercury control.

This air construction permit application constitutes GRU’s request for FDEP approval to
retrofit the emission controls systems described above for DGS Unit 2. GRU plans to
commence construction on the DGS Unit 2 AQCS retrofit project in July of this year with
a target completion date of April 2009. The AQCS is anticipated to be fully operational
by mid-May 2009. To attain this schedule, FDEP’s expeditious processing of this air con-

struction permit application will be appreciated.

The remainder of this air construction permit application is organized as follows:
. Section 2.0—Site Location and Description
. Section 3.0—Project Overview
. Section 4.0—Regulatory Status of Unit 2
J Section 5.0—Description of Emission Control Systems
] Section 6.0—New Source Review Applicability

. Section 7.0—Ambient Air Quality Impact Screening Analysis

Appendix A provides FDEP’s Application for Air Permit—Long Form (FDEP Form
No. 62-210.900[1] Effective 02/02/06).
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2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION

2.1 SITE LOCATION
The DGS is located at 10001 Northwest 13™ Street in Gainesville, Alachua County, Flor-

ida. Figure 2-1 shows the site location and nearby prominent geographical features, and

the location of the DGS within the state of Florida.

2.2 SITE DESCRIPTION
The DGS includes two fossil fuel-fired steam EGUs (Unit 1 and 2) and other components

as described below. Unit 1 has a nominal generation capacity of 75 MW and commenced
commercial operation in 1972. Unit 2 has a nominal generation capacity of 251 MW and
commenced commercial operation in 1981. Unit 1 is fired with natural gas, residual fuel oils
(Nos. 4, 5, or 6), distillate fuel oils (Nos. 1 and 2), propane (for ignition during startups), on-
specification used oil, or any combinations of these fuels. Unit 2 is primarily fired with coal
but may also fire natural gas or distillate fuel oils (Nos. 1 and 2), or any combination of

these fuels.

Major components of the DGS include the following:

o Coal receiving, storage, handling, and feed preparation equipment.

. One natural gas/fuel oil-fired boiler (Unit 1).

) One coal-fired boiler (Unit 2) equipped with PM control equipment.

) Three simple-cycle combustion turbines, one equipped with low-NO, burn-
ers and a steam injection system. These are fired with natural gas or distil-
late fuel.

. Fly ash handling equipment.

. Water treatment facilities.
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3.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW

The DGS Unit 2 AQCS retrofit project includes the installation of emission control sys-
tems, refurbishment of the existing Unit 2 steam turbine, and use of a bituminous coal
with higher sulfur and ash content than is currently being used. A detailed description of
the proposed emission control systems is provided in Section 4.0 of this report. Discus-
sions of the steam turbine upgrade and proposed fuels are provided in the following sec-

tions.

3.1 STEAM TURBINE REFURBISHMENT
Concurrent with the AQCS project, the Unit 2 steam turbine may be refurbished by re-

placing the high- and intermediate pressure rotor along with the associated stationary ele-
ments. The steam turbine refurbishment will increase the efficiency of the steam turbine
in order to recover power lost due to the parasitic load associated with the operation of

the new AQCS.

There will be no changes to the existing electrical generator (i.e., no expansion in steam
generating capability) and no increase in maximum heat input to the boiler or steam flow
capability of the turbine. Likewise, the capacity factor of Unit 2 will not increase as a re-

sult of the steam turbine refurbishment since Unit 2 is a base load unit.

32 FUELS

DGS Unit 2 is currently fired with low sulfur eastern bituminous coal to comply with the
SO; emission limitations of New Source Performance Standard Subpart D, Standards of
Performance for Fossil-Fuel-Fired Steam Generators for Which Construction is Com-

menced After August 17, 1971.

Following installation and operation of the AQCS, Unit 2 will be capable of firing a vari-
ety of eastern bituminous coal blends, including medium sulfur coal, and comply with the
NSPS Subpart D, CAIR, and CAMR requirements, as well as achieving significant re-
ductions in actual SO, emissions. Accordingly, the Unit 2 AQCS project will provide the

flexibility to burn a blend of coals up to a medium sulfur coal.
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4.0 REGULATORY STATUS OF UNIT 2

Key air quality related regulatory requireménts applicéble to DGS Unit 2 are briefly de-

scribed in the following sections.

4.1 AIR PERMITS

DGS Unit 2 was initially constructed and dperatcd under the authority of Florida Power
Plant Siting Act (FPPSA) Ceﬁiﬁcation No. PA 74-04 dated May 16, 1978. Initial Title V
Air Operation Permit No. 0010006-01-AV, issﬁcd with an effectivé date of January 1",

2000 and an expiration date of December 31, 2004, authorized 'continugd* operatién of the
DGS, includ.ing Unit 2. This air operation permit was subsequently revised in June 2002
and recently renewed in 2005. The current DGS Title V Air Operation Permit, Pérmi_t No.
0010006-003-AV, was issued with an effective date of J anuary 1, 2005 and an expiration
date of December 5, 2009. ' : -

4.2 NEW SOURCE REVIEW
DGS Unit 2 commenced initial operat_ion after December 27, 1977 and therefore con-
. sumes increment under the Prevention of Significant Deterioratibn (PSD) New Source .

Review (NSR) regulatory program.

43 NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS s
DGS Unit 2 is subject to NSPS Subpart D, Standards of Performance for Fossil-Fuel-
Fired Steam Generators for Which Construction is Commenced After Au_-gust 17, 1971.
As required by NSPS Subpart D; the unit is équipped with continuous emissions monitor-
ing systems (CEMS) for measuring NO, and opacity. |

44 ACID RAIN PROGRAM/CAIR/CAMR/CLEAN AIR VISIBILITY RULE
DGS Unit 2 is regulated under the Acid Rain Prbgram (ARP) under Phase I (NOy Early
Election) and Phase II. As required by the ARP DGS Unit 2 is equipped with continuous

emissions monitorihg systems (CEMS) for measuring SO,, NO,, CO,, and opacity.
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In addition to the above requirements, DGS Unit 2 will be subject to the future effective re- -
quirements of the CAIR and CAMR as previously noted.

DGS Unit 2 is not subject to the réquirements of the Regional Haze Rule (a/k/a the Clean
Air Visibility Rule [CAVR]).
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5.0 DESCRIPTION OF EMISSION CONTROL SYSTEMS

Desériptions of the SCR, CDS, and 'fabricvﬁlter emission controls systems planned for '
-DGS Unit 2 are provided in the following sections. Descriptions of the urea, lime, and

CDS by-product management syStems are also provided.

5.1 SELECTIVE CATALYTIC REDUCTION
OVERVIEW . o __
The selective catalytic reduction (SCR) NO, removal process funcﬁons by reacting NO,
contained in the flue ga‘s‘with ammonia in the presence of a catalyst ai_-_a"temperature be-
tween 613 ahd 800 degrees Fahrenheit (°F) to pfoduce nitrogen (N2) and water (H;0).
NHj is injected upstream of the catalyst bed where the following primary reactions take
place: A |
ANH; +4NO+0, — 4N; +6H,0 | )
4NH; + 2NO, + O; — 3Np + 6H;0 o 2

The DGS Unit 2 SCR system will tie into the ductwork at the outlet of the existing hot-
~ side electrostatic precipitator which is expected to remain in-servif:e after .installatio'n of -
the AQCS. Ammonia mixer plates and patented Delta Wing™ mixers Wiil be located
within the inlet duct to the two SCR reactors. The SC.R outlet duct will connect to the ex-

isting air heaters.

The SCR system is designed so th_at'ﬂue_ gas flows through it whenever the DGS Unit 2 is
operating i.e.', there are no bypasses. The SCR system contains instrumentation to meas-
ure flue gas pressures, temperatures and NO, concentrations at various locations in the
ductwork and reactors. NOx control is initiated when the temperature at the outlet of the
reactor reaches the minimum short-term operating temperature specified by the catalyst

vendor and ammonia flow is started through the injection nozzles.

CATALYST SYSTEM
The DGS Unit 2 flue gas will flow through the three layers (two active and one future

layer) of honeycomb catalyst. This SCR design provides sufficient space with margin to
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accommodate plate or honeycomb type catalyst and meet the performance requirements -
without using the spare catalyst level. The catalyst handling system will consist of a cata-
lyst-rotating device, catalyst module lift device (supplied by the catalyst vendor),'éiue‘:ctric
and manual hoists, and a catalyst"_cart and rail system. Provisions have been made in the
catalyst design for removable test. samples of catalyst material that can be used to monitor
and predict catalyst activity during the catalyst life. The design life of the catalyst is
24,000 hours. | - '

Gaseous arsenic is one of the predominant catalyst deactivation mechanisms in coal-fired
SCR applications. Introducing calcium oxide (CaO) to the fuel reduces the gaseous arse-
nic in the flue gas and decreases its _harmful effect on the catalyst. For the DGS Unit 2
‘SCR system, an addition rate of 0.51 weight percent CaO is expected to reduce the con-
* centration of arsenic in the flue gaS to within acceptable limits, subsequently ensuring the
catalyst for a minimum 24,000 hours of operation. This optional CaO addition may be

provided from lime or limestone.

- A permanent sampling grid will be provided above and below the catalyst layers as well
as between layers. These grids will allow sampling of the gas stream from outside the
SCR while"the unit is operating. A moveable NOy probe will be provided in each SCR
reactor inlet and outlet. A sainpling/N Oy analyzer system will be connected to each pfbbe
to rﬁeasme the inlet and outlet NO and provide a process control signal for the ammonia

injection system.

AMMONIA SYSTEM

A urea-based ammonia system will be provided to supply ammonia for the SCR catalyst
to remove NO,. The system is sized to pro'duée ammonia_for two SCRs at full load. The
urea io ammonia (U2A) system will use urea that is dissolved into water and the solution
will be injected into heated in-line hydrolyéers at a controlled rate and under conditions to
provide the required amount of ammonia. The process will produce a gaseous mixture of

ammonia, carbon dioxide and water vapor, which will be mixed into the flue gas stream.
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STARTUP AND SHUTDOWN PROCEDURES

The objective of the SCR startup is.to warm the reactor in a controlled pfOcédure to the
minimum catalyst operating temperature before injecﬁng ammonia. The m.inimum and
" maximum catalyst operating temperatures for the DGS Unit 2 SCR system are 613°F and
- 800°F, respectively. Whén the temperature of the SCR reactor outlet and the last catalyst
layer reaches the minimum operating temperature for ammonia injection, the ammonia

control valve is permitted to opeh.

When the SCR system is to be shut down, the flow of ammonia is Stopped and the am-
monia injection piping purged with steam. Once the ammonia has been' purged from the

piping and the catalyst, DGS Unit 2 can be shutdown using current shutdown procedures.

SCR PERFORMANCE

The DGS Unit 2 SCR control system is designed to af:hieve a target outlet NO, emission
rate of 0.07 pounds per million British thermal units (Ib/10° Btu) with an ammonia slip -
concentration of no more than 5.0 parts per million at 3% O,. The térgét SCR controlled

NO, emission is ten times lower than the current NSPS Subpart D limit of 0.7 Ib/ 10° Btu.

5.2 CIRCULATING DRY SO, SCRUBBER

OVERVIEW |

The Circulhting Dry Scrubber (CDS) will bé instélled down stream of fhe existing DGS
Un_it 2 induced draft (ID) fans. This flue gas desulfurization (FGD) syStem will remove
the acidic constituents of the flue gas, primarily SO, and SO; and to a lééser extent CO,,
HCI and HF, by reaction with hydrated limé. The system includes the CDS vessel, ad-
sorbent preparation and injection, water injection, pro.du.ct recycle injection and a flue gas
-recycle system. To assure a high level of SO, removal, a portion of tiie,solid pfoducts ex-
iting the CDS vessel (i.e., primarily reaction products such as CaSO3, CaSO,, CaCOs,
CaCl; and CaF; and inerts) will be separated from the flue gas in the baghouse and recy-
cled to the vessel inlet at a high ratio to the inlet solids.
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The domi;iént CDS equations are as follows:

Ca(OH), + SO, < CaSO; x %H,0 + Y% H,0 ' (1)

Ca(OH), + SO; <> CaSOy4 x %2 H20 + % H;0 @
CaSO; X Y4H;0 + 140, > CaSO4 X % Hy0 - 3)
Ca(OH), + CO; < CaCOj3 + H,0 - 4
“Ca(OH)2 + 2HCI = CaCI2 + 2H20 " " 5)
Ca(OH)2 + 2HF = CaF2 + 2H20 O (6)

" The CDS is designed so that flue gas flows through it whenever the DGS Unit 2 is oper-

ating (i.e., there are no bypassés). It contains instrumentation to measure flue gas pres-.

sures, temperatures and SO, concentrations at various locations in the ductwork.

The DGS Unit 2 flue gas will first pass through a grdup of venturi nozzles. The venturi
nozzles serve to accelerate the flue gas just prior to the injection of high-pressure water,
recycled solids, and ‘adsorbent (i.e., lime). The reactor acts as a fluidized bed, assuring

maximum contact between the pollutants in the flue gas and the adsorbent solids. The

* reactor is characterized by high turbulences and optimal chemical and physical heat and

mass transfer rates. Water is added to bring the flue gas closer to the saturation tempera-
ture where the SO, absorption is most effective. The high dust load leaving the reactor is

captured in the baghouse (fabric filter).

SO, will be measurgd at the inlet and outlet of the CDS reactor. These measurements will
be used to vary the quantity of fresh lime that is introduced into the reactor. The final

residue of the CDS process is a moist product (followihg the addition of water in the pin

- mixers described below in Section 5.4) which may be landfilled or potentially re-utilized.

SORBENT PREPARATION AND INJECTION
Hydrated lime, Ca(OH),, is the adsorbent used in the CDS process. Lime (CaO) will be
delivered to the DGS via truck or rail and subsequently hydrated to increase its reactivity

before injection in the CDS. Within the hydrator, the lime is mixed with water and agi-
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tated until the hydration reaction is complete. The quahtity of fresh lime that is intro-
duced into the CDS is controlled by inlet and outlet SO, concentrations.

- ASHRECYCLE | _ |

A portion of the material 'éaptured in the baghouse will be recycled back into the CDS to
maintain the ﬂuidiiéd bed, while the excess material will be pneumatically transported
out of the system to a storage silo. The amount of solids recycled is dependent upon the

differential pressuie within the CDS and the volumetric flue gas flow rate.

FLUE GAS RECIRCULATION

In order to ensure that the CDS is constantly fluidized, a portion of the ﬂue gas stream
downstream of the two booster fans will be recirculated to the inlet duct of the CDS dur-
ing boiler operation at reduced loads. The amount of flue gas recuculated is accom-

plished through the positions of the two recirculation dampers

CDS STARTUP AND SHUTDOWN

The objective of the CDS start-up is to warm the reactor in a controlled procedure to the
* minimum inlet temperature and minimum flue gas flow rates. When the mmunum tem-
perature and flow rate have been achieved, the four sub-systems of the CDS (sorbent in-
jection, ash recirculation, flue gas recirculation and water injection) are placed into auto-

matic mode.

A normal shutdown sequence for the CDS system occurs as follows:
. Shutdown the process water injection system.
e  Shutdown the product recirculation system.

o Shutdown the lime sorbent dosing system (after baghouse bags are coated
with fresh lime).

Fuel firing can continue without the CDS in service, but SO, removal will cease without
the fluidized bed, lime sorbent and water injection systems in operation. Once the boiler
is shut down, standard NFPA purge requirement clear the CDS and ductwork of any po-

tentially explosive gases.
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CDS PERFORMANCE

The DGS Unit 2 CDS control system is designed to achieve a target outlet SO, emission
rate of 0.12 lb./106 Btu. The taiget CDS controlled SO, emission is ten time_S ldwer than
 the current NSPS Subpart D limit of 1.2 1b/10° Btu.

5.3 FABRICFILTER

OVERVIEW _ _

- For particuiate removal, one pulse-jet baghouse cbntaining ten (10) companrhénts will be
installed between the outlet of the CDS and inlet of the booster fans at DGS Unit 2. The
fabric filter is designed so that flue gas flows througﬁ it whenever the DGS Unit 2 is op-

erating; i.e., there are no bypasses.

Particulate contained in the raw flue gas as well as reaction products from the CDS are
captured in the pulsejet fabric filter. The pulsejet fabric filter is multicompanmented,
consisting of two parallel trains with centrally located inlet and outlet plenums. Each par-
. allel train of compartments is served by an air slide utilizing heated air. The air slide con-
veys a significant portion of the collected particulate back to the CDS to maintain a high
solids environment and improve overall reagent utilization. The balance of the collected
ba;'ticulate goes to surge bins (one per air slide) from which it is pneumatically convéyed
to a common ash silo equipped with redundant pug mills The ash can then be loaded into

trucks.

FABRIC FILTER BAGS )

Each compartment will contain one cylindrical bag bundle with 984 filter bags per bun-
dle. This equates to a total of 9,840 bags installed, with an additional 2 percent included
as startup spares. The filter bags for this project will be fabricated from heavy weight 18
0z/yd nominal weight PPS, self supported with fused seam. The design air-to-cloth ratio

is 4:1 or less with one compartment off-line for maintenance.
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BAG CLEANING SYSTEM
The pulsejet fabric filter utilizes bags fabricated from felted polyphenyl sulﬁd_é fabric that
is appropriate for this application. During 6peration the incbming particulate laden flue
gas passes from outside of each bag creating a filter cake. With the' passage of time, this
 cake thickens and tends to increase pressure drop. An automatic cleaning system is util-
ized to dislodge thié filter cake, thus maintaining the desired overall pressure drop. The |
motive force for cleaning is pressurized air that is introduced at the top of the bags, just
above the tubesh.eet. Th1s flow of pressurized air travels counter to the normal flow of
flue gas, thus dislodging the accumulated filter éake and assisting its d_ownward'drop into
the collectin_g hoppers.below. Redundant low-pressure positfve displacement blowers

provide the pressurized air.

STARTUP AND SHUTDOWN PROCEDURES

Before starting the baghouse system, the compressed air and ash removal (air slide) sys-
tems must be in operation. With the baghouse control system in manual, boiler load is -
increased until the minimﬁm baghouse inlet temperature is achievéd. Modlile inlet and
outlet dampers are opened and the control system is placed into automatic mode. The sys-
- tem can be operated at low flow (approximately 50 percent) to monitor baghouse differ- -
ential preséure. When differential pressure is acceptable, the flue gas flow can be in-

creased to design conditions by increasing fan motor speed.

Shutdown of the baghouse system begins by placing the baghouse into m'.anual mode. The
dust removal system (including air slides) continues to operate to remove particulate from
the baghouse hoppers. Once the boiler is shut down, standard NFPA purge requirements
clear the baghouse of any potentially explosive gases. The compressed air sysfem to the
baghouse continues fo operate after the boiler is shut down. While DGS Uﬂit 2is down,
the filter bags do not have to be cleaned as the remaining cake will protect the bags dur-
ing the next startup. The normal shutdown procedure for the air slide system occurs in the

opposite order of start up.
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BOOSTER FANS ,

Two 50 percent booster fans are provided for the DGS Unit 2 AQCS. The fans serve two
functions. They provide the additional motive force to overcome the additional pressure
drop imposed on the system by ‘the addition of the SCRs, the CDS, and the baghouse.
They'also allow the CDS to operate at reduced Unit 2 loads by recycling a portion of flue
gas from the baghouse outlet to the CDS vessel inlet, thereby keeping the solids bed in
the vessel fluidized. The discharge of the booster fans ties into the ductwork upstream of
the stack. '

FABRIC FILTER PERFORMANCE }
The DGS Unit 2 fabric filter control system is de_Signed- to achieve a target outlet filter-
- able PM emission rate of 0.015 1b/ 10° Btu. The target fabric filter controlled PM emission
is 6.7 times lower than the currenf NSPS Subpart D limit of 0.1 1b/10° Bt1'1._

54 UREA, LIME, AND CDS BY-PRODUCT HANDLING AND STORAGE
~ OVERVIEW |

- Reagents associated with the .DGS Unit 2 AQCS include urea for the SCR NO, control
system, and lime for the SO, CDS control system. Solid materials generated by the DGS
Unit 2 AQCS consist of the reaction products (primarily calcium sulfate, calcium sulfite, -
unreacted lime and inerts) from the SO, CDS control system. A discussion of the han-
dling and storage of the AQCS reagents and by-product are provided in the following

sections.

UREA _
- Granular or prilled urea will be delivered by truck and transferred pneumatically directly -
to thé urea to ammonia (U2A) dissolver tank where the urea is dissolved in water. The
urea/water solution will then be injected into a heated in—iine reactor at controlled rates to
produce the appropriate amounts of gaseous ammonia and water vapor. The gaseous
ammonia and water vapor stream will then be injected into the SCR control systerh. Ac-
cordingly, there will be no emissions aséociated with the unloading and processing of

urea.
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LIME |
The lime unloading and storage system includes equipment for the pneumatic unloading
of pebble lime from railcars or trucks, transport to a storage silo, and-transport from the

storage silo into two lime day bins.

Lime will be received in 100 ton railcars that have bottom hopper outlets. Lime may also
be received in 25 ton maximum capacity trucks that have self-unloading blower systems.
- A roofed enclosure with partial walls parallel to the track for wind and rain protection is

provided to protect the unloading operation from weather exposure.

For railcar unloading, unloading pans are providéd that are clamped to each of three hop-
per outlet flanges, and a vacuum conveying system removes lime from the railcér hopper,
one hopper section at a time, into a filter receiver. From the ﬁlter.rece'i.ver, Hme is'.fed
through an airlock, into an airlock hopper, which discilarges through another airlock into
a positive pressure pneumatic conveyor. The vacuum and pressure conveyirig systems.

each have two blowers, one blower is spare.

- The vacuum conveyor systerh is also designed'to unload two positive pressure pneumatic -
trucks by having the truck discharge line connect to thé vacuum conveyor line. The
unloading building also provides for one or two éelf—unloading pressure differential
trucks to unload. Two independent conveying pipes and hoses are prbvided so both trucks

can unload at the same time.

The positive pressure lime conveyor discharges into the lime storage silo. The silo has a
vibrating bin outlet, to assure continuous ﬂoW from the silo and has a bin vent to exhaust
filtered air from the silo. From the vibrating bin discharger, lime discharges through a
diverter gate to either of two airlock h0ppefs. Each hopper feeds an independent positive

pressure conveyor that transports lime into either of two lime day bins. Two blowers are |

provided, one acts as a spare. -

The positive pressuré conveyor discharges lime into either of two day bins, selected by a

diverter in the convey line. Both day bins are provided with a bin vent filter. Two con-
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veying pipes with hoses to connect to self-unloading pressure differential trucks are also

provided to use as emergency sources of lime for the day bins.

Pébble lime from the day bins is conveyed to hydrators equipped with scrubbers where it
~ is wetted to approximately 1 to 2 percent moisture. Hydrated lime is then conveyed by a
positive pressure pneumatic conveyor into the hydrated lime silo. A bin vent filter is pro-
vidéd for the silo to vent filtered conveying air: from the silo. Hydrated lime diScharggs
from the silo through an airlock, and then into a feeder hopper, which discharges through
another airlock into the conveying line. A positi\}e pressure conveyor transports hydrated

lime to the turbo reactor. The conveyor has two blowers, with one acting as a spare.

PM emission sources associated with the lime handling and storage systém consists of:
(1) railcar unloading filter receiver, (2) lime storage silo, (3) two lime day bin silos, (4)
two lime hydrator scrubbers, and (5) hydrated lime storage silo. The railcar unloading
- filter receiver and each of the storage silos will be equipped with bin vent fabric filters
designed to achieve an outlét PM concentration of 0.01 grains PM per dry standard cubic
- foot (gr PM/dscf). '

CDS BYPRODUCT

A portion of the CDS byproducts will be collected by the CDS fabric filter and pneurhati-
cally transferred to a CDS byproduct storage silo which will be equipped with a bin vent
fabric filter designed to achieve an outlet PM concentration of 0.01 gr PM/dscf.

CDS byproduct will then be transferred into two pin mixers where it will be mixed with
water prior to being loaded into trucks. There are no significant PM emissions associated

with the wet pin mixer operation.
CALCIUM OXIDE ADDITION SYSTEM FOR FUEL CONDITIONING

Calcium oxide in the form of lime or limestone may be added to the coal conveyihg sys-

tem, as needed, to condition the fuel and enhance the life of the SCR catalyst.
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6.0 NEW SOURCE REVIEW APPLICABILITY

The existing DGS is located in an attainment area apd' is classified as a major facility- A’
modification to an existing major facility located an attainment area which has a net.
emissions increase equal to or exceeding the significant emission rates listed in Rule 62- _
210.200(277), F.A.C., will be subject to PSD NSR.

For changes to existing emission units, such as the DGS Unit 2 AQCS, the determination
of a net emission increase is based on a comparisdn of actual-to-projected actual emission
rates. A significant emissions increase of a PSD pollutant will occur 1f the difference be-
tween the baseline actual emissions and projected actual emissions equals or exceeds the
significant emissions rate for that pollutant. As defined by Rule 62-21.0.200(36'), F.A.C,,
baseline actual emissions for an existing electric utility steam generating unit means the
- average rate, in tons per year, at which the unit actually emitted the pollutant during any
consecutive 24-month period selected by the owner or operator within the 5-year period
immediately preceding the date a complete permit application is received by FDEP.
Baseline actual emissions include fﬁgitiye emissions, to the extent quantifiable, as well as

emissions associated with startups and shutdowns.

Projected actual emissions, as defined by Rule 62-210.200(247), F.A.C., means the maxi-
mum annual rate, in tons per year, at.-which an existing emissions unit is projected to emit
a PSD pollutam in any one of the 5 years following the date the unit resumes regular op-
eration after the project, or in any one of the 10 years following that date, if the project
involves increésing the emissioﬁs unit's design capacity or its potential to emit that PSD
pollutant and full utilization of the unit would result in a significant emissions increase or
a significant net emissions increase at the major stationary source. Erﬁissioné that the unit
could have accommodated during the 24-month baseline period and that are unrelated to
the modification are excluded. As noted previously in Section 3.1, there will be no |
changes to the existing DGS Unit 2 electrical steam generator and no increase in maxi-
mum heat input to the boiler or steam flow capability of the turbine. Since DGS Unit 2 is
a base load unit, there will also be no change in Unit 2 utilization (i.e., capacity factor)

due to the AQCS project. Accordingly, the applicable period for determining projected
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actual emiésions for the DGS Unit 2 AQCS project is the 5 years following installation of

the additional emission controls.

The DGS Unit 2 AQCS project will result in substantial reductions in actual emiésions of
- NO,, SO,, PM/PMy, fluorides (i.e., HF) and H,SO,4. No changes are p_lanned to the DGS
Unit 2 comb_ilstion process. Accordingly, no change in actual emissions of combustion
related pollutants (ie., CO ana VOC) will result due to the AQCS project. Discussions Qf

baseline actual emissions and projected actual emissions are provided in the following |

" sections.

6.1 BASELINE ACTUAL EMISSIONS

As an ARP affected emission unit, DGS Unit 2 is equipped with CEMS for measuring
SO;, NO,, CO,, and opacity. The 'ARP CEMS data was used to develop baseline actual
emissions for SO, and NO,. GRU conducts annuél stack testing of DGS Unit 2 for filterable

PM using EPA Reference Method 5. This stack test data (i.e., the average emission rate in

1b/10° MMBtu) together with the annual heat input was used to develop baseline actual

emissions for PM. Baseline actual emissions of Hg and the PSD acid gases (i.e., HF and

H,50,) were developed using GRU emission estimates prepared pursuant to the Toxic Re-
lease Inventory (TRI) regulatory program.

6.2 PROJECTED ACTUAL EMISSIONS :

As noted previously, there will be ho change in DGS Unit 2 utilization due to the AQCS
project. Projected DGS Unit 2 actual annual emissions during the S yéar period following
installation 6f the AQCS for SO,, NO,, and PM were estimated using the AQCS target -
emission rates (in units of 1b/ 10° Btl_l). previously shown in Section 5.0 and the highest DGS
Unif 2 heat input over the 2002 to 2006 period (i.e., the 2006 heat input). The projected ac-
tual emissions also include PM/PM, emissions associated With the AQCS material handling
activities. As previously noted in Section 5.3, the final residue of the CDS process is a dry
product which may be landfilled or potentially re-utilized. If landfilled onsite, approxi-
mately nine trucks per day will transport the CDS byproduct to the onsite landfill. Fugi-

tive PM/PM,, emissions associated with this activity will be negligible.
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DGS Unit 2 currently combusts coal containing approximately 0.8 weight percentb sulfur to
comply with the requirements of NSPS Subpart D. As noted in Section 3.2, a bl_ehd of coals,
including medium sulfur coal, may be combusted in the future following installation of the
AQCS project. The DGS_ Unit 2 AQCS will be capable of removing over 90 percent of
'. H,SO4 and HF. Projected actual emissions of H,SO4 were conservatively estimated by ap-
plying a ratio of 3.125 to the historical 2-year (2004 to 2005) average actual H,SO, emission
rate and applying the AQCS H>SO,4 removal efficiency of 90 percent. The 3.125 ratio repre-
sents the use of medium sulfur coal containing 2.5 Weight percent sulfur compared to the
current coal sulfur content of 0.8 weight percent; No signiﬁcaht chaﬁges in coal fluoride or
mercury contents are exl»):ected._v Accordingly, projected actual emissions bf_)f HF and Hg were
estimated using the hist_orical 2 year (2004 to 2005) average actual HF and Hg emission
rates and applying AQCS removal efficiencies of 90 pércent (for HF) ahd 80 pér(_:ent (for
Hg). '

Table 6-1 provides a summary of baseline and projected actual emission rates. Details of the
GRU DGS Unit 2 PM stack test data are provided in Table 6-2. As shown in Table 6-1,
there will be a net reduction in all PSD pollutants due to the DGS Unif 2 AQCS. Accord-
ingly, the DGS Unit 2 AQCS project is not subject to PSD NSR.
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Table 6-1. Analysis of Net Emission Rates

A. Baseline Actual Emissions

Year Heat Input S0, " No, PM PM,o' H,SO, HF Hg

(10° Btwyr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (tony) (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr)
2502 7 14,157,614 . 7,147.4 3,315.9 270.6 181.3 83.3 27.0 0.051
2003 14,976,624 a 7,678.8 3,666.3 .- 3083 . 206.5 83.0 29.0. ) ) 0.044
2004 13,331,383 6,951.7 33228 : 116.9 78.3 80.3 253 0.038
2005 15,642,246 8,042.9 39325 96.9 64.9 103.3 330 0.025
2006 15,710,352 8,119.3 3,691.9 151.0 101.2 93.5 29.9 0.045

02 - 03 Average NA . NA N/A - 289.4 193.9 N/A N/A _ N/A ..
05 - 06 Average ’ 15,676,299 8,081.1 . 3,812.2 N/A ) N/A 98.4 314 0.035

B. Projected Actual Emisslons’ ' . ;

Heatlnpst . SO} NO,} M PM,¢* H,S0, HF ' He -

(10° Btwyr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (tonsyr) " (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (tonvyr)
2006 Heat Input 15,710,352 - 942.6 549.9 117.8 108.4 30.7 . 3.1 0.0070
AQCS Material Handling N/A N/A N/A _ 6.0 6.0 N/A N/A N/A
AQCS By-Product Truck Traffic N/A N/A N/A " Neg. Neg. N/A . N/A N/A
Totals 15,710,352 942.6 549.9 1238 114.4 . i 30.7 30 0.0070

C. Estimated Net Change In Actual Emissions®

S0, NO, PM PMyp H,S0, HF Hg "
* - (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr) (tonvyr) (tonfyr) (ton/yr) (ton/yr)
Hi . .
. -7,138.5 -3,262.4 -165.6 . -79.5 -67.6 -28.3 -0.028
PSD Significant Emission Rate 40 40 25 15 .7 3 0.1

' PM,, assumed equal to 67% of PM per AP-42, Table 1.1-6 for bituminous coal-fired units equipped with an ESP.
2 Based on use of AQCS. Projected actual emissions will remain approximately the same as baseline actual emissions if current fuel is combustéd and the AQCS is not in use.

. ¥ Emissions based on 2006 heat input and target AQCS performance for SO; (0.12 1b/10°Btu), NO; (0.07 1b/10°Btu), and PM (0.015 1/10°Btu).
4 PM,, assumed equal to 92% of PM per AP-42, Table 1.1-6 for bituminous coal-fired units equipped with a baghouse.

3 Based on use of mediurn (2.5% S) sulfur coal and AQCS H;SO, mist control efficiency of 90%.
¢ Based on AQCS HF control efficiency of 90%. :
7 Based on AQCS Hg control efficiency of 80%.

Sources: ECT, 2007.
GRU, 2007,
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’ " Table 6-2. Unit 2 Historical PM Stack Test Data

Soot Blowing 14  hours/day
Non-Soot Blowing 10  hours/day
Year Soot Blowing Non-Soot Blowing Weighted Average*
(1b/10° Btu) (1b/10° Btu) (1b/10° Btu)
2002 0.0446 0.0318
| 0.0268
0.0382
2003 0.0535 10.0240
’ 0.0238 o
0.0412
2004 0.0190 - 0.0160
0.0150
' 0.0175 -
2005 0.0127 0.0097
0.0142 :
' 0.0124
2006 0.0215 0.0145
0.0176
0.0192

*Based on 14 hours/day of soot blowing and 10 hours per day of non-soot blowing.

Sources: ECT, 2007.
GRU, 2007.
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7.0 AMBIENT AIR QUALITY IMPACT SCREENING ANALYSIS

Dispersion modeling, using a conservative screening methodology, was conducted to as-
sess maximum DGS Unit 2 ambient air quality impacts for sulfur dioxide (SO), nitrogen
~ dioxide (NOy), and particulate matter less than ten microns (PMo) for current conditions
and following installation of the AQCS. This assessment of ambient air quality impacts
was performed since the DGS Unit 2 stack temi)eratnre and velocity will be lower then

current levels following installation and operation of the AQCS.

The ambient air quality impact assessment was conducted .using the EPA SCREEN3 _
(Version dated 96043) dispersion model. The SCREEN3 model employs a suite of hypo-
thetical worst-case meteorological conditions and receptors located downwind (i.e., the
SCREEN3 model does not consider actual wind directions) to generate estimates of
maximum air quality impacts. The"SCREEN3 model was developed by?EPA to provide -
conservative estimates of air quality impacts; i.e., the model will over-estimate air quality

impacts compared to refined modeling.

The DGS Unit 2 screening modeling analysis evaluated air quality impacts for: (a) cur- -
Tent DGS Unit 2 stack parameters and allowable emission ratés; i.e., NSPS Subpart D

limits, and (b) future DGS Unit 2 stack parameters and expected emissions following in-

. stallation of the AQCS.

Table 7-1 provides “the current and future DGS Unit 2 stack parameters and emission -
rates. The SCREEN3 model results are summarized in Table 7-2. The screening model
results demonstrate that maximum ambient air quality impacts due to emissions from
DGS Unit 2 are currently well below the National and Florida Ambient Air Quality Stan-
dards and will be significantly lower following installation of the AQCS.
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Table 7-1. Stack Parameters and Emission Rates

Heat Input
Unit (10° Btuhr)
2 2,428

A. Current Stack Data and Altowable Emissions*

Stack ) UTM Coordinates . Elevation NO, : PM . SO,
Easting (m) | Northing (m) () (m) (1b/10° Btu) (g/s) dbmr) | (b/10° Br) (g/s) (ib/hr) [ (1b/10° Btu) (g/s) (ib/hr)
Unit 2 : 365,700 3,292,600 185.0 56.388 0.7 214.1 1,699.6 0.1 30.6 2428 . 1.2 361 2913.6
Stack Height __ Diamet Temperature _Area ] Flow Rate * - Velocity -
() (m) ® (m) (P (K) (%) (m) | (RYmin) | (m¥min) | _(f/sec) (m/s)
Unit 2 350.0 106.7 18.5 56 3520 450.9 268.80 2497 766,500 |. 21,705 47.53 14.49
B. Future Stack Data and Expected Emissionst
Stack . UTM Coordinates " Elevation NO, PM ’ SO,
Easting (m) | Northing (m)| _ (R) (m) (b/10°B) [ (gre) (bomr) | (®10°B) | (o) bmr) | (b/10°Br) | (grs) (b/hr)
Unit 2 365,700 3,292,600 185.0 56.388 0.07 214 170.0 0.015 4.6 364 0.12 36.7 2914
Stack : Height i Di Temperature Area ' Flow Rate Velocity
1 ® (m) @) (m) h ] ® () m) | (Rmin) | (m'min) | (sec) | (mis)
Unit 2 . 3500 106.7 i85 | 56 - 1780 354.3 . 268.80 24.97 761,439 21,562 4721 ) f4.39
C. GEP Height and Dominant Downwash Structure
Height - Maximum Dimengion : o
(R) (m) (ft) (m) *Emission rates reflect NSPS Subpart D limits. Stack parameters taken from DGS Title V Renewal Application dated June 2004.
) ] tEmission rates reflect expected performance of the DGS Unit 2 AQCS. Stack parameters from BPEI DFGD Material Balance -
DH2 GEP Height 482.3 '147.0 . dated February 2, 2007. ' : : .
Unit 2 Boiler 192.9 588 235.9 719

Sources: ECT, 2007.
GRU, 2007.
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' . Table 7-2. SCREEN3 Model Results

‘A. Current Stack Parameters and Allowable Emissions

SCREEN3 Modeled Emission Rate 10.0 ~'grams per second
DH2 SO, Emission Rate (NSPS Subpart D Limit) 367.1 grams per second
DH2 NO, Emission Rate (NSPS Subpart D Limit) 214.1 grams per second
DH2 PM Emission Rate (NSPS Subpart D Limit) : 30.6 grams per second
. SO, Impacts* - . NO, Impact PM;, Impact
Scenario 1-Hour 3-Hour . 24-Hour Annual Annual 24-Hour Annual

(ug/m’) (ug/m®) (ug/m’) (ug/m®) (ug/m?®) (ug/m’®) (ug/m®)

. SCREENS3 (10 g/s) _ 8.32 7.48 3.33 0.67 0.67 3.33 0.67

DH Unit 2 - Current NSPS Subpart D Limits 305 275 122 24 14 102 |- 2.0
NAAQS N/A 1,300 365 80 100 150 50°
FAAQS . N/A 1,300 260 60 |. 100 150 - 50

B. Future (after AQCS) Stack Parameters; NSPS Subpart D and Expected AQCS Emissions

SCREEN3 Modeled Emission Rate ~ 10.0 grams per second

DH2 SO, Emission Rate (AQCS) 36.7 grams per second

DH2 NO, Emission Rate (AQCS) 21.4 grams per second

. DH2 PM Emission Rate (AQCS) 4.6 grams per second
' ' : _ ) SO, Impacts* NO, Impact PM,olmpact
: Scenario . 1-Hour 3-Hour 24-Hour Annual Annual 24-Hour Annual

(ug/m’) (ug/m’) (ug/m®) (ug/m’) (ug/m®) (ug/m’) (ug/m’®)

SCREENS3 (10 g/s) 13.10 11.79 5.24 1.05 1.05 - 5.24 1.05

DH Unit 2 - Current NSPS Subpart D Limits 481 433 192 » 38 22 16.0 32
DH Unit 2 - Following AQCS 48 43 19 4 2 24 - 0.5

- NAAQS N/A 1,300 365 80 100 150 50

FAAQS © NA 1,300 | - 260 60 100 150 50

*SCREEN3 1-hour results adjusted to 3-hour, 24-hour, and annual averages using EPA recommended multiplication factors of 0.9, 0.4, and 0.08, respectively.

NAAQS - National Ambient Air Quality Standards
FAAQS - Florida Ambient Air Quality Standards

Source: ECT, 2007.
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Department of
Environmental Protection

Division of Air Resource Management
APPLICATION FOR AIR PERMIT - LONG FORM
I. APPLICATION INFORMATION

Air Construction Permit — Use this form to apply for any air construction permit at a facility operatmg under a

federally enforceable state air operatxon permxt (FESOP) or Title V air permit. Also use this form to apply for an
air construction-permit:

'| ® For a proposed project subject to prevention of significant déterioration (PSD) review, nonattainment area
(NAA) new source review, or maximum achievable control technology (MACT) review; or :

¢ Where the applicant proposes to assume a restriction on the potential emissions of one or more pollutants to
escape a federal program requirement such as PSD review, NAA new source review, Title V, or MACT; or

¢ Where the applicant proposes to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide appllcablllty limit (PAL)

Air Operation Permit — Use this form to apply for:

¢ An initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP), or

* Aninitial/revised/renewal Title V air operation permit.

Air Construction Permit & Title V Air Operation Permit (Concurrent Processing Option) — Use this form to

apply for both an air construction permit and a revnsed or renewal Title V air operation perxmt incorporating the
proposed project.

To ensure accuracy, please see form instructions.

 Identification of Facility

1. Facility Owner/Company Name: City of Gainesville, GRU

2. Site Name: Deerhaven Generating Station

3. Facility Identification Number: 0010006

4. Facility Location...
Street Address or Other Locator: 10001 NW 13" Street : : _
City: Gainesville : County: Alachua - Zip Code: 32653

5. Relocatable Facility? ' ' 6. Existing Title V Permitted Facility?
[ Yes [X] No [x] Yes [] No

Application Contact
1. Application Contact Name: Yolanta E. Jonynas

2. Application Contact Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm:  City of Gainesville, GRU

Street Address: P.O. Box 147117 (A136)

City: Gainesville State: FL Zip Code: 32614-7117
3. Application Contact Telephone Numbers... _
Telephone: (352) 393-1284 ext. Fax: (352) 334-3151

4. Application Contact Email Address: jonynasye@gru.com
Application Processing Information (DEP Use)

1. Date of Receipt of Application: 4 / 32 /¢ 9 | 3. PSD Number (if applicable):
| 2. Project Number(s): po/ 000 - (7 5 —/\L@ 4. Siting Number (if applicable):

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form _
Effective: 2/2/06 1 YAGDP-OTWGRUDRHAVN-APPADOC—022107




APPLICATION INFORMATION

Purpose of Application

~ This application for air permit is submitted to obtain: (Check one)

Air Construction Permit
[x] Air construction permit
[ Air construction permit to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide apphcabrhty 11m1t (PAL)

[] Air construction permit to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide applicability limit (PAL),
and separate air construction permit to authorize constructlon or modlﬁcatlon of one or
more emissions units covered by the PAL..

Air Operation Permit

'| [] Initial Title V air operation permit.

[] Title V air operation permit revision.
[] Title V air operation permit renewal.

[] Initial federally enforceable state air operation permlt (FESOP) where professional engineer
(PE) certification is required.

[] Initial federally enforceable state air operatlon permit (FESOP) where profess1onal engineer
(PE) certification is not required.’ :

Air Construction Permit and Revised/Renewal Title V Air Operation Permit
(Concurrent Processing) _

[] Air construction permit and Title V permit revision, incorporating the proposed pl'OjCCt
] Air construction permit and Title V permit renewal, incorporating the proposed project.

Note: By checking one of the above two boxes, you, the applicant, are
requesting concurrent processing pursuant to Rule 62-213.405, F.A.C. In
such case, you must also check the following box:

[] Thereby request that the department waive the processing time
requirements of the air construction permit to accommodate the processmg
time frames of the Title V air operation permit.

Application Comment

This application requests approval to retrofit the following emission control systems on
Deerhaven Generating Station Unit 2:

e Selective catalytic reduction (SCR) system to reduce nitrogen oxides (NO,) emissions;

e A circulating dry scrubber (CDS) to reduce sulfur dioxide (S0O,) emissions;

e Fabric filter (FF) to reduce particulate matter (PM) emissions. The fabric filter is an
integral part of the CDS; and

e Ancillary support equipment including new material (urea, lime, hydrated lime, and CDS
by-product) handling and storage.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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APPLICATION INFORMATION'

Scope of Application

Emissions _ - Air _ Air

Unit ID  Description of Emissions Unit Permit Permit

Number : Type | Proc. Fee
005 2,428 MMBtu/hr Steam Boiler No. 2 N/A | N/A
009 Lime, Hydrated Lime, and Dry Circulating N/A N/A

Scrubber By-Product Handling and Storage
_| Activities ' N ‘

Application Processing Fee

Check one: [ ] Attached - Amount: $

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

Effective: 2/2/06

[ x | Not Applicable
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APPLICATION INFORMATION

Owner/Authorized Representative Statement

_Complete if applying for an air construction permlt or an mltlal FESOP.

1. Owner/Authorized Representative Name :
George K. Allen, Assistant General Manager — Energy Supply

2. Owner/Authorized Representative Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm: City of Gainesville, GRU
Street Address: P.O. Box 147117 (A132) _ _ :
City: Gainesville State: Florida Zip Code: 32614-7117

3. Owner/Authorized Representative Telephone Numbers...
Telephone: (352) 393-1789 ext. Fax: (352)334-2786

4. Owner/Authorized Representative Email Address: allengk@gru.com

5. Owner/Authorized Representative Statement:

I, the undersigned, am the owner or authorized representative of the facility addressed in
this air permit application. I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after
reasonable inquiry, that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and
complete and that, to the best of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported in this
application are based upon reasonable techniques for calculating emissions. The air
pollutant emissions units and air pollution control equipment described in this application

- will be operated and maintained so as to comply with all applicable standards for control
of air pollutant emissions found in the statutes of the State of Florida and rules of the
Department of Environmental Protection and revisions thereof and all other requirements
identified in this application to which the facility is subject. I understand that a permit, if
granted by the department, cannot be transferred without authorization from the
department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or legal transfer of the
facility or any permitted emissions unit.

/< L\ 2/70/0.7

_Sign\ét ' - Date

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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APPLICATION INFORMATION'

Application Responsible Official Certification N/A

Complete if applying for an initial/revised/renewal Title V permit or concurrent processmg
of an air construction permit and a revised/renewal Title V permit. If there are multiple
responsible officials, the “application responsible officral” need not be the “prlmary
responsible official.” :

1. Application Responsible Official Name:

2. Application Responsible Official Quallflcatlon (Check one or more of the followmg
_options, as applicable):

|: For a corporation, the president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in
charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or
decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly authorized representative of such

- person if the representative is responsible for the overall operation of one or more

manufacturing, production, or operating facilities applymg for or subject to a permit under
Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.

[] Fora partnershlp or sole proprletorshlp, a general partner or the proprletor respecuvely

[] For a municipality, county, state, federal, or other publlc agency, either a prmc1pal executive
officer or ranking elected official.

[_] The designated répresentative at an Acid Rain source.

3. Application Responsible Official Mailing Address...

. Organization/Firm:
Street Address: _ -
City: _ State: _Zip Code:
4. Application Responsible Official Telephone Numbers...
" Telephone: ( ) - ext. Fax: ( )-

S. Application Responsible Official Email Address:

6. Application Responsible Official Certification:

I, the undersigned, am a responsible official of the Title V source addressed in.this air permit
application. I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry,
that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and complete and that, to the best
of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported in this application are based upon
reasonable techniques for calculating emissions. The air pollutant emissions units and air
pollution control equipment described in this application will be operated and maintained so as to
comply with all applicable standards for control of air pollutant emissions found in the statutes of
the State of Florida and rules of the Department of Environmental Protection and revisions
thereof and all other applicable requirements identified in this application to which the Title 14
source is subject. I understand that a permit, if granted by the department, cannot be transferred
without authorization from the department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or
legal transfer of the facility or any permitted emissions unit. Finally, I certify that the facility and
each emissions unit are in compliance with all applicable requirements to which they are subject
except as identified in compliance plan(s) submitted with this application.

Signature Date

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form A
Effective: 2/2/06 5 YAGDP-ONGRUNDRHAVN-APPA DOC—022107 -
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APPLICATION INFORMATION

Professional Engineer Certificaﬁon

1. Professional Engineer Name: Thomas W. Davis
Registration Number: 36777

2. Professional Engineer Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm: Environmental Consulting & Technology, Inc.

- Street Address: 3701 Northwest 98" Street

 City: Gainesville State: Florida Zip Code: 32606-5004
3. Professional Engineer Telephone Numbers... '
Telephone: (352) 332-0444  ext. Fax (352) 332-6722

[ 4. Professional Engineer Email Address: tdavns@ectmc.com

5. Professional Engineer Statement:
1, the undersigned, hereby certify, except as particularly noted herein*, that:

(1) To the best of my knowledge, there is reasonable assurance that the air pollutant emissions
unit(s) and the air pollution control equipment described in this application for air permit, when
properly operated and maintained, will comply with all applicable standards for control of air
pollutant emissions found in the Florida Statutes and rules of the Department of Environmental
Protection; and

(2) To the best of my knowledge, any emission estimates reported or relied on in this application
are true, accurate, and complete and are either based upon reasonable techniques available for
calculating emissions or, for emission estimates of hazardous air pollutants not regulated for an
emissions unit addressed in this application, based solely upon the materzals mformatzon and
calculations submitted with this application. :

- (3) If the purpose of this application is to obtain a Title V air operation permit (check here ], if
s0), 1 further certify that each emissions unit described in this application for air permit, when
properly operated and maintained, will comply with the applicable requirements identified in this
application to which the unit is subject, except those emissions units for which a compliance plan
"and schedule is submitted with this application. ~

(4) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an air construction permit (check here |I| , if
'50) or concurrently process and obtain-an air construction permit and a Title V air operation
permit revision or renewal for one or more proposed new or modified emissions units (check here
, if so), 1 further certify that the engineering features of each such emissions unit described in this
application have been desigred-or examined by me or individuals under my direct supervision and
found to be in conformity with sound engineering principles applicable to the control of emissions
of the air pollutants characterized in this application.

(5) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an initial air operation permit or operation
permit revision or renewal for one or more newly constructed or modified emissions units (check
Q‘here Foed f,voL)’ I further certify that, with the exception of any changes detailed as part of this
rﬁ' ‘uppl ication, edGJy, such emissions unit has been constructed or modified in substantial accordance

: R
& ¥ ) sﬂ‘nth the mformatmn gtven in the corresponding application for air construction permit and with
S ; |
Cps . |
X :Q =2 g | J U
"’}3 T
L . } Date :
LS ."! § ‘@ \ w
A q z(seal) O BE

A

2 Akta%hvany’ éxcep;wn to certification statement.

*ﬁﬂaunn«n&'\*q' _
DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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II. FACILITY INFORMATION
A. GENERAL FACILITY INFORMATION

Facility Location and Type

1. Facility UTM Coordinates... - 2. Facility Latitude/Longitude...

Zone 17 East (km) 365.70 ' Latitude (DD/MMY/SS)
North (km) 3,292.60 Longitude (DD/MM/SS)
3. Governmental 4. Facility Status 5. Facility Major 6. Facility SIC(s):
Facility Code: "Code: . Group SIC Code: _ 4911
-4 A : 49

7. Facility Comment :

Facility Contact

1. Facility Contact Name:
Yolanta E. Jonynas

2. Facility Contact Mailing Address...
Organization/Firm: City of Gainesville, GRU
Street Address: P.O.Box 147117 (A136)

City: Gainesville State: Florida le Code: -32614-7117
3. Facility Contact Telephone Numbers:
- Telephone: (352) 393-1284 ext. Fax: (352) 334-3151 .

4. Facility Contact Email Address: jonynasye@gru.com

Facility Primary Responsible Official N/A
Complete if an ““application responsible official” is identified in Section I. that is not the
facility “primary responsible official.”

1. Facility Primary Responsible Official Name:

2. Facility Primary Responsible Official Mailing Address...

Organization/Firm:
Street Address:
_ City: State: Zip Code:
3. Facility Primary Responsible Official Telephone Numbers...
Telephone () - ext. Fax: ( ) -

4. Facility Primary Respon51b1e Official Email Address

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form
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FACILITY INFORMATION

‘ Facility Regulatory Classifications

Check all that would apply following completion of all projects and implementation of all
other changes proposed in this application for air permit. Refer to instructions to
distinguish between a “major source’ and a “synthetic minor source.”

1. [] Small Business Stationary Source ] Unknown

2. [] Synthetic Non-Title V Source

3. [x] Title V Source

4. [x] Major Source of Air Pollutants, Other than Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

5. [] Synthetic Minor Source of Air Pollutants, Other than HAPs

6. [x] Major Source of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

7. [ Synthetic Minor Source of HAPs

8. [x] One or More Emissions Units Subject to NSPS (40 CFR Part 60)

9. [] One or More Emissions Units Subject to Emission Guidelines (40 CFR Part 60)

10.[_] One or More Emissions Units Subject to NESHAP (40 CFR Part 61 or Part 63)

11.[] Title V Source Solely by EPA Designation (40 CFR 70.3(a)(5))

12. Facility Regulatory Classifications Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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FACILITY INFORMATION

‘ | List of Pollutants Emitted by Facilit

[ 1. Pollutant Emitted 2. Pollutant Classification 3. Emissions Cap
' | [YorNp
NOX . A N
- 802 - A N
co A | N
PM10 A | N
PM B | N
vOC . | A o -~ N
H106 (Hydrogen Chloride) | A | | N
‘ ' H107 (Hydrogen Fluoride) | A 1 N
HAPS (Total) | A | N

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form . _ ,
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FACILITY INFORMATION

B. EMISSIONS CAPS

Facility-Wide or Multi-Unit Emissions Caps N/A

1. Pollutant 2.

Subject to
Emissions-
Cap

Facility
Wide
Cap

[Y or N]?
(all units)

3. Emissions
- Unit ID No.s
Under Cap
(@if not all
units)

4. Hourly
Cap
(Ib/hr)

5. Annual
Cap
.. (ton/yr)

6. Basis for
Emissions
Cap

7. Facility-Wide or Multi-Unit Emissions Cap Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

Effective: 2/2/06
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FACILITY INFORMATION

C. FACILITY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional Requirements for All Applications, Except as Otherwise Stated

1.

Facility Plot Plan: (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air operation

- permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within the

previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)
] Attached, Document ID: [ x ] Previously Submitted, Date June 2004

Process Flow Diagram(s): (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air
operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department
within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being
sought)

[] Attached, Document ID: [x] Previ_ously Submitted, Date: June 2004

Precautions to Prevent Emissions of Unconfined Particulate Matter: (Required for all -
permit applications, except Title V. air operation permit revision applications if this
information was submitted to the department within the previous five years and would not.
be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

[] Attached, Document ID: . [x]] Previously Submitted, Date: June 2004

Additional Requirements for Air Construction Permit Applications

| 1. Area Map Showing Facility Location: :
[ Attached, Document ID: [x ] Not Applicable (existing permitted facility)
2. Description of Proposed Construction, Modification, or Plantwide Applicability Limit
(PAL):
[x] Attached, Document ID: Sections 3.0 and 5.0
3. Rule Applicability Analysis:
[x] Attached, Document ID: Sectlons 4.0 and 6.0 _
4. List of Exempt Emissions Units (Rule 62- 210.300(3), F.A.C.):
[] Attached, Document ID: [X] Not Applicable (no exempt units at facility)
5. Fugitive Emissions Identification:
[] Attached, Document ID: [ x ] Not Applicable
6. Air Quality Analysis (Rule 62-212. 400(7), F.AC.):
[ Attached, Document ID: [x ] Not Applicable
7. Source Impact Analysis (Rule 62-212.400(5), F.A.C.):
] Attached, Document ID:_ _[x] Not Applicable
8. Air Quality Impact since 1977 (Rule 62-212.400(4)(¢e), F.A.C.):
[] Attached, Document ID: [x ] Not Applicable
9. Additional Impact Analyses (Rules 62-212.400(8) and 62-212.500(4)(e), F.A.C.):
[1 Attached, Document ID: _ [x] Not Applicable

10. Alternative Analysis Requirement (Rule 62-212.500(4)(g), F.A.C.):

[ Attached, Document ID: [Xx] Not Applicable

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form v
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FACILITY INFORMATION

Additional Requirements for FESOP Applications N/A

1.

List of Exempt Emissions Units (Rule 62-210.300(3)(a) or (b)1., F.A.C.):

[] Attached, Document ID: " [] Not Applicable (no exempt units at facility)

Additional Requirements for Title V Air Operation Permit Applications N/A

1.

_List of Insignificant Activities (Required for initial/renewal applications only):

[ Attached, Document ID: [] Not Applicable (revision application)

Identification of Applicable Requirements (Required for initial/renewal applications, and

for revision applications if this information would be changed as a result of the revision

being sought):
[] Attached, Document ID:

[] Not Applicable (revision application with no change in applicable requirements)

Compliance Report and Plan (Required for all initial/revision/renewal apphcatlons)

[ Attached, Document ID:

Note: A compliance plan must be submitted for each emissions unit that is not in
compliance with all applicable requirements at the time of application and/or at any time
during application processing. The department must be notlﬁed of any changes in
compliance status during application processing.

List of Equipment/Activities Regulated under Title VI (If applicable, required for

"initial/renewal applications only):

[] Attached, Document ID: :
[] Equipment/Activities On site but Not Required to be Individually Listed -
[] Not Applicable ‘

Verification of Risk Management Plan Submission to EPA (If applicable, required for
initial/renewal applications only) :

[ Attached, Document ID: [] Not Applicable

Requested Changes to Current Title V Air Operation Permit:

[ Attached, Document ID: [] Not Applicable

Additional Requirements Comment

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [ 2]

A. GENERAL EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Title V Air Operation Permit Emissions Uhit Classification

1. Regulated or Unregulated Emissions Unit? (Check one, if applying for an initial, revised or
- renewal Title V air operation permit. Skip this item if applying for an air construction
permit or FESOP only.)

[] The emissions umt addressed in this Em1ss1ons Unit Informatlon Sect1on is a
regulated emissions unit.

[] The emissions unit addressed in this Em1ss1ons Unit Informatlon Sectlon is an
unregulated emissions unit.

Emissions Unit Description and Status

1. Type of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section: (Check one)

|'_T_| This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a
single process or production unit, or activity, which produces one or more air
pollutants and which has at least one definable emission point (stack or vent).

[] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a-
group of process or production units and activities which has at least one definable
emission point (stack or vent) but may also produce fugitive emissions.

[] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, one or
more process or production units and act1v1t1es which produce fugitive emissions
only.

2. Description of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section:
Fossil Fuel-Fired Steam Boiler Unit No. 2

3. Emissions Unit Identification Number: 005 (Internal ID: DH-2)

4. Emissions |5. Commence 6. Initial 7. Emissions Unit | 8. Acid Rain Unit?
Unit Status Construction Startup Major Group [X] Yes
Code: ~ Date: ' Date: SIC Code: [ ] No
A - N/A N/A 49
9. Package Unit: '
Manufacturer: ' ' Model Number:

10. Generator Nameplate Rating: 251 MW

11. Emissions Unit Comment:
Dry Bottom, Wall-fired Boiler

Field 10 is based on:
295,000 kVA @ 1.0 power factor
250.75 MW @ 0.85 power factor

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form _
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [1] of [ 2]

Emissions Unit Control Equipment

1. Control Equipment/Method(s) Description:
High Efficiency Hot-Side Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP)
Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) |
Dry Circulating Scrubber (CDS)

Medium Temperature ( 180°F <T <250°F) Fabric Filter (FF)

2. Control Device or Method Code(s): 010, 139, 119, 017

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form E
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [1] of [2]

B. EMISSIONS UNIT CAPACITY INFORMATION

(Optional for unregulated emissionS units.)

Emissions Unit Operating Capacity and Schedule

1. Maximum Process or Throughput Rate:

. Maximum Production Rate:

2
3. Maximum Heat Input Rate: 2,428 million Btu/hr
4. Maximum Incineration Rate: pounds/hr

, tons/day
5. Requested Maximum Operating Schedule: _ s .
_ 24 hours/day 7 days/week
52 weeks/year - 8,760 hours/year

6. Operating Capacity/Schedule Comment:

Field 3 maximum heat input based on coal-firing. Maximum heat input is 900
- MMBtu/hr for No. 1 or 2 fuel oil-firing, and 591 MMBtu/hr for natural gas-firing.

'DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form | |
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [1] of [ 2]

C. EMISSION POINT (STACK/VENT) INFORMATION
(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Emission Point Description and Type -

1.

Identification of Point on Plot Plan or

Flow Diagram: DH-2

2. Emission Point Type Code: "

1 . .

Descriptions of Emission Points Comprising this Emissions Unit for VE Tracking:

N/A

4. ID Numbers or Descriptions of Emission Units with this Emission Point in Common:
N/A
5. Discharge Type Code: 6. Stack Height: : 7. Exit Diameter:
\2 S 350 feet . 18.5 feet
8.  Exit Temperature: 9. Actual Volumetric Flow Rate: 10. Water Vapor:
178 °F 761,439 acfm , - NA%
11. Maximum Dry Standard Flow Rate: 12. Nonstack Emission Point Height:
N/A dscfm N/A feet
13. Emission Point UTM Coordinates... 14. Emission Point Latitude/Longitude. o
Zone: East (km): Latitude (DD/MM/SS)‘
' North (km): Longitude (DD/MM/SS)
| 15. Emission Point Comment: '

~ Fields 8 and 9 based on prelim.inary Babcock Power Environmental (BPE) Dry Flue
Gas Desulfurization (DFGD) Material Balance dated February 2, 2007. -

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
Effective: 2/2/06
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2]

_ D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION
Segment Description and Rate: Segment 1 of 3 '

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

Bituminous Coal Burned

2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 3. SCC Units;

1-01-002-02 _ Tons Burned ‘
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: |S. Maximum Annual Rate: | 6. Estimated Annual Activity
1934 818,049 ' Factor;: -~ '
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
2.50 17.0 ' 26 ‘

10. Segment Comment:

Unit 2 can co-fire coal, natural gas, and Nos. 1 and 2 fuel oil. Field 9 value based on |
nominal coal heat content of 13,000 Btu/lb.

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 2 of 3

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

Natural Gas Burned
2. Source Classification Code (SCC): - |'3. SCC Units: _ o
1-01-006-01 . _ Million Cubic Feet Burned
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5. Maximum Annual Rate: 6. Estimated Annual Activity
0.57 _ 4,978 Factor: _
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
N/A N/A - 1,040 '

10. Segment Comment:

Unit 2 can co-fire coal, natural gas, and Nos. 1 and 2 fuel oil. Field 4 maximum hourly
rate based on 591 MMBtu/hr heat input and nominal natural gas heat content of
1,040 Btu/ft’. | |

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form o _
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section: [ 1] of [ 2]

D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment Description and Rate: Segment 3 of 3

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

Distillate Fuel Oils Burned

2. Sou.rce Classification Code (SCC): 3. SCC Units:

1-01-005-01 - Thousand Gallons Burned
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 5 Maximum Annual Rate 6. Estimated Annual Activity
- 6.43 56,314 Factor: N
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: - 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
0.05 | 1005 140

10. Segment Comment:

Unit 2 can co-fire coal, natural gas, and Nos. 1 and 2 fuel oil. Field 4 maximum hourly
rate based on 900 MMBtu/hr heat input and nominal distillate fuel oil heat content of
140,000 Btu/gal.

Segment Description and Rate: Segment . of _

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

2. Source Classiﬁcation Code (SCC): . 3. SCC Units_:

4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5. Maximum Annual Rate: 6. Estimated Annual Activity
' ' Factor:

7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: _ 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:

10. Segment Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [ 2]

List of Po]iutants Emitted by Emissions Unit

E. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANTS

1. Pollutant Emitted | 2. Primary Control 3. Secondary Control | 4. Pollutant
Device Code Device Code Regulatory Code
NOX 139 ' EL
SO2 119 017 EL
PM 010 017 EL
PMj, 010 017 NS

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

Effective: 2/2/06
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION - POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2] Page [ 1] of [ 8]

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - o
POTENTIAL, FUGITIVE, AND ACTUAL EMISSIONS

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Potential, Estimated Fugitive, and Baseline & Projected Actual Emissions

Complete for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air construction

. permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal
Title V permit. Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant identified in Subsection E if
applying for an air operation permit. B

1. Pollutant Emitted: 2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control:
NOX ' _
3. Potential Emissions: 4. Synthetically Limited?
1,700 1b/hour 5,317 tons/year [] Yes [x]No

5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as applicable): N/A
~ to tons/year T

6. Emission Factor: : " 7. Emissions
- -‘Method Code:
 Reference: o : 0
8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): | 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
3,812 tons/year From: 1/2005 ~ To: 12/2006
9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if required): | 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
550 tons/ year : E] 5 years D 10 years

10. Calculation of Emissions:
0.7 lb/_M]VIBtu (NSP_S Subpart D) x 2,428 MMBtu/hr = 1,700 Ib/hr

0.5 1b/MMBtu (Phase II annual average) x 2,428 MMBtu/hr = 1,214 Ib/hr
[(1,214 Ib/hr x 8,760 hr/yr) / 2,000 Ib/ton] = 5,317 tons/yr

11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment:

Potential emissions set equal to allowable emissions.
~ See Section 6.0 (Table 6-1) for data shown in Fields 8a. through 9.a.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2]

- POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Page [ 2] "of_ [ 8]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS
Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerlcal ‘

emissions limitation.

 Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 1 of 3

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code
RULE

2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
Emissions:” N/A .

3. Allowable Emissions and Units:
0.7 Ib/MMBtu '

4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: ,
1,700 Ib/hour 5,317 tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

Annual stack test using EPA Reference Methods 7,7A,7C, 7D, &E or CEMS

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operatmg Method):.

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.44(a)(3) — Solid Fuels

Title V Permit No. 00100006-003-AV, Condition B.7(a)(3)

Annual emissions are limited by Phase II NOx Compliance Plan (0.5 Ib/MMBtu ann. avg.)
Allowable emissions are prorated when different fuels are burned simultaneously.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 2 of 3

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code:

RULE

2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
Emissions: N/A '

3. Allowable Emissions and Units:
0.3 Ib/MMBtu

-4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:

728 Ib/hour 3,190 tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

Annual stack test using EPA Reference Methods 7, 7A, 7C, 7D, &E or CEMS

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.44(a)(2) -

Liquid Fuels

Title V Permit No. 00100006-003-AV, Condition B.7(a)(2)
Allowable emissions are prorated when different fuels are burned s1multaneously

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 3 of 3

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code:

RULE

2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
Emissions: N/A

3. Allowable Emissions and Units:
0.2 Ib/MMBtu

4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
486 1b/hour 2,127 tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

Annual stack test using EPA Reference Methods 7, 7A, 7C, 7D, &E, or CEMS

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.44(a)(1) -

Gaseous Fuels

Title V Permit No. 00100006-003-AV, Condition B.7(a)(1)
Allowable emissions are prorated when different fuels are burned simultaneously.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
Effective: 2/2/06

YAGDP-ONGRU\DRHAVN-APPADOC—022107




EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2] Page [ 3] of. [ 8] '

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
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

- permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal
Title V permit. Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant identified in Subsection E if
applying for an air operation permit.

1. Pollutant Emitted: 2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control:
- S02 .

3. Potential Emissions: | : 4. Synthetically Limited?
- 2,914 Ib/hour 12,762 tons/year O Yes [x]No

5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as applicable): N/A
to tons/year . L

6. Emission Factor: : « - 7. Emissions
_ ‘Method Code:
~ Reference: ' v ' 0
8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): | 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
8,081 tons/year - From: 112005  To: 12/2006
9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if required): | 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
943 tons/year [X] 5years ] 10 years

10. Calculation of Emissions:

1.2 Ib/MMBtu (NSPS Subpart D) x 2,428 MMBtu/hr = 2,913.6 lb/hr .
[(2,913.6 Ib/hr x 8,760 hr/yr) / 2,000 1b/ton] = 12,762 tons/yr

11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment:

Potential emissions set equal to allowable emissions.
See Section 6.0 (Table 6-1) for data shown in Fields 8a. through 9.a.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form _ _
Effective: 2/2/06 22 YAGDP-0T\GRU\DRHAVN-APPA DOC—022107



EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION : POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [ 2] Page [ 4] of_ [ 8]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS

Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerlcal
emissions limitation.

“Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 1 of 2

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
RULE ' Emissions: N/A "

3. Allowable Emissions and Umts 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
1.2 Ib/MMBtu 2,914 1b/hour 12,762 tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:
Annual stack test using EPA Reference Methods 6, 6A, 6B, 6C or CEMS

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.43(a)(2) — Solid Fuels

Title V Permit No. 00100006-003-AV, Condition B.5(a)(2)

Allowable emissions are prorated when different fuels are burned simultaneously.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 2 of 2

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
RULE : Emissions: N/A

3. Allowable Emissions and Units: - ' 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
0.8 Ib/MMBtu i 1,942 lb/hour 8,508 tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:
Annual stack test using EPA Reference Methods 6, 6A, 6B, 6C or CEMS

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.43(a)(1) — Liquid Fuels

Title V Permit No. 00100006-003-AV, Condition B.5(a)(1)

Allowable emissions are prorated when different fuels are burned simultaneously.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions of

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: " 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
_ _ Emissions:
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
1b/hour tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form _
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EMISSION.S UNIT INFORMATION - POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2] Page [ 5] . of [ 8]

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
permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal
Title V permit. Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant identified in Subsection E lf
applying for an air operation permit.

1. Pollutant Emitted: 2. Total Percent Efﬁcienc_y of Control:
PM
3. Potential Emissions: 4. Synthetically Limited?
243 Ib/hour 1,064 tons/year [ Yes [x]No

5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as applicable): N/A
to tons/year

6. Emission Factor: : ' ~ | 7. Emissions
o Method Code:
Reference: ' ' 0
8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): | 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
289 tons/year | From: 1/2002 ~ To: 12/2003
9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if required): | 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
124 tons/year [X] Syears [ ] 10years -

1_0. Calculation of Emissions:

0.1 Ib/MMBtu (NSPS Subpart D) x 2,428 MMBtu/hr = 242.8 Ib/hr
[(242.8 Ib/hr x 8,760 hr/yr) / 2,000 Ib/ton] = 1,064 tons/yr

11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment:

Potential emissions set equal to allowable emissions.
See Section 6.0 (Table 6-1) for data shown in Fields 8a. through 9.a.
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANTF DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [ 2] Page [ 6] @ of [ 8]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS = ’

Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerical
emissions limitation. :

_ Allowable Emissions Allowable Em1ss1ons 1of 1

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
RULE | : : Emissions: N/A

3. Allowable Emissions and Unlts | 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: _
0.1 Ib/MMBtu ' . 243 lb/hour - 1,064 tons/year -

5. Method of Compliance:
Annual stack test usmg EPA Reference Methods S5orl7.

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operatmg Method):
'| 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.42(a)(1)
Title V Permit No. 00100006-003-AV, Condition B.4(a)(1)

~ Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions of

1. - Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
, Emissions:
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
: : Ib/hour tons/year

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
| Emissions:
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
Ib/hour tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form »
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2] Page [ 7] of [ 8]

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
POTENTIAL, FUGITIVE, AND ACTUAL EMISSIONS

(Optional for unregulated emissions linits.)

Potential, Estimated Fugitive, and Baseline & Projected Actual Emissions

Complete for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air construction
permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal
Title V permit. Complete for each em1ss1ons-llmlted pollutant identified in Subsection E if
applying for an air operation permit.

1. Pollutant Emitted: 2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control:
PM10 :
3. Potential Emissions: ‘ : 4. Synthetically Limited?
163 Ib/hour 713 tons/year [] Yes [x]No
5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as apphcable) N/A
to tons/year
6. Emission Factor:. .0.67 x PM ' 7. Emissions ‘
: _ _ Method Code:
Reference: AP-42, Table ' ‘ 5
8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): | 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
194 tons/year - From: 1/2002 “To: 12/2003
9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if required): | 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
114 tonS/year E 5 years :l 10 years

10. Calculation of Emissions:

0.1 Ib/MMBtu (NSPS Subpart D) x 2,428 MMBtu/hr x .67 = 162. 7 Ib/hr
[(162.7 Ib/hr x 8,760 hr/yr) / 2,000 lb/ton] 713 tons/yr

11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment:

See Section 6.0 (Table 6-1) for data shown in Fields 8a. through 9.a.
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION.
Section [ 1] of [2] Page [ 8] of [ 8]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS '

Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerical
‘emissions limitation.

~ Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions of IN/A

| 1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
' g Emissions:
3. . Allowable Emissions and Units: | 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
' Ib/hour - . . tons/year

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
: Emissions: '_ _ '
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
' e Ib/hour tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

6. Aliowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
‘Section [1] of [ 2]

G. VISIBLE EMISSIONS INFORMATION

Complete if this emissions unit is or would be subject to a unit-specific visible
emissions limitation. '

Visible Emlssmns leltatlon Visible Emissions L1m1tat10n 1 of 2

1. Visible Emissions Subtype: . 2. Basis for Allowable Opacny
VE20 - [x] Rule _ [ Other
3. Allowable Opacity: : '
Normal Conditions: 20 % Exceptional Conditions: - 27 %
‘Maximum Period of Excess Opacity Allowed: ' 6 min/hour

4. Method of Compliance: EPA Reference Method 9 or COMS

5. Visible Emissions Comment:

40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 60.42(a)(2).

Title V Permit 0010006-003-AV, Condition B.4.(a)(2). §
Opacity standards do not apply during startup, shutdown, and malfunction per 40 CFR
Part 60, Subpart A, 60.11(c).

Visible Emissions Limitation: Visible Emissions Limitation 2 of 2

1. - Visible Emissions Subtype: 2. Basis for Allowable Opacity:
VE _ [x] Rule [_] Other
3. -Allowable Opacity: _ _ _ .
' Normal Conditions: % Exceptional Conditions: %
Maximum Period of Excess Opacity Allowed: min/hour

4. Method of Compliance: EPA Reference Method 9 or COMS' -

5. Visible Emissions Comment:_

Rule 62-210;700(1), F.A.C. allows excess emissions for up to 2 hours in any 24-hour
period. _

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) — Form
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FACILITY INFORMATION

EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [ 2]

H. CONTINUOUS MONITOR INFORMATION
Complete if this emissions unit is or would be subject to continuous monitoring.

_Contin'uous Monitoring System: Continuous Monitor 1 of 5§

1. Parameter Code: 2. Pollutant(s):
VE

3. CMS Requirement: [x] Rule" [ Other.

4. Monitor Information... _
Manufacturer: Spectrum

Model Number: Spectrum 41 | Serial Number: 0347-8005

5. Installation Date: 6. Performance Specification Test Date:
10/21/2004 ' 12/17/2004

7. Continuous Monitor Comment:

| 40 CFR Part 75.10(a)(4), 40 CFR Part 75.14(a), and 40 CFR Part 60.45(a).

Continuous Moniioring System: Continuous Monitor 2 of 5§

1. Parameter Code: 2. Pollutant(s):
CO2
3. CMS Requirement: [x ] Rule [ Other

4. Monitor Information...
Manufacturer: Siemens

Model Number: Ultramat 6E Serial Number: N1-S8-0790

5. Installation Date: - 6. Performance Specification Test Date:
10/21/2004 12/16/2004

7. Continuous Monitor Comment;

40 CFR Part 75.10(a)(3)(i), 40 CFR Part 75.13(a), and 40 CFR Part 60.45(a).
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FACILITY INFORMATION

EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION'
Section [ 1] of [ 2]

H. CONTINUOUS MONITOR INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Complete if this emissions unit is or would be subject to continuous mo_nitoring{

- Continuous Monitoring System: Continuous Monitor 3 of §

1. Parameter Code: ' 2. Pollutant(s):
- FLOW '
3. CMS Requirement: [x] Rule [ Other

4. Monitor Information...

Manufacturer: Monitor Labs

" Model Number: Ultra Flow 150 - Serial Number: 1500232

5. Installation Date: ' 6. . Performance Specification Test Date:
10/21/2004 . 10/16/2004
7. Continuous Monitor Comment: .

40 CFR Part 75.10(a)(1 and 40 CFR Part 75.11(a).

Continuous Monitoring System: -Continuous Monitor 4 of 5

1. Parameter Code: 2. Pollutant(s):

EM . - NOX
3. CMS Requirement: _ [x] Rule [] Other
4. Monitor Information... :

Manufacturer: Thermo-Environmental Instruments, Inc.

Model Number: 42C Serial Number: 0427508531

5. Installation Date: : : 6. Performance Specification Test Date:
. 10/21/2004 12/16/2004

7. Continuous Monitor Comment:

40 CFR Part 75.10(a)(2), 40 CFR Part 75.12(a) and (b), and 40 CFR Part 60.45(a).
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

Continuous Mon'itoring sy stem: Continuous Monitor 5 of §

1. Parameter Code: 2. Pollutant(s):
EM S0O2
CMS Requirement: [x] Rule

[] Other

. Monitor Information...

Manufacturer: Thermo-Environmental Instruments, Inc.

Model Number: 43C

Serial Number: 0425408089 .

Installation Date: 6. Performance Specification Test Date:
12/21/2004 12/16/2004 :
7. Continuous Monitor Comment:

40 CFR Part 75.10(a)(1), 40 CFR Part 75.11(a) and (g), and 40 CFR Part 60.45(a).

Continuous Monitoring System; Continuous Monitor of

1. Parameter Code: 2. Pollutant(s):
3. CMS Requirement: ] Rule ] Other
4. Monitor Information...
Manufacturer:
Model Number: Serial Number:
5. Installation Date: 6. Performance Specification Test Date:
7. Continuous Monitor Com_ment: _

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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FACILITY INFORMATION

EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 1] of [2]

I. EMISSIONS UNIT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional Requirements for All Applications, Except as Otherwise Stated '

1.

Process Flow Diagram (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air operation permit
revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within the previous five
years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

[x7] Attached, Document ID: Attachment A  [] Previously Submitted, Date

Fuel Analysis or Specification (Required for all permit applications, except Title V. air
operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within
the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

[x] Attached, Document ID:  Attachment B[] Previously Submitted, Date ____

Detailed Description of Control Equipment (Required for all permit applications, except Title
V air operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department
within the previous five years.and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)
[ x ] Attached, Document ID: Section 5.0 Previously Submitted, Date

" Procedures for Startup and Shutdown (Required for all operation permit applications, except

Title V air operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the:
department within the previous f1ve years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being
sought)

] Attached, Document ID: : [] Previously Submitted, Date

[ x | Not Applicable (construction application) :

Operation and Maintenance Plan (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air
operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within
the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

[_] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date

[x ] Not Applicable : -

Compliance Demonstration Reports/Records
[_] Attached, Document ID:

Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:
[ Previously Submitted, Date:

~ Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:
1 To be Submitted, Date (if known):

Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested
[ x| Not Applicable

Note: For FESOP applications, all required compliance demonstration records/reports must be
submitted at the time of application. For Title V air operation permit applications, all required
compliance demonstration reports/records must be submitted at the time of application, or a
compliance plan must be submitted at the time of application.

Other Information Required by Rule or Statute
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

1. Control Technology Review and Analysis (Rules 62-212.400(10) and 62-212.500(7),
F.A.C.; 40 CFR 63.43(d) and (e)) :
[] Attached, Document ID: [ x ] Not Applicable

2. Good Engineering Practice Stack Height Analy51s (Rule 62-212.400(4)(d), F.A.C., and
Rule 62-212.500(4)(f), F.A.C.)
[] Attached, Document ID: [ x ] Not Applicable

3. Description of Stack Sampling Facilities (Required for proposed new stack samplmg
facilities only) :
[] Attached, Document ID: - [x ] Not Appllcable

Additional Requirements for Title V Air Operation Permit Applications N/A

1. Identification of Applicable Requirements
[] Attached, Document ID:

2. Compliance Assurance Monitoring

- [ Attached, Document ID: [] Not Applicable
3. Alternative Methods of Operation :
[] Attached, Document ID: [C] Not Applicable

4. Alternative Modes of Operation (Emissions Trading)
[] Attached, Document ID: [C]1Not Applicable

5. Acid Rain Part Application
[] Certificate of Representation (EPA Form No. 7610-1)
[] Copy Attached, Document ID:
[] Acid Rain Part (Form No. 62-210. 900(1)(a))

[] Attached, Document ID: [C] Previously Submitted, Date:

[]Repowering Extension Plan (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)1.) '
- [ Attached, Document ID: [C] Previously Submitted, Date:

[] New Unit Exemption (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)2.)

[C] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Retired Unit Exemption (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)3.)

[] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Phase I NOx Compliance Plan (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)4.)

[] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Phase I NOx Averaging Plan (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)5.)

] Attached, Document ID: [C] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Not Applicable
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FACILITY INFORMATION

Additional Requirements Comment

Attachment A includes a general arrahgement profile, general arrangement plan, and
isometric views of the DGS Unit 2 AQCS. All drawings are preliminary.
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
. Section [2] of [ 2]

. _ _ : A. GENERAL EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Title V Air Operation Permit Emissions Unit Classification

1. Regulated or Unregulated Emissions Unit? (Check one, if applying for an initial, revised or
renewal Title V air operation permit. Skip this 1tem if applying for an air construction
'permit or FESOP only.)

[] The emissions unit addressed i in this Em1ss1ons Unit Information Sectlon isa
regulated emissions unit.

[ The emissions unit addressed in thls Em1ss1ons Unit Informatlon Section is an
unregulated emissions unit.

Emissions Unit Description and Status

1. Type of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section: (Check one)

[X] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a
' single process or production unit, or activity, which produces one or more air
pollutants and which has at least one definable emission point (stack or vent).
[] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a
group of process or production units and activities which has at least one definable
emission point (stack or vent) but may also produce fugitive emissions.

. [] This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, one or
' more process or production units and act1v1t1es which produce fugitive emissions
only.

2. Description of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section:
Lime, Hydrated Lime, and Circulating Dry Scrubber (CDS) By-Product Handlmg and

Storage.
3. Emissions Unit Identification Number: 009
4. Emissions 5. Commence 6. Initial _7. Emissions Unit | 8. Acid Rain Unit?
Unit Status ‘Construction Startup Major Group [] Yes
Code: Date: Date: SIC Code: [x] No
C N/A : N/A 49 -
9. Package Unit:
Manufacturer: ' Model Number:

10. Generator Nameplate Rating: MW

11. Emissions Unit Comment:

Emission unit includes activities associated with the pneumatic handling and storage of
lime, hydrated lime, and CDS by-product. Storage facilities include one lime storage silo,
two lime day tanks, one hydrated lime storage silo, and one CDS by-product storage silo.
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 2] of [ 2]

Emissions Unit Control Equipment

1. Control Equipment/Method(s) Description:

Medium Temperature ( 180°F <T <250°F) Fabric Filter (FF)

2. Control Device or Method Code(s): 017
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [2] of [ 2]

Emissions Unit Operating Capacity and Schedule

B. EMISSIONS UNIT CAPACITY INFORMATION

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

1.

Maximum Process or Throughput Rate:

. Maximum Production Rate:

Maximum Heat Input Rate: million Btwhr

2
3.
4. Maximum Incineration Rate: pounds/hr

tons/day

Requested Maximum Operating Schedule:
' 24 hours/day -

S2 weeks/year

7 days/week
8,760 hours/year

Operating Capacity/Schedule Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
Effective: 2/2/06 37
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section. [ 2] of [ 2]

C. EMISSION POINT (STACK/VENT) INFORMATION
(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Emission Point Description and Type

‘1. Identification of Point on Plot Plan or 2. Emission Point Type Code;
Flow Diagram: ' :

3. Descriptions of Emission Points Comprising this Emissions Unit for VE Tracking:

4. ID Numbers or Descriptions of Emission Units with this Emission Point in Common:

5. Discharge Type Code: 6. Stack Height: : 7. Exit Diameter:
: ' feet ' feet
8. Exit Temperature: 9. Actual Volumetric Flow Rate: 10. Water Vapor:
. °F _ acfm _ %
- 11. Maximum Dry Standard Flow Rate: 12. Nonstack Emission Point Height:
-Dscfm : feet
13. Emission Point UTM Coordinates... 14. Emission Point Latitude/Longitude...
Zone: East (km): Latitude (DD/MM/SS)
‘North (km): Longitude (DD/MM/SS)

15. Emission Point Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Section [ 2] of [ 2]

D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 1 of 2

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

Hydrated Lime Used in Circulating Dry Scrubber (CDS)

2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 3. SCC Units:
3-05-016-15 Tons
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: [ 5. Maximum Annual Rate: 6. Estimated Annual Activity
} 6 o 50,000 Factor: .
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
N/A N/A ' N/A

10. Segment Comment:

Field 4, Maximum Hourly Rate, is approxnmate and based on 8,760 hours per year. Fleld

15, Maxnmum Annual Rate, is approxnmate

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 2 of 2

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

- Circulating Dry Scrubber (CDS) By-Product (Waste Ash)

2. Source Classification Code (SCC):

3. SCC Units:
3-05-102-98 Tons _
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: | 5. Maximum Annual Rate: 6. Estimated Annual Activity
9 82,000 Factor: _
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 8. Maximum % Ash: 9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
N/A N/A N/A

10. Segment Comment:

Field 4, Maximum Hourly Rate, is approxnmate and based on 8,760 hours per year. Field
5, Maximum Annual Rate, is approximate.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

Effective: 2/2/06

39 Y AGDP-ONGRINDRHAVN-APPA.DOC—022107




EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 2 ] Qf [ 2]

_ - E. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANTS
List of Pollutants Emitted by Emissions Unit

1. Pollutant Emitted | 2. Primary Control 3. Secondary Control | 4. Pollutant
: Device Code Device Code Regulatory Code

PM/PM10 017 ' NS

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 2] of [2] Page [ 1] of [ 4]

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - |
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
PM o 99+
{ 3. Potential Emissions: _ 4. Synthetically Limited?
1.3 Ib/hour 6.0 tons/year [ Yes_ [x] No

5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as appllcable) N/A
to tons/year

6. Emission Factor: 0.01 gr / dscf o 7. Emissions
' Method Code:

Reference: Engineering Estimate _ - : S

8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): | 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
289 tons/year From: 1/2002 -~ To: 12/2003
9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if required): | 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
| 124 tons/year [x] Syears [] 10 years

10. Calculation of Emissions: '
Railcar Unloading

(0.01 gr/dscf) x (1,382 dscf/min) x (1 Ib/7 000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.12lb/hr
(0.121b/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 Ib) = 0.52 ton/yr

LimeSilo
(0.01 gr/dsel) x (1,382 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 minvhr) = 0.12Ib/hr
(0.12 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 Ib) = 0.52 ton/yr

Lime Day Bin Silos — Total for Two Sllos
(0.01 gr/dscf) x (2,000 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.18 Ib/hr
(0.18 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 1b) = 0.76 ton/yr

Lime Hydrator Scrubbers —~ Total for Two Scrubbers
0.68 Ib/hr (Vendor Data)

(0.72 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 1b) = 3.1 ton/yr

Hvdrated Lime Silo :
(0.01 gr/dsc) x (1,050 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.09 Ib/hr
(0.09 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 1b) = 0.39 ton/yr

CDS By-Product Silo
(0.01 gr/dscf) x (1,844 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.16 Ib/hr -
(0.16 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 1b) = 0.69 ton/yr

11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form _
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION . POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION
Section [ 2]  of [2] | Page [ 2] of [4]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
_ ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS _
Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerical
‘emissions limitation.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions of IN/A

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
_ ' ' Emissions: ' -
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: ' 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
: ' 1b/hour . tons/year

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
_ Emissions: ,
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

' Emissions:

3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
T Ib/hour . tons/year

5. Method of Compliance:

6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form '
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION - POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION :
- Section [ 2] of [2] . Page [ 3] of [ 4]

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - |
POTENTIAL, FUGITIVE, AND ACTUAL EMISSIONS

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

. Potential, Estimated Fugitive, and Baseline & Projected Actual Emissions
Complete for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air construction permit or -

concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal Title V permit.
Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant ldentlf' ed in Subsection E if applying for an air
operation permit.

1. Pollutant Emitted: | 2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control:
PMyo : : 99+ _
3. Potential Emissions: - |4 Synthetically Limited?
1.3 Ib/hour 6.0 tons/year ] Yes l—_L—l No

5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as appllcable) N/A
to tons/year

6. Emission Factor: 0.01 gr/ dscf : 7. Emissions
. _ Method Code:
Reference: Engineering Estimate ' _ 5
8.a. Baseline Actual Emissions (if required): | 8.b. Baseline 24-month Period:
- 194 tons/year v From: 12002 = To: 12/2003
9.a. Projected Actual Emissions (if required): | 9.b. Projected Monitoring Period:
114 tons/year [x] 5years [] 10 years.
10. Calculation of Emissions: Note: PM,, emissions assumed equal to PM emissions.
Railcar Unloading '

(0.01 gr/dscf) x (1,382 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 minvhr) = 0.12lb/hr
(0.121b/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 Ib) = 0.52 ton/yr

Lime Silo
(0.01 gr/dscf) x (1,382 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 mmlhr) = 0.12Ib/hr
(0.12 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 Ib) = 0.52 ton/yr

Lime Day Bin Silos — Total for Two Silos
(0.01 gr/dsch) x (2,000 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.18 Ib/hr
(0.18 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 1b) = 0.76 ton/yr

Lime Hydrator Scrubbers -~ Total for Two Scrubbers
| 0.68 Ib/hr (Vendor Data)
(0.72 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 Ib) = 3.1 ton/yr

Hydrated Lime Silo _
(0.01 gr/dscf) x (1,050 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.09 Ib/hr
(0.09 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,0080 ib) = 0.39 ton/yr

CDS By-Product Silo 4
(0.01 gr/dscf) x (1,844 dscf/min) x (1 1b/7,000 gr) x (60 min/hr) = 0.16 lb/hr
(0.16 Ib/hr) x (8,760 hr/yr) x (1 ton/2,000 1b) = 0.69 ton/yr

11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form .
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 2] of [2]

POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION

Page [ 4] of [ 4]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -
: ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS -
Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerlcal

emissions limitation.

Allowable Emnssnons Allowable Emissions of N/A
1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 2. Future Effective Date of Allowable
' ' Emissions:

3. Allowa‘ble Emissions and Units:"

4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:
lb/hour tons/year

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
Emissions: '

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
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‘ EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
- Section [2] of [ 2]

G. VISIBLE EMISSIONS INFORMATION

Complete if this emissions unit is or would be subject to a unit-specific visible

emissions limitation.

Visible Emissions Limitation: Visible Emissions Limitation 1 of 1 _
| 1. Visible Emissions Subtype: . 2. Basis for Allowable Opacity:
VE20 [x] Rule [ Other
3. Allowable Opacity: :
Normal Conditions: - 20% Exceptional Conditions: %
Maximum Period of Excess Opacity Allowed: : min/hour
4. Method of Compliance: EPA Reference Method 9 -
5. Visible Emissions Comment:
- 62-296.320(4)(b), F.A.C.
Visible Emissions Limitation: Visible Emissions Limitation - of
1. Visible Emissions Subtype: _ 2. Basis for Allowable Opacity: -
_ _ [ 1 Rule [] Other
3. . Allowable Opacity: A -
Normal Conditions: - % - Exceptional Conditions: %
Maximum Period.of Excess Opacity Allowed: min/hour
4. Method of Compliance: '
5. Visible Emissions Comment:

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
Effective: 2/2/06 _ - 45
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

.Section [21] of [2.]

H. CONTINUOUS MONITOR INFORMATION |

Complete if this emissions unit is or would be subject to continuous monitoring.

' Continuous Monitoring System: Continuous Monitor of IN/A

1. Parameter Code:

2. Pollutant(s):

3. CMS Requirement:

4, Monitor Information...
" Manufacturer;

| Model Number:

] Rule [] Other

Serial Number:

5. Installation Date:

6. Performance Specification Test Date:

7. Continuous Monitor Comment:

Continuous Monitoring System: Continuous Monitor of

1. "'Parameter Code:

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
Section [ 1] of [ 2 1

I. EMISSIONS UNIT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

‘Additional Requirements for All Applications, Except as Otherwise Stated

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

'[O Attached, Document ID: 1] Prevnously Submitted, Date N/A

Fuel Analysis or Specification (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air
operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within
the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

[] Attached, Document ID: - [[] Previously Submitted, Date IN/ A

Detailed Description of Control Equipment (Required for all permit applications, except Title
V air operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department
within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

[ x ] Attached, Document ID:- Section 5.0  Previously Submitted, Date __

Procedures for Startup and Shutdown (Required for all operation permit applications, except
Title V air operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the
department within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being
sought)

] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submltted Date

[ x ] Not Applicable (construction application)

Operation and Maintenance Plan (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air
operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within
the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought)

] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date

[ x ] Not Applicable '

Compliance Demonstration Reports/Records
[] Attached, Document ID: ~

Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:
] Previously Submitted, Date:

Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:
[1To be Submitted, Date (if known):

Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:
[ x ] Not Applicable

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

Other Information Required by Rule or Statute '
[ Attached, Document ID: . [ x ] Not Applicable

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form .
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION
Section [ 2] of [ 2]

Additional Requirements for All‘ Construction Permit Applications

1. Control Technology Review and Analysis (Rules 62-212.400(10) and 62-212.500(7),
F.A.C.; 40 CFR 63.43(d) and (e)) _
[] Attached, Document ID: [ x ] Not Applicable

2. Good Engineering Practice Stack Height Analysis (Rule 62-212.400(4)(d), F.A.C., and
Rule 62-212.500(4)(f), F.A.C.)
[] Attached, Document ID: [[x ] Not Applicable

3. Description of Stack Sampling Facilities (Required for proposed new stack samphng
facilities only) _

[] Attached, Document ID [x ] Not Applicable

Additional Reqmrements for Title V Air Operation Permit Applications N/A

1. Identification of Applicable Requirements
] Attached, Document ID: '

2. Compliance Assurance Monitoring

- [] Attached, Document ID: ] Not Applicablé'
3. Alternative Methods of Operation :
[] Attached, Document ID: 1 Not Applicable
4. Alternative Modes of Operation (Emissions Trading) |
[] Attached, Document ID: ' [ Not Applicable

5. Acid Rain Part Application
[] Certificate of Representation (EPA Form No. 7610 1)
[] Copy Attached, Document ID:_
[ Acid Rain Part (Form No. 62-210. 900(1)(a))

[] Attached, Document ID: ] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Repowering Extension Plan (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)1.)

[ Attached, Document ID: . [] Previously Submitted, Date:_
[]New Unit Exemption (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)2.) =

[] Attached, Document ID: [_] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Retired Unit Exemption (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)3.)

[] Attached, Document ID: []Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Phase I NOx Compliance Plan (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)4.)

[] Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date:
[]Phase I NOx Averaging Plan (Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)s.)

[J-Attached, Document ID: [] Previously Submitted, Date:_
[]Not Applicable

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form
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‘ ‘ Additional Requirements Comment
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DGS UNIT 2 AQCS DIAGRAMS



GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PROFILE
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GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN



| | 2 3 { 4 5 6 1 7 | 8 9 10 X t 12 ! i3 | ¢
1040649201-25£00) -

A AU 643 RCIKRATION DUCTE 121
ENIETING FLT aw §ii

LISTIAG FLY ASH $HLO PUNS MOUSL

LA3TIMG $TACK

XISTING UNDRRYD #1MCS

(€ 2001100 FAX ILET BRLT 10 STM

ALY IAGHOUSE QUTLEY DUCT To BGORIEA TANS

1STING W LAt

Lf=eEX ELIoR
€T Qlughs

¥ 1UIB010RP ALaCTON
wm [E A

s

. \\

~. e
\._

TLISHG pLANE 10D *L"

N acees w0

et ALY TOIQ30LP RLACTON
/—'" Ll / €Y WATED 3100461 Tank

"

Falr rumosce ecron
W R

ey pOIC
Wiip Pl
(BT 0THER

8 olnm

i

:nmn HRIICHL 13188 €t CONPETOR
\u “nulln T sito”

\‘ 1 o
v e luun roe-2
81 oiCn)

T

O 9N DR ST
FEED PUMD $K (D

r ot
at? 0003 fans 421
LI

(¥ 43x §1L0 AND POE WILL

LIS1INg COsL CAUSHER BOUM
QICRICAL WiDias.

H
é - S 5 N g o 25
t ux erenLL LN $ic H *L‘/l _: ALY POBBLC LINE UNLOADING
wrowa T B e
wris;
ikien
2.3 lll(lm ll([L mu 0 GIID[ II( 18 n(ll
PRELIMINARY i o BN
N A RILEY POWER INC. [~
4 it
e T
o o Aol st Jo] TR roosse- 1026110000
1 I z 3 T 4 § i 6 i 7 i i 13 i 1a




ISOMETRIC VIEW OF DGS UNIT 2 AQCS
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APPENDIX B

FUEL CHARACTERISTICS

 eCr

Environmental Consulting & Technology, Inc.



GAINESVILLE REGIONAL UTILITIES
DEERHAVEN GENERATING STATION

UNIT 2 FUEL CHARACTERISTICS'

Performance
Constituentt Units Coal : Design Coal
' ' Min Max
Ash Weight % 9.0 4.5 17.0
Sulfur - Weight % 1.6 1.0 2.5
Heat Content - Btw/lb 12,791 11,000 14,500

"Table represents a range of coal characteristics based on potential candidate fuels
from targeted producing regions that will be investigated for future procurement.
tDry basis.

Source: GRU, 2007.
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Via Overnight Delivery

February 22, 2007

Mr. Jeff Koemer

Florida Dept. of Environmental Protection

Bureau of Air Regulation
Air Permitting North

111 So. Magnolia Drive
Tallahassee, FL. 32301

Re:

Gainesville Regional Utilities

Deerhaven Generating Station — Unit 2

- STRATEGIC PLANNING

Air Construction Permit Application - Air Quality Control System Addition

Dear Mr. Koerner:

Enclosed are four (4) copies of the air construction permit application for the above-
referenced project.

If you have any questions pertaining to this application or the project please contact me at
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

XC:

C. Allen, GRU
T. Bates, GRU
D. Beck, GRU

- R. Embry, GRU, wo. enc.

C. Kirts, FDEP — NE District
R. Klemans, GRU, wo. enc.
D. Mallery, GRU, wo. enc.
D. Moffet, GRU

R. Nance, GRU, wo. enc.

E. Walters, GRU, wo. enc.
DH2AQCS1.0

DH2AQCSACPermitapp022107

P.O. Box 147117, Station A136, Gainesville, Florida 32614-7117, Phone: (352) 334-3400 ext. 1260 Fax: (352) 334-3151
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CONTROL SYSTEM PROJECT

SELECTIVE CATALYTIC REDUCTION
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“AIR CONSTRUCTION PERMIT
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Gainesville, Florida
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Environmental Consulting & Technology, Inc.
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ECT No. 051174-0700

February 2007




